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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEwE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to all the shareholders.

During 2020, the Group adopted a number of measures to further
improve its business operations, including:

1. optimizing the management structure and introducing
talents with great influence in the industry into our
management team, to significantly increase the Company’s
competitiveness;

2. optimizing asset portfolio and disposing business segments
that were not in line with the Company’s future development
strategy, to enhance the Company’s operational efficiency
and significantly improve the Company’s profitability;

3. strategically cooperating with mainland companies with
rich industry resources, enabling both sides to complement
each other in terms of resources and strengths, improving
the service level of the Company in the Mainland China, to
achieve sustainable growth of the Company’s results.

FUTURE PROSPECT

After the integration and optimization of the business structure
in the previous year, the Company has gradually matured its
business exploration in the healthcare service industry and formed
a competitive industry service system in the market. In the new
year, the Company will focus on its core strengths, integrate our
advantages and resources in the industry, build a regenerative
medicine health management ecosystem, comprehensively
improve its service capabilities and quality, and establish a good
reputation in the industry.

At the same time, the Company is also willing to attract
more quality partners in the industry to share the dividends
of development and further promote the replication and
development of the industry on a large scale. With new norms in
the post-COVID-19 era, we will cultivate new momentum for the
Company’s development and achieve sustainable and healthy
growth of business revenue.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, acting on behalf of the Board, avail this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation for the long-term support from our
shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, and business
partners to the Group, as well as the prolonged and committed
hard work and contribution by our employees.

By the order of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman
31 March 2021

&

fEHEE  BFAFAARRESZTS  RAEAK
R -REE TP HEBNEGEBHEEE
—HEUROXE  AREBETRHNARNF
HER BB BUARDRSH -

AEEED
E
]

—E-—4F®=A=+—H

2020 £ HEBLEB2EBRERLA 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RTwm ST

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group continued
to evaluate the various business segments of the Group with an
aim to streamline its business for the purpose of increasing its
overall performance and cost-effectiveness, as well as to improve
its overall performance in light of its going concern. The Group
has evaluated and compared each business segment and decided
to dispose of the “dermatology and others”, “ophthalmology
products” and “stomatology products and others” segments in
order to focus its resources for the development of the remaining
business segments.

The Company has made its best effort to improve the Group’s
operational performance and to extend the Group’s sale network
in the PRC, especially in the healthcare products and services
segment and as a result, the performance of the healthcare
products and services segment since the second quarter of 2020
has substantially improved and generated operating profit and
improved the liquidity of the Group. The extended sale network
is expected to improve the profitability of the business of the
Group for the years coming. The Group will continue to make
effort to implement measures to improve the Group’s operational
performance and financial position. The Board will continuously
evaluate the business environment, the existing business portfolio
and income streams of the Group and improve the profitability of
the Group.

The Company will continue to implement measures aiming at
improving the working capital and cash flows of the Group,
including close monitoring of general administrative expenses
and operating costs and soliciting more potential customers.
The Company may also consider disposing of non-profit making
businesses and to review its plan of acquisition in order to reduce
operating costs and improve working capital. In June 2020,
the Group cancelled a proposed acquisition, and reclaimed the
deposit of HK$46,512,000.

The Company will also consider alternative means of fund raising
which may or may not involve issuance of shares or convertible
bonds of the Company and/or the realization of assets, financial
assets or otherwise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB wm ST

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Healthcare products and services

The Group provides healthcare products and services to its
customers in Hong Kong since December 2015 and expanded to
the PRC in early 2020. There are currently two medical aesthetic
centres in Hong Kong and the PRC. One of the centres, namely
the Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre, is located in
Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. The other centre is located in Jiangsu,
the PRC and became fully operational in the second quarter of
2020. The centre in the PRC is operated by a designated service
provider, Changzhou XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (&N £
=BEEAPIZ AR AR, alimited liability company in the PRC in
which Mr. Wang Chuang has acted as the chief executive officer
between 2015 and 2019.

The objective of the healthcare products and services segment is
to promote health management which is a trend over the world
in recent years. The Group emphasises the concept of the co-
relation between beauty and health.

In the centres, a series of health management services such as
assessment of health situation, treatment for detox, balance of
inner body, nourishing organs, enhancement of immune system
will be provided. Beauty services are mainly non-surgical medical
aesthetic services, basic skincare, solutions for youthful skin, hair
revitalizing, lines firming, partial remodelling and intimate repairing.

The clients of the healthcare products and services segment are
individual retail clients of Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
solicits clients primarily through referrals from existing clients,
co-operated doctors and trained therapists in the medical
aesthetic centres and word-of-mouth. The Group has over
1,500 active clients. The clients are individuals and would pay
for the treatments, services or products upon each visit or by
prepayment.

The major suppliers of the healthcare products and services
segment are mainly distributors of medications and treatment
products and devices to the Group. The Group reached its
suppliers through referrals from agents and online platforms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RTwm ST

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)
Healthcare products and services (Cont’d)

The co-operated doctors and therapists have been provided with
training by the Group to understand the objective and services
of the healthcare products and services segment. Tailor-made
suggestions for health assessment and treatment solution will
be offered to different clients to cater for their individual needs.
Prime location, sound reputation, high hygiene standard, cozy
environment of the medical aesthetic centres together with the
advanced treatment devices are key factors to retain and attract
new clients. Online marketing such as social media is also a way of
promoting the healthcare products and services segment recently.
The Group from time to time source better treatment devices to be
provided to the clients so as to gain more positive feedbacks.

With the above competitive advantages and establishment of new
and enhanced networks in the PRC of the healthcare business, the
Group recorded a growth of over 27 times in terms of revenue in
this sector for the year ended 31 December 2020. It is expected
that the Group will devote more resources on this business to
further expand the healthcare products and services segment and
increase the market sharing by way of strengthening the client
base.

Healthcare has become a popular topic around the world in
recent years. The COVID-19 pandemic further arouses the pursuit
for health maintenance to the public. At the material time, the
COVID-19 pandemic was widely spread and lock down measures
were imposed by the government. Intensive online enquiry
services and talks for health promotion organized via social
media brought popularity to the healthcare products and services
segment. The Group was able to grasp the opportunity and laid
the foundation for the promotion of its healthcare products and
services segment. Upon relief of pandemic situation and relief of
the lock down measures in the second half of the year in the PRC,
increasing number of customers visited the centres for consuming
various health and beauty services, hence leading to a boost in the
performance of the healthcare products and services segment.

The Directors considered that the healthcare products and
services segment has great potential and it is the plan of the
Company to further expand this business. However, in view of the
recent slow down in the economy, the Company will keep an eye
on the latest development of market conditions from time to time
and adopt expansion measures in this segment which may include
opening more centres and/or co-operating with additional quality
service providers.

FH5mEE (&)
A 1EEEm RARE ()

BEBLEMEREMARNEEIEEHREZ - 8T
THAREEMRRBSMORE LRE - T
REFAEREHRESTENRRENGREREZ
o AHmEEEMNRE - BEXTP LML
EBM BESZEZ FLEKISEREFE -
BEESTEALE MHEBBHABREREA
ERSIFEFPHNERZRE - KEFEM LRSS
DELRTMAHRREEFELITHERSTE
BE e AEETKREBYAEFELEREM
MEFEFE:S  UWFREZLEOR -

BEAREEBH LABRFEE N EEPEHR
BMESBEEMNBEL RBE_T_FTF+=
AZT—HBLEFE  AKEEZ D BB etk
BE_tLEER AKEEBBERBEZE
BRUER  ZRBEATFERE-FERK
RFEEMMERBEDBEFLBAELT SN -

TER - BEMAREKARIREGE - MCOVID-19
BEEE-—SPRERNRERENE T - EHE
AEFE - COVID-19ZIB5EZEL A E
MRS HE - BMINEE EEBRE - WiER
MRERENEREERE  SARBRERK
RG> HBEZERE - REBEUIBKE - A
HEAEREAMBRBEIXBETER - ET
FFERREERREETAREGERRE - SRS
LZRFHBPLERSERERERNRY B
KIEREMREREDEBRRIFIEAE T -

EERR ABRFEMERBIBNENE
B MARBEE-—FHRZER - A -
ENMHHRALERE  ARAK—ERVE
EMANRMER  URDIERERZY
EHAUREERAREZPLOR HEELEER
RABGEERE A IE

10 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB wm ST

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)
Cosmetic products and services

The Group commenced its cosmetic products and services
segment since April 2014. The Group has its own branded
skincare and cosmetic products selling in the market of Hong
Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. The Group owns a brand called
Ascara. The skincare and cosmetic products of the brand include
facial and eye creams, serums, moisturizing spray,tonic water etc.
The brand applied biomedical technology to achieve rejuvenating
and anti-aging effect.

The Group, through the chain stores, distributors and duty-free
shops in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC, sells the products to
individual customers.

The competition of skincare and cosmetic market in the PRC
market has been intensified especially due to the rapid growth of
market sharing of the products from Korea.

Cell product and services

The Group, through its group companies in the PRC and Hong
Kong, is engaged in different cell related business by producing
and selling cell products and services to its customers since
August 2015.

The cell products and services business include (i) research and
development and applications of cell culture equipment and cell
products, as well as providing cell-related outsourcing technical
services; (ii) human cell separation, purification, cultivation,
amplification, storage and transportation, as well as the
development and production of automated closed cell bioreactors;
(iiiy cellular therapy, cell storage, genetic testing, biological agents
manufacturing; (iv) cell preparation processes for international
biotechnology companies, international pharmaceutical plants,
clinical application institutions and cell libraries in line with
international and domestic cell preparation quality standards, as
well as technology platforms for clinical application transformation
for the improvement and development of the cellular therapy in the
future; (v) developing cell culture devices, research and application
of cell-based products as well as outsourcing cell-based
services; (vi) the separation, isolation, expansion, cryo-storage
and transportation of human cells, as well as the development
and production of automated closed system cell expansion
equipments; and (vii) cell therapy, cell storage, genetic testing,
biological reagent manufacture and big medical data.

The customers of the Group are mainly obtained through
outpatient clinics, doctor recommendations, pregnant women’s
schools, confinement clubs and other channels. The Group’s
major customers are biotechnology companies, hospitals and
agents, which have mainly cooperated with the Group since 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RTwm ST

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group continues to strive for opportunity to widen its business
scope in the medicine industry and reallocate its resources when
appropriate, to strengthen and maintain as one of the leading
pioneers in the medical and related industries.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$185.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of
8.6 times from last year (2019: HK$19.4 million as restated). Gross
profit increased by 8.8 times to approximately HK$45.0 million
from last period (2019: HK$4.6 million as restated), whereas gross
profit margin decreased from 44% (as restated) of last year to
24% of this year. The Group recorded a loss for the year ended
31 December 2020 of approximately HK$438.8 million (2019:
HK$447.7 million).

The overall increase in revenue was primarily attributable to the
increase in revenue in the segment of healthcare products and
services. This was due to the extension of sales network in the
PRC.

During the year under review, the Group incurred a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$404.2
million, as compared to a loss of approximately HK$395.0 million
for last year. Loss for the Group increased from last year, which
was mainly attributable to the corresponding (i) decrease in
impairment loss of property, plant and equipments, goodwill,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$216.9 million; (i) increase in administrative and other
expenses of approximately HK$98.4 million; and (iii) write off of
deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries of HK$100 million. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the per share loss attributable to
the owners of the Company was HK$0.27 (for the year ended 31
December 2019: HK$0.51).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$185.4 million,
representing an increase of 88% as compared to last year (2019:
HK$98.8 million (as as restated)), which mainly attributed to
increase in staff costs, business development expenses.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Net Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of HK$57.5 million (2019: net current assets of HK$42.8
million) and net liabilities of HK$55.2 million (2019: net assets
of HK$17.6 million). The net current liabilities and net liabilities
was mainly attributable to the loss of the year from continuing
operations of approximately HK$289.7 million and the loss for
the year from discontinued operation of approximately HK$149.1
million incurred during the Reporting Period. The Board will
closely monitor the development and operation of the continuing
operating businesses and improve the financial position of the
Group.

With reference to note 3 to the financial statements, taking into
account the expected results of the arrangements and measures
discussed in the note 3 to the financial statements, the Board
believed that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its operating and financing needs as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$4.8 million (2019: HK$19.2 million).

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$143.6 million (2019: HK$344.0 million), while its
current liabilities stood at approximately HK$201.1 million (2019:
HK$301.2 million), representing a net current liabilities position
with a working capital ratio (current assets to current liabilities)
of 0.71 (2019: 1.14). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2020, calculated as total bank and other borrowings to
total equity was 0.5 (2019: 3.1).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Capital Structure

In April 2020, the Company issued convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$120,000,000 under specific
mandate pursuant to certain subscription and settlement
agreements dated 2 March 2020.

In May 2020, upon the completion of share placing, 500,000,000
new shares of the Company were issued at HK$0.2 per share
under specific mandate.

For details of the abovementioned placing of shares and issuance
of convertible bonds, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 2 March 2020, 21 April 2020 and 15 May 2020
and circular of the Company dated 27 March 2020.

In July 2020, the Company allotted and issued 200,000,000
ordinary shares to the holders of convertible bonds issued on 21
April 2020 pursuant to conversion notices received in respect of
the conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

In July 2020, the Company allotted and issued 400,000,000
ordinary shares to the holders of convertible bonds issued on
21 April 2020 pursuant to conversion notices in respect of the
conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

In September 2020, the Company allotted and issued
170,000,000 ordinary shares at a consideration of HK$0.2 per
share under general mandate pursuant to certain subscription and
settlement agreements dated 28 August 2020, details of which
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28
August 2020, 21 September 2020, 22 September 2020 and 30
September 2020.

In October 2020, the Company allotted and issued 230,000,000
ordinary shares at a consideration of HK$0.2 per share under
general mandate pursuant to certain subscription and settlement
agreements dated 8 October 2020, details of which were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 8 October
2020, 14 October 2020 and 19 October 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Capital Structure (Cont’d)

In December 2020, the Company issued convertible bonds
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$95,000,000 under
specific mandate pursuant to certain subscription and settlement
agreements dated 20 October 2020. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 20 October 2020,
7 December 2020 and 10 December 2020 and circular of the
Company dated 20 November 2020.

In December 2020, the Company allotted and issued 475,000,000
ordinary shares to the holders of convertible bonds issued on 10
December 2020, pursuant to conversion notices in respect of
the conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
$95,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy. To manage the liquidity risk,
the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from time
to time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The
Directors consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is manageable. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to
take prudent measures such as hedging when appropriate actions
are required.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 11 August 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Osibao International Limited (“Osibao”) to dispose
its entire equity interests in two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely, China Regenerative Medicine Tissue Engineering
Limited (“CRMT”) and China Regenerative Hospital Investment
Management Limited (“CRHI”) to Osibao for a total consideration
of HK$35,000,000 in cash (of which HK$23,491,772 and
HK$11,508,228 were attributed to sale of CRMT and CRHI
respectively). On 30 September 2020, the Group completed the
disposal of 100% equity interest in CRMT and CRHI and the
control of CRMT and CRHI were passed to the Osibao.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (CONT’D)

The Company had been continuously evaluating the current
businesses of the Group with an aim to streamline its businesses
for the purpose of increasing its overall performance and cost-
effectiveness, as well as to improve its financial performance in
light of its going concern. Having accumulated losses for the
previous years, the performance of each of CRMT and CRHI
were not satisfactory. The Company also considered that while
the future profitability of CRMT and CRHI’s businesses were not
expected to improve in the coming years, these businesses also
required higher capital injection and expenditure in comparison
with the Group’s other businesses. In light of such factors and
taking into account the cash flow position of the Group at the
material time, the Directors considered it was not cost-effective
to maintain the businesses of CRMT and CRHI and they were
accordingly disposed of. Further details of the aforementioned
disposals and the reasons therefor were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 11 August 2020, 1 September
2020 and 8 September 2020 respectively, the Company’s circular
dated 12 September 2020, and the relevant financial impact are
set out in note 8 and note 43 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no material
acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital and other R-_ZE-—EF+-_A=+—H  KEEHER
commitments as follows: NEAMAERT
2020 2019
—ECEF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHIT
Capital commitments for property, BEAWME - RENREREEINEYE :
plant and equipment:
Contracted but not provided for: EHENEES T
Purchase of property, BEWE  BEL&RE
plant and equipment 1,509 654
Total Bt 1,509 654
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CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the
University of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and
tissue engineering. The Company agreed to provide GBP9
million (equivalent to HK$93 million) to the University of Oxford
by instalments over the period covered by agreements. Up to
31 December 2020, the Company has paid GBP5.05 million
(equivalent to HK$55.90 million (2019: GBP5.05 million (equivalent
to HK$55.90 million)) to the University of Oxford. As the
agreements are executory, no liability should be recognised at the
date of signing of the agreements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save for the Company’s investment in various subsidiaries, the
Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2020.

CHARGES OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material charge of
assets or contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
concrete plans for material investment or capital assets as at
31 December 2020. However, the Group will continue to seek
investment opportunities in line with the strategic development of
the Group both at home and abroad to promote the sustainable
and steady development of the Group.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 172 (2019: 213)
employees located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an
equal opportunity employer, the Group’s remuneration and
bonus policies are determined with reference to the performance
and experience of individual employees. The total amount of
employee remuneration (including that of the Directors and
retirement benefits scheme contributions) of the Group for the
year was approximately HK$115.8 million (31 December 2019:
HK$70.3 million). In addition, the Group may offer share options
to employees as a recognition of and reward for their efforts and
contributions to the Group.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as set out in note 46 to the financial statements, there has
been no other material event affecting the Group since the end of
the reporting period.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
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Mr. Wang Chuang (“Mr. Wang Chuang”), aged 41, is an
executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the
Board. Mr. Wang Chuang joined the Group in October 2019. Mr
Wang Chuang was accredited as a grade 1 health management
professional by the Hubei Provincial Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of China in May 2016 and a
psychological consultant by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of China in March 2019. He served as the
chairman of Hong Kong Bomei (China) Company Limited* (& /818
FE /B A F)) between 2008 and 2019. Between 2015 and 2019,
he acted as the chief executive officer of Changzhou XingKong
Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (EMMEEEEERFIZ AR A F]) and
the chairman of Jiangsu Xingkong Health Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.* (IL# 2 = R EEA M AR A R]). He served as a senior
executive of Jiangsu Zhenai Company Limited* (T#EEBR A
7)) between 2006 and 2008, a senior executive of Wuxi Shencai

and a senior executive of Changzhou Meichen Company Limited*
(BMERABMRAFT) between 2002 and 2004. Mr. Wang Chuang
is the president of the Chamber of Commerce of Changzhou
Lishui* (B MNEKE & & K) and the vice president of the China’s
National Alliance for Maternal and Child Health Development* (&
Blim4h 2 IR E R B B). He was a committee member of the
Organization Committee of the 2017 Boao Forum for Biomedical
Sciences 017FHE LAY ESmIEMALEZ E§E) and the founder
of Bomei Angel Charity Fund* (8= X (FZEZE%).

for identification purposes only
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5= NEETTBRAEBN

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 35, is a non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in January
2020. Mr. Tsang was admitted as a solicitor in Australia and
Hong Kong in May 2012 and December 2013, respectively. Mr.
Tsang is currently a senior associate of Stevenson, Wong & Co.,
specialising in corporate finance and commercial law. Mr. Tsang
obtained a bachelor in laws degree and a bachelor in commerce
(accounting) degree, both from the University of Melbourne,
Australia in August 2008. Mr. Tsang obtained a master in laws
degree from the University of Melbourne, Australia in August 2010.
Mr. Tsang obtained the postgraduate certificate in laws from the
City University of Hong Kong in July 2011. Since May 2019, Mr.
Tsang has been the company secretary of Mabpharm Limited,
a biopharmaceutical company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 2181). As a company secretary, he has been
responsible for company secretarial matters for the said company.
Since November 2019, Mr. Tsang has been the joint company
secretary and authorised representative of Sunshine 100 China
Holdings Ltd, a real estate development company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2608), where he
is responsible for company secretarial matters. From November
2018 to July 2019, Mr. Tsang has been appointed as the company
secretary of Sino Energy International Holdings Group Limited, a
company engaged in the operation of gas stations listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1096). From
January 2019 to November 2019, Mr. Tsang has been appointed
as the company secretary of Moody Technology Holdings Limited,
a company engaged in manufacturing and sales of fabrics and
yarns listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 1400). From February 2020 to February 2021, Mr. Tsang
has been appointed as the company secretary and the authorised
representative of Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited, a
mobile game and packaging company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1439). Since January 2021, Mr.
Tsang has been operated as the joint company secretory of Sundy
Service Group Co., Ltd, an integrated property management
service provider company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9608).

for identification purposes only
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Dr. Fang Jun (“Dr. Fang”), aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He is also the chairman
of each of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit committee.
Dr. Fang joined the Group in December 2017. He served as
an executive member and the executive vice-chairman of the
Cross-straits Medicine Exchange Association* (/& I iy = 5§ %k
BERZ R E), an executive member and the vice-chairman of
China Sexology Association* (FEIMERLE), the publisher and the
executive chief editor of the China Sexology Journal* (€ & B 14
Tl 2 )) and the deputy head of the Sexology Research Center
of Peking University Health Science Center* (1t X K 23 88 EA TR
B 5 0. Dr. Fang also assumed various positions such as
the executive member and the secretary general of Wu Jieping
Medical Foundation (R[&FE 2 E$=). Dr. Fang graduated from
Peking University Health Science Center with a master’s degree in
Social Medicine and Health Service Management and a doctorate
degree in Epidemiology and Health Statistics. Dr. Fang also served
as an independent non-executive director of HongDa Financial
Holding Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (1822.
HK) from July 2014 to May 2018.

Ms. Huo Chunyu (“Ms. Huo”), aged 46, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huo joined the Group in
January 2020. Ms. Huo obtained a bachelor degree from Hebei
University of Economics and Business (A[1b4X 2 K &), She has
over 20 years of commercial and professional experience with
companies including the Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Hebei Branch (B LgiR77)70 4t % 9 17), Shijiazhuang
Haowei Optoelectronic Thin Film Technology Co., Ltd (AZR i 5
BB EREM AR A F]) and Hebei Youyuan Certified Public
Accountants (Rt B IR RIS 5 AT). Since September 2012, she
has been a Partner of Ruihua Certified Public Accountants (&

REIETE

Ms. Yang Ying (“Ms. Yang”), aged 49, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Yang joined the Group
in October 2019. Ms. Yang has been a member of the Beijing
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999 and is a
certified public accountant of the People’s Republic of China.
Since August 2014, Ms. Yang has served as the managing partner
of the Beijing branch of Shanghai Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) (- & @5t S/ FT(EFRZ B A IN).
Between September 2005 and September 2011, Ms. Yang was
a shareholder, the chairlady and the chief accountant of Beijing
Jiuzhou Haotian Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. (bR AN E X & 56D
EEMARETAT). Ms. Yang obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from Asia International Open University
(Macau) in December 2010.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”), i.e. from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. The Group believes that high
standard of corporate governance provides a framework and
solid foundation for achieving, attracting and retaining the high
standard and quality of the Group’s management, promoting
high standards of sound internal control, accountability and
transparency to all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
and also meeting the expectations of the Group’s various
stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“CG Code”) throughout the Reporting Period, with the exception
of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. As Mr. Wang Chuang was
appointed as both the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company, following the resignation of Mr. Wang Xuejun as
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company on
9 July 2020, such practice deviates from code provisions A.2.1 of
the CG Code. The Board believes that vesting the roles for both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company in the
same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In
addition, under the supervision of the Board which comprised
of one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to
protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
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CODES AND POLICIES
Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing
Rules as the required standard for securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
the Directors, has confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standards of dealings regarding securities transaction by
the Directors as set out on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
Reporting Period.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely
and understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal
reporting; and accountability for adherence to the code. The
Code of Ethics is also intended to promote the ethical standards
of all the employees, officers and Directors in the workplace,
and advocate high standards of professional conduct and work
performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Composition

Details of the membership of the Board together with their
roles and functions are posted on the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website and such information shall be updated as
soon as practicable whenever there are changes.

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board had five Directors, including
one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuang (chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (member of the Remuneration

Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Fang Jun (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee and member of
the Audit Committee)

(member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committeg)

(chairman of the Audit Committee,
member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee)

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Ms. Yang Ying

Biographical details of each director are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executives” on pages
18 to 20 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

° establish the strategic direction and development of the
Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals,
investment and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and
integrity of internal controls, risk management, financial
reporting and compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination
Committee and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the
CG Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest
financials with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and M&A, is
appropriate for the businesses of the Company. The Board will
review its composition from time to time taking into consideration
of the specific needs for the overall Company and its subsidiaries’
businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for updating the Board on governance
and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
ensuring that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all Directors participated
in continuous professional development and had provided the
Company with records (if any) on their participation. The individual
training record of each Director for the Reporting Period is set out
below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Mr. Wang Chuang
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin
Dr. Fang Jun

Ms. Huo Chunyu
Ms. Yang Ying

>>>> >
sslvvllvs M vellvs)
00000

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/
workshops organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/
magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to
the latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable
legal and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and
responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate
activities, which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third
of the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
Directors who will retire at the annual general meeting of the
Company shall be those appointed by the Board during the year
and not being re-appointed at a general meeting thereafter during
the year, and those who have been the longest in office since their
last election or re-election.

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in
relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects.

Accounting Policy

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently applied, and that all applicable accounting standards
are followed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)
Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent or detect fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Board and General Meetings

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and organises additional meetings as and when
required. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen
days is given of a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an
opportunity to attend.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time
is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held 22
meetings, of which 4 were regular meetings. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the Reporting Period:

Espg

Name of Directors

EEE(HE)
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HESENZEETR  RENGERHERE
LB - RBERHE EFGHRET2RE
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HEHRRLFEERZBR

Attendance/
Number of

Board Meetings
entitled to attend

Attendance/
Number of
General Meetings
entitled to attend

(From 1 January 2020 to (ZZ=Z5-f—-RHZ R/ BRLRE HE/ BRLRE
31 December 2020) —E-ZEF+-RA=+—-A) REALEE EEee5¥A
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Wang Chuang IE%EE 77 22/22
Mr. Wang Xuejun (resigned on 9 July 2020) F—ﬁ%i( “E-TELANBEHE) 4/4 8/8
Mr. Qiu Bin (appointed on 20 May 2020 and BREE(RZE_SFRA-THEZE:

resigned on 29 December 2020) TR=F=F i‘l‘ AZTNAEE) 4/4 14/14
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wu Weiliang (resigned on 29 December 2020) 2R %4

(RZZZZFTZAZTNAEHE) 7 22/22
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (appointed on 30 January 2020) &&E %4+
(RZZ_TE-A=1TRHEZME) 6/6 19/19

Dr. Ray Yip (resigned on 30 January 2020) EEBL(M_Z-TF—A=TH&EMT) 2/2 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHITES
Dr. Fang Jun HfEEL 717 22/22
Ms. Huo Chunyu EEExT

(appointed on 30 January 2020) (R-Z-_ZE-R=+HEZMT) 6/6 19/19
Ms. Yang Ying BERT 77 22/22
Ms. Wang Danjuan (resigned on 30 January 2020) FRHEZ+H(R-E-FF— A=+ HET) 1/1 1/1
Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed ZEFEXHREBRESTESE K AHMLE

period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In
addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary prepares minutes and/or written
resolutions and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The Company Secretary
also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

As explained in the section “Corporate Governance Practices”
Mr. Wang Chuang was appointed as both the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company, following the resignation of
Mr. Wang Xuejun as executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company on 9 July 2020, practice deviates from code
provisions A.2.1 of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and are subject
to re-election. All non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a term of two years
and they are required to retire by rotation and re-election at the
general meeting of the Company following their appointments in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision D.3 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Company in accordance with the written terms of reference
adopted by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall
have the following duties and responsibilities for performing the
corporate governance duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions and disclosure in the corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
from time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory
requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper
corporate governance structure of the Company. It is primarily
responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. Under
the Board, there are currently 3 subcommittees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the
Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

R E BB

RECXRERTUNZTAMERXED3MK  ES
SEARBEFENR _ZE—_F=A+HBAKRM
MEMBEXLERERTARAZEEE AR
B -EEQRBETARRZEXEESRAETE
BENATBAEREL

o HTERBFAQR M
REER

RXERHREERL

e RIMEREFLEMAEEAENEIR
SEEXER

e RIAMERARAGEETEEREERT
HEABRRER

e HE BEEKERESEREZHIRTER
kafiFMmmE) : &

s BMIAXARAEBTTAEXNBERARERR
AIERPEREARENRE -

REBEHE EXeFEREFTSERTRL
REBEEMEERETREH AR RNBER &
B BT L RERREE -

EERRE

EECRAMIRARARY —ERHZIERE
ARE - EFEXTERABER/AKERTIES
HIERRE  EERRREERR - EFEHET
RE-lZEge HEXZEE REAZE®
EHMEES  ZZESREBEEBERERET
AEBHZBE IHHEFTSEESIRER
ABZHETE-

2020 3 PEEEBERARERAR 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

;LI/_/\—A—\

1E3= &I:l

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three
members who must be non-executive directors only, and the
majority thereof must be independent non-executive directors,
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Audit Committee has been established since 4
July 2001 with written terms of reference which was revised on
16 March 2016 in compliance with the code provision C.3.3 and
C.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Audit Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

Ms. Yang Ying has served as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least 4
times a year.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

° to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements and the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)y  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(vij  compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

° to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems and ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control
system;

o to consider major investigations findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response;

° to review the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditors to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board
will provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

° to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once
with the external auditor without the presence of the management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 March
2020, six months ended 30 June 2020, nine months ended 30
September 2020 and audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The quorum of meeting of the Audit Committee shall be any
two members. During the Reporting Period, 4 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control of the Group. The following
table shows the attendance of the members of Audit Committee
at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the Reporting
Period:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings entitled

Name of Audit Committee BERZEERERE to attend

(From 1 January 2020 to (ZZE=ZTF—A—HZ HE/ BREE

31 December 2020) “EZTF+ZA=1+—R) 23 8E

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Ms. Yang Ying (chairman of Audit Committee) BEXL(FEZRELRE) 4/4

Dr. Fang Jun HAEEL 4/4
Ms. Wang Danjuan Iﬂﬁ%ﬁt

(resigned on 30 January 2020) (RZZB_ZF—-A=1HEE) 0/0
Ms. Huo Chunyu %%Eﬁt

(appointed on 30 January 2020) (RZZE=TF—-F=+HEZHT) 4/4

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details
and are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the
case may be, for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the conclusion of the meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

According to code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005
with written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March
2016 in compliance with code provision A.5.2 of the CG code.

During Reporting Period, all members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has served as chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the
Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the
Board on its proceedings and recommendations after each
meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of
the Nomination Committee were held to review and recommend
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board.
Altogether the members of the Board bring a wide range of
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knowledge and experience to the Board, which contributes to & &} 7| }E%é/\ ek ENREHBERIRERE
the effective direction of the Company. The following table shows EB&&Z 215
the attendance of the members of Nomination Committee at the
meetings of the Nomination Committee held during the Reporting
Period:
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Nomination Committee REZESRERSE to attend
(From 1 January 2020 to (Z2-ZF¥—-HA—HZE HEBRHE
31 December 2020) —E-TF+-A=+—H) SRME
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Dr. Fang Jun (chairman of Nomination Committee) HEBLT(IEEZEEeEE) 2/2
Ms. Yang Ying HEZ+ 2/2
Ms. Wang Danjuan FAHEZ T
(resigned on 30 January 2020) (RZZE_ZTF—-A=1THEIE) 0/0

Ms. Huo Chunyu
(appointed on 30 January 2020)

EEEZL
(RZB-_ZF—-A=+HEZE)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors.
The Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July
2005 with written terms of reference which was revised on 16
March 2016 in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the CG
code.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has served as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the skill,
knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights,
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation
as to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
the Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate
goals and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of
those individual Directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

38

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer
contributions to Provident Fund) of each executive Director/
senior management is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, taking into account the performance of the
individual, the inflation price index and information from
independent sources on the rates of salary for similar jobs in
a selected group of comparable organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined
by the Board after considering the individual’s relative
performance against the comparable organisations. The
fees paid/payable to the non-executive Directors take
into account factors such as effort and time spent, and
responsibilities of these Directors.

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management.
The criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved
from certain aspects of the Group’s business activities
against targets, together with an assessment of corporate
and individual’s performance during the Reporting Period.
Bonuses payable to the executive Directors/senior
management are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board to ensure alignment of their
interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees,
suppliers and customers. The terms of the scheme are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. The movement of
share options under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 14 September 2011 during the Reporting
Period is set out in the section headed “Share Options” in the
Directors’ Report and note 37 to the financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by
the Company in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

The quorum of meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management. The following
table shows the attendance of the members of Remuneration
Committee at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held
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during the Reporting Period:

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings entitled

Name of Remuneration Committee FHNEEEREHE to attend

(From 1 January 2020 to (ZE=F5—H—HZ HE BRELE

31 December 2020) —F-FF+-A=1t—H) 2R¥E
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Dr. Ray Yip (resigned on 30 January 2020) %ﬂ;ﬁt(ﬁ’\_ E_TF—HA=1THET) 1/1
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin LGB L

(appointed on 30 January 2020) (R=—ZE-_ZF—F=1+HEZT) 11

Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITESE

Dr. Fang Jun i &iEL 2/2

Ms. Yang Ying HEZ+ 2/2
Ms. Wang Danjuan Eﬂfﬁi

(resigned on 30 January 2020) (RZZE-_ZEF—A=+HEHT) 1/1
Ms. Huo Chunyu EREEXL

(appointed on 30 January 2020)

(R=Z-ZEF—A=1THEZT)
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
development and accounts for such when making decisions.
Following the resignation of Mr. Qiu Bin on 29 December 2020,
Mr. Wang Chuang was appointed as compliance officer of the
Company on 29 December 2020. The compliance officer is
directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with
the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial
year an issuer’s company secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the Reporting
Period, the Company Secretary has complied with the rule by
taking more than 15 hours of relevant training courses and
seminars.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, auditor’s remuneration
of HK$950,000 (2019: HK$1,665,000) was charged to the
Group. Among such fee, HK$950,000 (2019: HK$1,135,000)
was charged for the audit service provided by MCM (HK) CPA
Limited, the existing auditor of the Company who was appointed
on 7 December 2020 (2019: HK$1,135,000 was charged for
the audit services provided by BDO Limited, the then auditor of
the Company.) During the year, the fee for non-audit services
provided by MCM (HK) CPA Limited was Nil (2019: HK$200,000
provided by BDO Limited relating to a proposed open offer of the
Company).
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
internal control system includes policies and procedures and limits
of authority governing the authority level and business processes.
It is designed to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The system is intended to manage rather than to
eliminate or eradicate risks.

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires.
Identified risks have been further assessed and evaluated by
the Management across the business lines. The risks have been
evaluated in terms of their impacts and the likelihood of their
occurrences. As part of the evaluation process, the risks have
been prioritized based on the evaluation results. Follow up action
on key identified risks are being taken by the management.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management
structure in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that
defines the three layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight,
risk monitoring and review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal
audit department. The third line of defense is responsible for
the independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems. The external auditor
of the Group further complements the third line of defense by
independently auditing material internal controls over the Group’s
financial reporting processes and reports on material control
weaknesses to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT’D)

Internal Control

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee
and the Board with useful information and recommendations on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system. During the Report Period under review, internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board for
review with recommendations adopted to further enhance the
effectiveness of the internal controls. During the Reporting Period,
the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and considered them to
be effective and adequate.

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@) access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b)  pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) notification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON GOING
CONCERN, MITIGATION MEASURE AND
AUDITORS’ DISCLAIMER OPINION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred a loss
of approximately HK$404,226,000 attributable to owners of the
Company and as at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$57,481,000 and
HK$55,150,000 respectively. While the Group only maintained
cash and cash equivalents of HK$4,767,000. These conditions,
together with others described in Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

However, a number of measures have been undertaken to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, to refinance
its operations and to restructure its liabilities. For further details
of these plans and measures, please refer to Note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements. Should the Group fail to achieve
the abovementioned plans and measures, it might not be able
to continue operate as a going concern, and adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Thus, the Board wishes to draw the attention of the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) to the section headed
“Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” as contained in the Independent
Auditor’s Report dated 31 March 2021 issued by the Company’s
auditors, McM (HK) CPA Limited, now contained in pages 92 to 94
of this annual report. On the basis set out therein, the auditor does
not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As explained in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”, the auditor’s
disclaimer of opinion was principally caused by the material
uncertainties relating to going concern. Such uncertainties
were not resolved as at 31 December 2020 primarily due to the
validity of which depends upon the Group being able to achieve
successful outcomes of the plans and measures as set forth in
Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON GOING
CONCERN, MITIGATION MEASURE AND
AUDITORS’ DISCLAIMER OPINION (CONT’D)

The members of the Audit Committee had critically reviewed
the basis for disclaimer of opinion, the management’s position
concerning the basis for disclaimer of opinion and measures taken
by the Company for addressing the basis for disclaimer of opinion.
The Audit Committee agreed with the management’s position
based on the reasons above. Moreover, the Audit Committee
requested the management to take all necessary actions to
address the effect on the basis for disclaimer of opinion to procure
no such disclaimer of opinion to be made in the next financial
year. The Audit Committee had also discussed with the auditor
regarding the financial position of the Group, measures taken
and to be taken by the Company, and considered the auditor’s
rationale and understood their consideration in arriving the
disclaimer of opinion.

Thus, the Board and Audit Committee agreed with the views
of the management and the auditors regarding the uncertainty
of going concern. There is no disagreement by the Board, the
management nor the Audit Committee with the position taken by
the Company’s auditor regarding the disclaimer of opinion. The
Directors will continue to use their best efforts to protect and
uphold the Company’s best interest to achieve the outcomes as
set forth in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements. The
Directors and management will proactively resolve matters relating
to disclaimer of opinion throughout the financial year 2021.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders
or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or
investors may be put to the Board through the following channels
to the Company Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Suite 2310-18,
Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong
Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3918 9089;
3. By fax at (852) 3168 8666; or
4. By email at sheena.chan@crmi.hk

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated
and key information of the Group available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and
its Shareholders and investors; and (v) the Company’s share
registrars in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all
share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors
with high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear and detailed information
of the Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders
through the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim
and annual reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.

REEBERRRER

ARABRERRLRREEZER - ARAME
RERBBREARREREEZEERARRLZ
KB BMEBRRIREERHNEARER K
RIREEABBATREANARMELHL

RRXEFEG

1. BEEARRBRWER it ABFELD
MH o BB 1829 ERBE AN/E2310-18%

2. & (852) 3918 9089 :
3. [EEZE(852) 3168 8666 : 5k
4.  FEIH ZEsheena.chan@crmi.hk

ARAMAZEEABARENRRLKES
BEARAZRE - WERBEEONTEFE
PEIRFRERS  (VRITRRAFAS AR
ARG BRETHRRELEAUAMEEZER
MBHHFE  (INRNBIARARABUEER
AEBEZRFEZEM  (VARABUHE/RN
NRABEEABEREREEBBIRE  RVAR
AZBEERNBPERREABRREEMA KK
BREH-

ARAEEREBRRAREEFLSEERE
FHBERE BEFERNBEBRERXF
REE PHERFERE  BER - BEREM
NE - EHRRREMBEW FERANEZA
SEER -

2020 Fi} PHBELBEHEERAT 45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AL A S/
THEERRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting (for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
will be given). The Chairman as well as chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, the Directors are available to
answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s businesses at the
meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
He should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
The management will ensure the external auditor to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders
have statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and
put forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

According to the Company’s articles of association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. General meetings may also be convened on the
written requisition of any one member of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by the share
registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are published
on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

REEBFBENRKRRERN (&)

ARBANFKEMEBR 2 BR REsE - L EE
BRI ZEE ° ANQ A JFE B AR R b EBUR
BFERE  BEENAERTAIRD R20ME%
LEABL - EZFNUNRBEZZES  REZ
BEehFHZBE eI Rm(MESRELFRE
ARER)IRELRERRAAARERK
e - REBTERERTAZTAMRNEE.2
fF EFEETRAHFERRAEFKRE AR
FEZ FH RERREMEAZES (HE
RIMEFHE - ERE TS BRI EZEE
FRERBEFARE OEBBEXIE  ZHW
WEZRERAT  SETERE - A RZEE A
BUMERE 2BERRFRATENEHARK
RERIAE  LREFEHBRREE -

REARAMAZERMAD  BRASAELIM
MEFALBRRNETERMAR > BEEXR
AREARANEBNEERZRE(HMARQF
THRELAETENERE - MIREMMRER)
ETIHAAENEIZAZFTHLTABRAR
T EZFFRAREKEZRZAAREAR
AMERARABRRARGEREENTOR+2
Z—BREAR - RRAE A EARF [ —
ARR(A—HRAAEEM(HERBANEE
BRMAR  EREBRAXEARANETEN
TERFR(AMARRATBERELATERE
2 AIREMKSFE)  EFIAAENEER
FRFHITABRARE  EZFRARERER
KZBARERRAMERERAGRERN
TAIRTDZ—BRBRA BESHARF R
MBFELRRE  BEREERSERBIMEK
RRBHILEE -

46 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A e s
EEAWMS

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Suite 2310-18, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (ii) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/
documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed
by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and
consent of publication of his/her personal data. The period for
lodgement of the Notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient
time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the
Candidate as a Director without adjourning the general meeting,
Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as soon as
practicable, say at least 10 business days prior to the date of the
general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness to comply with the code provision E.1.4 of the CG
code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website (www.crmi.hk) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”) are
pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “Reporting Period”) and express commitment of the Group
to sustainability. This is the fifth ESG Report of the Group which
discloses the management, policies, performance, targets and
feedbacks of the business in providing services of the Group in
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong in relation
to sustainable development. The Group would like to take this
opportunity to present ESG performance to all investors and
stakeholders, and put forward the commitments and contributions
on social responsibility.

Report Compilation Basis

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide enclosed
in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to fulfil
all general disclosure requirements. For details of the Group’s
financial performance and corporate governance issues, please
refer to the previous sections of the annual report of which this
ESG Report forms a part of.

The following principles guides the preparation of our ESG Report:

(1)  Materiality: issues are evaluated and discussed based on its
impact on our Group’s operations and businesses and our
stakeholders.

(2) Quantitative: we measure our sustainability impact
using quantitative data where appropriate and provide
comparative information to show the bigger picture.

(3) Consistency: any material changes in type of data used or
the way that data is disclosed will be indicated for clarity and
meaningful comparison with past ESG reports.
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Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in this ESG Report were
prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy documents
and other internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no
false or misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on several assumptions and expectations at the time of its
publication. Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to
be reliable after internal reviewing process. The statements consist
of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that
that actual results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and
conclusions made herein. No guarantee is expressed as to the
accuracy of the statements and the Group expressly disclaims any
liability for and assume no responsibility to correct or update those
forward-looking statements in the event that any of the statements
does not materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

OVERVIEW

The Group is strongly committed to sustainability and as
such we strive to implement related principles and strategies
throughout our businesses. The Board, working closely with senior
management, is responsible for the formulation of our overall
sustainability policies and the continual evaluation and adjustment
of these policies as our businesses grow and develop.

The Board identifies, evaluates and manages sustainability issues
by looking the current legal and regulatory requirements and
industry practices, engaging with various stakeholders and closely
monitoring our operations. We also monitor our progress on such
issues by reviewing quantitative information on a comparative
basis in order to better guide our sustainability policies.
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OUR VALUE

To become a global
leading force in medical
innovation
RIS E A B2 ET
Bl - 5|BEIR
BTN

To develop cutting-
edge medical products
and technologies with a

focus on innovation in
regeneration medicine
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A value-creating business — this is what the Group aims to be.
The Group achieves this goal by leveraging the biological science g g f& »

HMBNEE

To become one
of the pioneers in tissue
engineering and
bio-medical industry in China
B AR B Y AE 4 A2 AN
EMBEERSTRZ —

Strive to enhance health
and improve quality

of life
BB E MR ALERY
EVETIEREE

To lead a new era into

the construction of
human’s organs and

tissues from tissue

engineering development
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research competence to create a positive impact to the world. The g4 5 - Attt RADBSTE R L) S E - AL E N
research contributes the society by catalyzing bio-pharmaceutical  gc 7S #e dh A 4 82 A 2 3R - B e d
research and development. The services make biological sciences & &t o % {79 & IR 75 7] 5 24 45 55 A ¥ 5 4 7% 95 72
research more efficient by shortening the time required for R pr= g @ 2S5 YRS KR « Z4F
biotechnology research procedures. Since the Group is brave 5@ COREBENAIFHNES  AEERIHERS

in taking innovative steps, it has contributed to breakthroughs

BEMEVREBMAERYE  TOTBELEE

in medical and biological science research over the years — thus @ 0

living out our value.
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation with regard to the
Group’s corporate social responsibility model, shown in below,
on different aspects, including stakeholder communication,
environmental protection, employee welfare, health and safety, fair
operation, social contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Stakeholder Communication

K EBE

Environmental Protection
RIFHRE

Employee Welfare

BEEF

Health and Safety

BERZE

CRMI
hEIE B

EPWEEGE)
FEEREF L EETES

RE  HEeRERREFANBTAEETS

ﬁ%ﬁ@é&ﬁﬁ @%h@%%L %%ﬁ
- EERH - BRETYE - AFEE - -

aﬁ&%%T#fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Fair Operation
N ME

Social Contribution

HEERE

Maintain Sustainability

ERUEEER
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model
(Cont’d)

The Group continually strengthens communication and
relationship with investors. Designated senior management
personnel keep close communication with shareholders and
investors through email, teleconference, one-to-one meetings,
participation in broker forums and non-trading roadshow or other
forms, so as to ensure shareholders and investors can get latest
information of the Group in a fair and timely manner, helping
them make investment decisions. The Group will give a detailed
and timely response to inquiries from investors. The Group has
made a materiality evaluation to identify material matters in the
Group’s businesses which have significant influence on economy,
environment and society, and are most important for stakeholders.
In accordance with evaluation results, the Group hopes to
make the commitments and undertake the responsibilities to all
stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent
and innovative employees who deliver quality services to the
clients and business partners and make worthwhile contributions
to several stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups
of stakeholders that are related to its main business. These
stakeholders include customers, employees, government, media
and shareholders/investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the
long-term success and sustainable development. The Group
will increase the involvement of stakeholders via constructive
conversation in order to achieve long-term prosperity.

BRMNEEGE)
REER I F M EEFER ()

AEEFENREEREENBARBR - &
ETEREEAEBRBERN BEGH —H—
EH HFEELEARGLIXRFIBEFTH AR
BREREERFBEZBR  NERBRRE
BERARNFT  REHEIRNEERFTEMNU
BB REFLRERE - ARESHREEN
EHFLFERERNORE - AEEDETE
ZUHFEABNRRAEEEBREE - BB
FitghHAEEARENSTHERYFOEM
EERREENEHR REFHEER  A5H
HEEMBRNEERAEARAESE -

FOENSERERM

AEEAARBORDBEREXBOASER
REBERN MEPLEBEBHEHREDR
BRHAKEZETRODEFLBEEBENER
MER -

AEBEELRE MBS MAEETEXZBOHEEN
RfBhELIM - ZERFNERREEF - EE -
BT - HEBERRREE -

AEEBRRFNENE R DERYKI MATHF
BRROBER AKEKEBEREHFEZM
FHENZ2E NERRMERER -
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STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT AND BFOENSEREEM(E)
MATERIALITY (CONT’D)

Stakeholder Communication Channels

BHE BEEE

Customers 1. Company news updates

BF NEFTEEH

2.  Conference
&

3. Customer Service Hotline

B RA AR

4. Email, facsimile and phone contacts
EH - SARBEME TR

Employees 1. E-malil
E&8 B I
2. Internal website
A0 4
3.  Regular meetings
ple
Government 1. Cooperate with the government and regulatory authorities on
BUF compliance inspections

EABMAMEERBNARRE

2. Conference
/\Ai
= A

3.  Email, facsimile and phone contacts

B BEREFEBKT

Media 1. Company website
e NSNS
2.  Press releases
hE M
Shareholders/Investors 1. Annual General Meeting
BRR"REE REBFRE
2.  Company news updates
NCIE LS

3.  Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BE  FELEHEBE TN

4. HKEx Website: Announcements, Notices, Reports, etc.
EEBRGEE  RE - BE  BRES

[5)h Press releases
FEE M
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group recognizes the importance of good environmental
stewardship and is committed to protect and conserve the
environment. The Group hopes that the concept of environmental
sustainability lies in all aspects of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price and
environmental impact when consuming resources and materials.
The Group is closely monitoring the energy consumption and
water consumption through the concept that it is part of the
communication priorities to educate staffs on the rationale of
environmentally friendly choices, and for making them available.

As principal operation is based in the PRC, the Group is principally
subject to the PRC environmental laws and regulations such as
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (Ff# A R 2 MEIIR 5 (R
#7%), Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the
PRC (F#ZEARKMBKIFEIAE), and Law on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC (FF# A R AN
Bl K& 54 5787%). The senior management team are delegated
to perform the maintenance of the Group’s sustainability. The
representatives of each operational department, will actively
manages business in an environmentally and socially responsible
manner. The Group will meet annually to review the key processes
and identify possible aspects underlying the operation of such
department. The senior management team will also discuss on any
significant aspects identified, and design measures accordingly.
These measures will be documented for reference to ensure
effective implementation.

“TERR - g NERmE

RiE
AEERBIRITNREEENEEN W
NRERE AEEFEREAFELRENE

SEANAEEENSERER -

ERME r EHRERAMEBANREK  A&E
HARNHEREE BERMREFENTE - K
SETYETERREREREKE - MZEIR
RAEBHETETRFREEMR I LEAEI
MEZREZ— -

HRAAEBTEAPREE  HAEEETEE
SFHREIRBERRER - P E AR LN
RIEREE - PEARKEMBE AT EBEER

FEARAMBARTSEEEE SRAERE
EFREREERAEENAFELER - K4

Eﬁl%Z&%FﬁﬁM%%&ﬂﬁAﬁﬁz
FREBERK AEEESFRITSHZUNRT
FERBEENEEIMINEEATRSRNE
B -afREEEBERRMERAMENNERNER
EmETHmEGTHERE ZEBREET
BIE2EBRBUER °
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse impact
of the businesses on the environment. The efforts being made
throughout the Reporting Period can be concluded as follows:

R (&)

AEENRREBRRBEBHRENINZE
BRERK AKERBEHEAENTIERE
LIl

Practice
iR

1. Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment
B REL S ARFHRER

2.  Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection

BTBRBRERBAER  EZR REREX

3.  Creation of an environment for sustainable development
BET I ERRNBE

4.  Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment

RETRHEBBRERENE

5.  Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel

WMAOEBERNER - BERME R

6. Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste

A BEREL - WA R BE B RERLETT B IR EIR B A

7. Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of conserving

energy and reducing waste

EREF - RWMERMEOER L - SERAREME - SRR ER

8. Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative effects

due to the Group’s development and the environment

ANEENERBREE  BROMERAAKENBERVRBEXNEATZE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted
comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental
management situations of all controlling subsidiaries to facilitate
the improvement and promotion of controlling subsidiaries on
environmental management, and demanded the completion of
its construction and implementation with stipulated deadlines,
ensuring effective sustainable development of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, there was no environmental pollution
incident in the Group.

RBmEHHE  AEEYMAZERNEB QAR
SEERNER T 2BEANRE  REEK
MBARERFEERTEMNNERRES  BRH
TREERBIRBENER  ARERAEEN
AREER - -NBEHRHE AEERELEM
RIF)SREMN -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) RIBE(E)
A(l) Emission All) BEHY
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s BE-_Z-_ZF+-A=1+—RHILFE -
types of emissions and respective emissions data are ZIKEIEFBM%E*EEUH BEE BB T &
showed as below: TR -
2020 2019 Increase/
—ECEE —E-NE (Decrease)
Emission Data Emission Data Percentage
Types of Emissions (approximately) (approximately) Unit  (approximately)
#,/ GRd)
R zER BB (Q) HEEE Q) By Bat(4)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) B&L ¥ 103.13 110.90 Kg T3 (7%)
Sulfur Dioxide (SOx) FR &AL 0.18 0.30 Kg 7 (39%)
Particulate Matter (PM) &% %1 7.59 10.00 Kg 7 (24%)
Direct greenhouse gas emissions (scope one) are resulting EERAERENESEBEHEFERAMN M
from gasoline used by vehicles. Indirect greenhouse gas (FE—) - EEEEREERETERERN
emissions (scope two) are mainly resulting from electricity REBLXAEMMIBEEMNNSE D EFE(HE
consumed in production and R&D units of the Group. Due T)  BRAKREEMNEBRMEL HEERE
to the nature of our Group, the greenhouse gas emissions of BEmFrERERNEE— -

the Group were mainly generated from scope two.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s HE T -_ZF+_-_F=+—HIFE -
greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity are showed NREEEEREAHEREMERZERT
as below: *x:
2020 Increase/
—ECEHE —E-hEF (Decrease)
Emission Data Emission Data Percentage
Scope of Greenhouse Gas (approximately) (approximately) i (approximately)
#in,/ (GRd)
Bz EE HEREE(R) HEREIE(R) B (#)
Scope 1 #E— 33.6 45.9 tCO,e (27 %)
Direct Greenhouse Gas Emissions Uy (S |
ERRERBIN
Scope 2 #i[E = 860.5 1,654.3 tCO,e (48%)
Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions —apak
B R E REBEEK
Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Total 894.1 1,700.2 tCOe (47%)
BEREBHNETE e — ’ﬂtﬁmag
Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Intensity 5.2 8.0 tCO,e/number (35%)
BERBHERERE of employees
E—EEE,
EBE T AH
The Group proactively makes its great efforts to reduce REBFBEBRR IR BAENERMNEEB
greenhouse gas emissions by improving our production BIHLOR B EEREYRELAN LS
process. RESHEK -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) RIE(E)
A(l) Emission (Cont’d) All) BELY) (4E)
Waste Management BEYEE
The Group promotes the “3-R” concept which aims at REEHITI3-RIEE  EERNIEAT
minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount of wastes HIER TR AEFEEBFISE BIREPR AT
produced during the course of the Group’s business EEXNEEYEE -
operations.
The term “3-R” represents: [3-RJ¥E :
Concept Practice
B2 g
(@) Reduction Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by using
LR alternative materials, processes and procedures

BRERBEAME  REAEARNEATHNER VHEIELAEEEMNHE

(b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials
BB A BIRERAEENERY REEAREAOME

(¢) Recycling Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful substances
BEBRE from them, such as recycling packaging material and paper

HEMERSAAYAXEETREREAYE  fINERBESRM AR

Due to the nature of the Group, various hazardous wastes ENASEMNEREED  SEEREEY
and non-hazardous wastes are generated during our LI EEYRNEKPEEBRREPAE
production process. During the year ended 31 December Ko BE_E-_EHF+-_A=+—HI&F
2020, the quantity of these wastes was as follows: B AEEEEYESEE TS
2020 2019 Increase/
—ECEHE —E-NnF (Decrease)
Emission Data Emission Data Percentage
(approximately) (approximately) Unit (approximately)
#in,/ (8d)
BEEE(R) HEEE Q) By BAH(H)
Hazardous & 0.2 0.9 Tons M (74%)
Non-hazardous FE/& - 11.0 Tons Mg (100%)
Hazardous wastes are strictly segregated from non- fL % % 22 ) B2 JF 15 b B B W) BR A% o A DA 4L
hazardous wastes for proper collection and treatment ZWEREIE - CREEVESFRNR
purpose. Hazardous wastes are collected with leakage-proof *‘ BnEeER) s B2 EEAIE
containers (e.g. scrap metal bucket) to avoid leakage during EP Hj HHaR - CREZEYRENTGE YN
transfer. A hazardous wastes warehouse is established WEMDERTEREEY - FEEEY
for collection and classified storage of hazardous wastes. WERMBEZEEZETREEY -

Licensed waste collectors have been engaged for disposal of
hazardous wastes.

The Group does not involve in any material discharge of REBTNSREMERNTEREKEENR - &
industrial sewage. Domestic wastewater will be discharged TEREKISRIBE A PEATINE A -

into the municipal pipe network after being processed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

A(l)

A(l)

58

Emission (Cont’d)
General compliances

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there
was no material non-compliance with the applicable local
rules and regulations relating to air emissions, greenhouse
gas emissions, water discharges, and generation of
hazardous and nonhazardous wastes in all material aspects.

Use of Resources

The main resources used by the Group in the production
process are electricity, water and paper. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group strive
to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of resources
consumption in the production process for minimization
of wastage and avoidance of excessive usage of precious
resources.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, to the best of our
Directors’ knowledge, we believe that there was no material
sustainability issues in our sourcing water.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the energy

“TERR - g NERmE

IRIE(])
All) BERY (4E)

—KRER
BiEM S - MEBSRA EAFﬁEEj(E
IR R RPN REREBHW

fﬂ@kﬁﬁzu&fxi“ﬁ}—&ﬁif%%m%
MWEREHERERD -

Alll) ZIRE A

AEEELEBRETERANEIEERRE
7 KEHER - BRER B —FKHRER
BENEE  AEBEZHREERERBRE
M - WD ELEEBRIEPRE L#ER
BEFEREENER -

BE_T_THEA+_A=1+—HLHFE
'ﬂtﬁ%ﬁﬁ/ A LA T SKKIR 77 T I
BRBARFFELRE -

BE_T_THE+_A=+-HILHFE -

consumption by type in total of the Group are shown as REBELBAESSEM LT
below:
2020 2019 Increase/
—ECEHE —E-NEF (Decrease)
Emission Data Emission Data Percentage
Direct/Indirect Energy by Type (approximately) (approximately) Unit  (approximately)
@,/ (L)
Bi/ HEERZER BHEE(K) BHEE () B B (K)
Gasoline ) 12,424.80 16,934.20 litre A7 (27%)
Electricity & 1,028,496.59 2,107,432.40 kWh F F (51%)
Water 7K 8,273.92 8,353.60 mS3 35K (1%)
The Group is conscious of environmental protection. ARNREEFFIBR  HE—F2HBEERUT B
Further details of which are disclosed in the section “The #EBRKXRER |—fFHFE o
Environment and Natural Resources” below.
Use of Packaging Materials WEEEF
The Group mainly uses paper boxes and plastic bags as AEEBTEFHEAKELBREARPESHE
packaging material for our products. During the year ended ##ikl o HE T -—_FTFE+_-_A=+—H It &
31 December 2020, the Group purchased 61.4 kg of B @ AEBEMRBEEELEE T614T 5 BEM
packaging material for sales of our products (2019: 69.3 kg). #l(—=T— A4 :69.3F ) o tNAJ 4% » K FIE LA
If possible, we would aim to increase the effectiveness of FiENHE F T E A F&(E LIBRNEEM

packaging material through continuous examination of using
lighter and environmental-friendly packaging materials from
the market.

BABRR  LRABKMEOBA -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2020



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2020

“T_TEEA S REARE

ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)
A(lll) The Environment and Natural Resources

Environment protection is the responsibility of every staff
in the Group. The Group is committed to sustainable
development and delivering our premium and quality
products in a manner with minimal impact to the environment
resulting from our business activities.

Apart from those details disclosed in the section “Emissions”
and “Use of Resources” above, the Group also continuously
implements “green” concept with the following measures:

° Office power saving: Policy to turn off lights when not
in use, air-conditioning temperature control, printer and
computer hibernation management, shut down of lights
and computers during lunch break, etc.

° Paper saving: Implement paperless office, use email
and online signature system for document review,
signing and communication where possible, reduce the
frequency of printing and/or copying, and reduce the
use of office paper. If necessary, employees are also
encouraged to re-use paper and conserve paper usage
by printing double-sided to the extent practicable.

° Increase equipment and vehicle efficiency: Arrange
for the equipment and vehicles to undergo regular
maintenance in order to improve their performance and
dispose high energy consumption equipment as part of
the efforts to conserve resources at source.

° Reduce the use of bottled water: Provide drinking
water supply equipment at all production bases for
the use by factory employees, meetings and visitors.
Employees are encouraged to bring along their own
reusable cups to reduce the use of bottles.

A(lV) Climate Change

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that
there are no significant climate-related issues which have
impacted or may impact our Group. We continue to monitor
related developments as it relates to our operations and
businesses and are committed to addressing any such
issues effectively if they should arise.

R (&)

AR ZR XA EIR

AEES—HEIHEHRERENE
f- AKRERNRAFHEERLRERSH
&1EE\EEDDZ@$£EP Hi‘ﬁﬁ%%j‘%/ﬁ@]%}
REMEKNTZERERE -

BRTRAL T8 I R [BIRGER | — &
BEZHBI  AEETEBATHEES
B [Re RS

s WMAEHMHE: RENEFEMEETRH
EfEE - EFRBEES - FIEHEE
R ERE - FARERBERE MK

. *’“i’J)ﬂiﬁ%'T&”ﬁiﬁ{t% L]

e A EE—F*E”’—F/\,?L ’f???ﬁi_
TTK@T’%E@ CBREBEER ORI
S /EU’%T CRBRALBEAE
B MERE  SENEBE TR
PNEATERERAREERAE®S
El o

e RARBLEMULL - RHRERE
WMETERREARTEBERRE
SREERE BHINRBELHOE
i

o RAERMEK  AEREMBRER
EEHAKRE  RESREEREN
WET - @REFESHRER - 2
BETEREAEEERNNA B
FRE KB -

AV) RIREE

BESMAAM - RMAME LEECAEX
MREHEEFEC KA ELREER -
BMEEBEEREALENREB BN
B’ WEH MR % FEEE ARG
I8 o
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

B()

60

Employment

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human
resource policies stipulating rules on recruitment,
compensation, training, welfare, promotion guidelines and
dismissal. In order to safeguard benefits for the employees,
the Group abides by Labor Law of the PRC (FF# A RN
Bl 4 E)3%), Labor Contract Law of the PRC (FF#E A R H
@JAH&') the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
(EEEREED]) and employment laws applicable to relevant
jurisdictions where operations are located. Labor contracts
or employment agreements are entered into between the
Group and the employees. Moreover, the Group regularly
monitors information related to employment to prevent non-
compliance with labor laws and regulations.

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure
consistency and compliance in the recruitment and
selection process, as well as to promote fair opportunities
to each candidate, the Group has detailed recruitment
policies in place. An objective and carefully documented
recruitment process will ensure that any discrimination
risks are minimized and will give us the best possible
chance of identifying the right candidate. Regardless of
nationality, gender, age, race, religious belief or disability,
etc, candidates with relevant professional qualifications
and working experience receive equal consideration for
employment.

The Group provides our employees “5 Insurances and 1
Pension”, business trip allowance, birthday allowance,
wedding allowance, body check, and holiday allowance.
Employees are entitled to national holidays, company
holidays, annual leave, funeral leave, marital leave, maternity
leave and sick leave as well. In addition, the Group also
adopted measures, such as distributing gifts and benefits, as
well as holiday lengthening, to further enhance the benefits
system and its staff satisfaction.

“TERR - g NERmE

Tt
BENRSZIER
B() 1EME

AEECHER - FM - 59 /A - &
ﬂh@&mﬁ R —EZEMNANERK
RRTE - RRERERHN  AEEETH
FEARKMBESEE pEARKMES
BERE - BERRBIGD R EEMEHR
EHRBNERERER SHERNER
Wi DR ANREEEBRTY - U A
EEHERRBHBERAABRRETNAE S
BEAREREREE -

RTRSBERENNE - AEERBER
BEBREPH—HMELRARLE  URARE
MIREARBRIFORE  AREEEY
HAMBEBERR - BERANDORENHEE
BEARREEEARERR  XAEMAD
BEREARFERERS - TmEE -
R - Fik - Bk RREDPHERES
AREBEEXRERL TIFERAKBER
RRBRTHERFEFHR -

AEEREERE AR -2 2KZE
Bh - A HRRBL  AERE - BRARAZE

B BEMAZXBEZFEAEHRA - A7
BRE - R =R BR ERIER-
BEAN - RE B TR EREUR 242 m KX AE A A K
ERBRASHEN - E—FRABIGHEK
ETREE -
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBEREIEER(E)

(CONT'D)

B(l) Employment (Cont’d) B(l) 1EME (&
AEBEEGMNASELEFERREERS

SEEBNTFTREMHEEAL - Eﬁﬁly

TIEWEBEES  FEEBEE_T=F
F+_A=t+—HEEHFBRLRELES
1728 8T (ZF—NF :213%) - BTH

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and equitable
manner through social media such as online platforms and
newspaper advertisements. Across the Group’s diversified
business portfolio, as of 31 December 2020, the Group has
a workforce of 172 in a number of locations in the PRC and

Hong Kong (2019: 213). The composition of staffs is as B
follows:
2020 2019
—E_THF —E-hF

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
RERIBID M B TR

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
ZMERIEI DB TS

50% n S 4o% a)
50% 51% -
= Female = Female
pegi eg

BEEBERNSR BE_T_TF+_A

Categorized by employee’s gender, male employees

accounted for approximately 50% (2019: 51%) and female
employees accounted for the remaining 50% (2019: 49%)
as of 31 December 2020. The Group believes in equality
of opportunity and treatment between male and female
employees because it is just and fair and promotes good
business and better performance. The Group recognizes that
equality at work between male and female employees means
(a) discrimination is not existed in the recruitment process to
get the best candidates for the appropriate vacancies; and
(b) equality of opportunity in providing assignments based on
candidate’s merit and choice.

=t+—BEHEEBMEH50%(ZE—NF :
51%) * MZEEEGH TE0%(ZE—N
F:49%) - AEERAEBLREE ZHM#E
FREBTE %Q?“EI%&E%%
BEREFEERR -AEERAUSLESR
TR E’Jﬂ?ﬁ%a( )%E%U%EPT@E&
B UREENTERENREREA &
(b) 72 RSB AR IR AR I A B A B &,MJE;EZ%;',
EEARBREISENHES o
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SOCIAL (CONT’D)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(CONT’D)
B(l) Employment (Cont’d)

2020
—E-ETF
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
REREIDHE THEH

6%

29%
16%

49%

As for employee distribution by age, aged below 30
accounted for approximately 29% (2019: 28%); aged 30 to

<30
/INR30BR
30-40
30ZF408%
41-50
41E505%
>51
K515

teE (&)
EBREEGETERE)

B(l) 1E1#E (4&)

2019
—E-NF
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
REHREDHE THE

12%

28% g <30
/INAB0BR
30-40
30240%%
41-50
41E505%
>51
NN

12%

48%

REEFEIE BE_T_TF+_A
=t— E|3OFZL/\TTEZ/]29%(;T NE

40 accounted for approximately 49% (2019: 48%); aged 41 28%) : 30E405RIGHI49% (=T — L5 -
to 50 accounted for approximately 16% (2019: 12%); and 48%) : 41E50B(H4I16% (T — 5 -
aged above 51 accounted for approximately 6% (2019: 12%) 12%) + RE1BRA E1EH6% (=T —h4F -
as of 31 December 2020. 12%) °
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) H=E(E)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(CONT'D)
B(l) Employment (Cont’d) B(l) 1E1& (#&)
2020 2019
—E-F T— N

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION

EBIRENETLERE)

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION

BB RKESI DB TAE LB RKEE DB TR
3%—~_ 1% 5% B%—~_ 2% 9%
e Doctor of 7 Doctor of

Philosophy Philosophy
(“Ph.D”) (“Ph.D”)
B(EL]) [Enn (RS )
Master Master
(Elan Bt

45% %aihelor 39% m Bfﬁa;helor
Diploma 44% g Diploma
B XOE
Other = Other
Efth HAth

Professionals in different fields are the Group’s precious

= ?ﬁﬁiﬁ’\]iﬁrﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁilﬁ’]
WMBBEKESE

B=

i

assets. Categorized by education level, employees with E o
Ph.D background accounted for approximately 1% (2019: +ZA=+—H Té’&ﬁﬁiﬂr* E’ME 5 {5
2%) of the total number of employees; employees with BREBHENMIB(ZF—NEF :2%) : &
Master degree accounted for approximately 5% (2019: FETEBMMNEEGLOS%(ZE—NF :

9%); employees with Bachelor degree accounted for %) HEETEMNMNEEML46%(ZZ
approximately 46% (2019: 44%); employees with diploma —NEF : 44%)  MBEEUERNEEGL
accounted for approximately 45% (2019: 39%); and others 45% (ZF—NF : 39%) : mMEMEEIL
accounted for the remaining 3% (2019: 6%) as of 31 BT3%(ZF—LF - 6%) °

December 2020.

Employee turnover rate of the Group (%):

AEERESRKE(%)
By gender 1zt 5l & 2

Male 5514 40%
Female %% 60%
By age group 1z R4 Bl &5

Below or equal to 30 305%sk A T 51%
31-50 31-508% 45%
Over 50 505 A £ 4%
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Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to support
the precious asset, employees. To create a safe working
environment, the Group has established safety policies on
the prevention and remediation of safety accidents, and
detection on potential safety hazards in workplace, including
regular safety inspections and launch of safety promotion
and safety training.

To mitigate the health and safety risk during production and
R&D processes, protective equipment would be provided to
operating employees, such as protective suit, glove, mask
etc.

Our staffs are briefed and trained with safety and
environmental knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone
understands the risk of the task they are involved, has safety
and environmental consciousness and is familiar with safety
and environmental precaution measures.

Hazardous materials and wastes are handled separately
with great care. Emergency and evacuation procedures for
fire were established for timely and orderly response to any
major safety accidents.

The Group monitors the workplace safety continuously, and
performs a regular examination of workplace safety hazards.
To ensure the effectiveness of fire emergency control, the
Group appointed a third-party institute to test its fire alarms
and inspect its fire safety equipment.
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B(ll) Health and Safety (Cont’d) B(l) #ERZZ (&)

The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting pressure on
the Group and its employees during the Reporting Period.
As part of the COVID-19 countermeasures and to prevent
the spread of the virus, the Group has implemented stringent

RIFEHE - TCOVID-19R 5B # &
2 AEEREEEVEAIEREND - £
ACOVID- 198 KM — 5D + BRHLERS
B AEBEBREROHELER B

infection preventive measures to protect its employees. RERE - AEEBBRXTZUYERESNRE
The Group closely monitored the health of its employees Bk BiEmnEHER - E#)J#"*W?m

every day by checking their body temperature, providing
sufficient surgical masks and alcohol-based hand rub in the
offices. The Group also required its employees to consider
using other methods such as online video meeting software
for interviews or meetings. Employees are advised to wear
masks and avoid physical contact (such as shaking hands,
hugging) and crowded places when they are required to
meet people or work outside in their local community.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, to the best

HEANIOSREREFR - NEE
NEBEREEZEEARLLAASBRTF
Hi hAETHAXBHEZE - BEREE
EEWHRTEEASE LI TR -
EHLOS  #eF8E®(NET %
) RBIEANB R 2B

BE_T-_THEA+_A=+—HLHFE -

knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, there was no B ER ’fl] Iﬂﬁﬁfifﬂ BaBINZ
occurrence of any fatal accident (2019 and 2018: no fatal T—NFERZZE—N\F TEBGEI) -
accident as well).

B(lll) Development and Training Bl 2/& K=
The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment REEFRHAEERREE IS AER &
through development and training in the Group. Equipping i RARBEENANG  TERBAMR
employees with the appropriate knowledge not simply AEBRNREERE  HEELETIEEXR
benefits the longterm development, but the society as a M2 o
whole.
The Group has devised training schedule to provide REEBFGFSVIEINTEIER - BET
different types of trainings to employees every year. The & i,ﬁi =J\\ j_'“ BT EpBERE A% 7}
categories include personnel, finance, medical instruments, 7% B REETE - HME R
environmental management and fire safety. Through FE $EITLiﬂ%{Ej Gk ,‘%\Ik
education and training, the Group can enable its employees FFREAZSE - BRI {ERLE  EMERE

to enhance their personal qualities, strengthen their working
skills and reinforce the team performance. Moreover,
employees can grow with the Group by realizing their own
values on the basis of their personal interest and expertise.

Besides, all employees are subject to regular performance
and career development appraisal in order to ensure the
efficiency and quality of our employees and to foster the
stable development of the Group.

2020 £ HEBLEB2EBRERLA

Mo MEBIIRAIEEREARBEERED
AR T ERESEE BEEN—RKE -

Z REBEMBEIFTEX EMEEAM
BEZRREZN  UBREIZITHERERR
mERWPHAEESUAFRER -
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B(lll) Development and Training (Cont’d) Bl 2¥/@ R 1=H(4E)

AEEEREGERAMERETIRNE

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs from

the Group's business development and the employees’ T HEROBEEREMG  AEFBSIRBE
competence. Vacancies of the Group’s internal management MEGE RN EASREERNIREE

positions will be filled up internally by promoting the T EA#HTEIZEAKERIESEEN
most qualified employees within the Group. This offers B o

the employees with the opportunities for promotion and

enhances the efficiency of the Group.

B(lV) Labour Standards B(v) %

As the Group strictly adhered to the Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors (2 A R EHME KK F ARER), the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and other laws and
regulations in all aspects, the Group does not permit forced
labour or child labour under any circumstances. All new
employees’ identification card should be checked before
they entry the Group to ensure their age meets requirements
of laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify
any material non-compliance or breach of relevant laws and
regulations in child labour and forced labour. (2019: Nil)

AEBREEFmMAOERETHREARL
MBEARKFAREE  BEBSRBENRE
fEERER  EEABRTAEEST
Aﬁ%@ ATHREFEEL - MEHEER
AREERHBEZEESMHE - UER
ﬁ#ﬁ FEEEEMERNRTE -
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Stability, safety and effectivity of product quality is directly
influenced by the selection of suppliers. To effectively
manage the supply chain, the Group has developed a
comprehensive system for assessing new and existing
suppliers. The Group has further regulated the operational
procedures of evaluation and approval for main suppliers,
and clarified the suppliers’ qualification, selection principle,
quality evaluation methods, evaluation standard, and
approval procedure for main supplier. The Group requires
suppliers to comply with local laws and regulations in all
aspects. All of the supplies of the Group are procured
from the PRC. The PRC government has strict laws and
regulations governing social and environmental risks.

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s business and product
distribution are relied on agents to introduce and
promote the products to hospitals for sale. Therefore, the
management of the agents is very crucial to the Group. To
avoid inefficiencies in agents and to strengthen the sales
performance, the Group has tailor-made contracts for each
agent in accordance with its selling ability and respective
target customers in the PRC. The contracts clarify the
province or area in which the agents are responsible for, as
well as the hospitals they cooperate with. The contracts also
list out the compensation they get, and the sales amount that
is targeted to be achieved during the contract period. The
Group will evaluate agents from time to time following their
performance against the contract terms. The Group believes
that the management of agency contracts can help to control
the quality of agents and to implement the business strategy
efficiently.

SOCIAL (CONT’D) H=E(E)
OPERATING PRACTICES = BB
B(V) Supply Chain Management B(V) 1R EHE = HE
Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners. HEFEAEENRPBEBSIERMN - #

EENREERYEENEENBET
ZEUERBRYE - REREEHERE - K
SRRV EXAMNIBRAELTEHT
ERBERHER AKBECHIEHERE
BHRE  HEXEHEROGREFIRE
RAETHRED AR TIEHE[MOHE
B2k BERR  BFHE - FHE
REREREN - AEESRKEEFES
BErmETEMERLER - ~AEBAMm
2 EG BRI P BERE o B BEBUTSIE B &
Bt E RRERBREEEEER

RESHNEE

REBRIBOHES RERDHERBHNR
ﬁﬁﬁ RS EREEEMAREE - &

CREFMNERHASEMEEEE
Eoﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%
EXE  ASERBEAREANHEEREIK
EAEFEMNBERFPASREBES T
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I RIEERTAEIENER - & 47887
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The Group strives for products and services excellence
across all the business activities. To protect the samples
from contamination in the laboratory, the Group has devised
procedures for operations in the laboratory. The Group
also requires the laboratory technicians to wear protection
suits and to regularly clean and disinfect the laboratory
equipment, in order to maintain workplace hygiene and
prevent the cross-contamination of the products.

Apart from the hygiene control in laboratory, the Group also
understands the importance of an accurate testing result.
Thus, the Group has developed policies in relation to the
management and maintenance of laboratory equipment,
especially the calibration of laboratory equipment. Our
equipment is calibrated externally by professionals and
internally when necessary to ensure its accuracy. Qualified
personnel is assigned to each equipment for the daily
management and maintenance, to make sure equipment that
we are using is in good condition. Damaged equipment will
not be used until they are fixed by the suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences with
products and services is the key to the Group’s success. The
Group constantly interacts with customers by reviewing their
enquiries and feedback so that performance can be tracked
regularly. Also, the Group is dedicated to provide after-sale
maintenance and operational technical supporting services
to customers. Training is provided to employees in offering
comprehensive services to customers.
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Health and safety REHEZE

Being a responsible corporation, being accredited with the
ISO 13485:2016 Quality Management Certificate, we strictly
monitor the quality of our products, and the safety issues in
using our products.

We are committed to complying with local rules and
regulations on product safety, and protecting consumers’
health on using our products. In accordance with the
requirement of the ISO 13485:2016, the Group implements
stringent internal rules and procedures for quality check
during its production process. Any non-conforming products
must be handled properly, including proper labelling and
recording.

Advertising

The Group understands our customers’ rights and is
committed to providing accurate product and service
information for customers in connection with their purchase
or consumption decision. The Group requires careful review
of advertising materials to protect customers’ interest.

Labelling

The Group is committed to providing sufficient and
accurate information and product label to customers and
considers that it is an extended responsibility of product
safety management. The Group provides clear and simple
instructions, including the danger, precaution measures and
emergency treatment of products and contact information.

EEABEENEE - JFE EFISO
13485:2016E 2B B F + &M W&ﬁ* 2
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Privacy matters

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect
operational and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure
agreements are signed by all suppliers. A systematic
approach is implemented internally to ensure that only
designated employees have access to sensitive and
confidential information.

In view of the customer confidential information, the Group
implemented a strict confidentiality system. According to
the system, the Group should enter into a confidentiality
agreement with the client who provides the confidential
information. Meanwhile, for ensuring no betraying
confidential matters, risk control department of the Group
is responsible for investigating the confidential information
to delimit secrecy scope and ascertain information-
security. The Group also provides employees with education
regarding confidentiality, and specifies the confidentiality
obligation of employees in employee manual.

Methods of redress

Although the Group ensure the quality of our products
and services, at the same time, it requires that products
with quality issues should be returned or compensated in
accordance with terms of sales contracts. Return, recall,
or compensation of products is required to be offered to all
customers who are affected with consistent treatment and
procedures.

We value customers’ feedback, as this is the driving force for
our continual improvement. Once a complaint is received, we
will take prompt actions to investigate the issue and carry out
remedial action plans.

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of our
Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify any material issues
on product health and safety, advertising, labelling, privacy
matters and methods of redress and no products and service-
related complaints were received (2019: Nil).
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B\I) Anti-Corruption BVI) R ESZ

To ensure honest, loyal behaviour and ethical conduct
among employees, the Group has adopted code of ethics
and anti-corruption regulations, so as to enable employees’
conducts and behaviours to be monitored throughout daily
operations. The Group performs annual self-evaluation
to look at the implementation of code of ethics and
relevant regulations, the objective of which is to ensure
the thoroughness and consistency in actual operations
and management practices, with a view to balancing and
safeguarding interests of the stakeholders and establishing
long-term partnerships. The Group employs independent
auditors to carry out external audits on the Group, aiming at
preventing corruptive behaviours within the Group through
internal supervision and external audits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with any relevant standards,
rules, codes and regulations. There were no complaints
of corruption against the Group or any of the Group’s
employees during the Reporting Period (2019: Nil).

B\VIl) Community Investment

Community

With the market’s focus on corporate behaviour, the
short-sighted behaviour of maximizing financial returns to
shareholders is no longer the management goal of business.
The Group stays proactive in fulfilling the responsibilities as a
corporate citizen of the community.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
extending the sustainability efforts from own operation to the
wider society. The Group believes that staff members are the
core value makers in the society. The Group will continue to
pool the strengths and commit itself in increasing community
participation, balance of interests of stakeholders and strives
to build a corporate-community relationship that promotes
harmony, security and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and documented
a specific community policy, social care is deep-seated in
the Group’s corporate culture. Employees are encouraged
to participate in various charitable events and community
service.
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The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the R&D of bio-medical
and healthcare products, and medical techniques; the provision
of the production and sales of tissue engineering products
and its related by-products; as well as sales and distribution
of medical products. In accordance with Schedule 5 of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, further discussion and analysis
of these activities including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing by the group and an indication of likely
future developments in the group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 17
and notes 42 and 45 to the consolidated financial statements of
this report, which form part of this directors’ report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting
Period as well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance under review and the material factors underlying
its financial performance and financial position are provided in
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 7 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 17 of
the annual report and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 95 to 97.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 235 to 236.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$Nil
(2019: HK$NIl).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 100 to 101
and note 34 to the financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Chuang (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-elected on 22 January 2020)
Mr. Wang Xuejun (resigned on 9 July 2020)
Dr. Ray Yip (resigned on 30 January 2020)

(

Mr. Qiu Bin appointed on 20 May 2020, re-elected on
31 August 2020 and resigned on 29 December 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Weiliang (re-elected on 22 January 2020, 31 August 2020 and
resigned on 29 December 2020)
Dr. Ray Yip (resigned on 30 January 2020)

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (appointed on 30 January 2020 and

re-elected on 15 April 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Fang Jun (re-elected on 31 August 2020)
Ms. Wang Danjuan (resigned on 30 January 2020)
Ms. Yang Ying (re-elected on 22 January 2020 and 31 August 2020)

Ms. Huo Chunyu (appointed on 30 January 2020 and

re-elected on 15 April 2020)

fit 18
RoB-FEF-A=+—F ARATHS

ETBRRZBEAORTETL(ZZE—NF : TE
Y
AEEBRARBARBRERBAZFEHEEBDF

B DHENFEI00EFE101 B2 HmE
RN SRR FES4

M2~ BB R RE

AEERBEMEANERDE  BEARRELZ
BEABHAN P BRRME16R -

o
RENRBEAREABLZEFMT :
HITEE

B Pt (EESTEHTTHAEH)
(RZE-ZF-A-+-HEZEEET)

TEFLE (RZZE-ZFLANAET)

EEEL (RZE_ZF-A=+HET)

ilpr e (RZZ-ZFRA-tHEZET:
RZEZZENA=+—REZEET
VR-E-TF+-_A-+NHEHT)

FHITEE

RERKE (RZZ=TF-A=F+ZHK
ZECRE\A=+—REEEET
VRZZEZZF+Z AT NHEE)

REEL (RZZE-ZF-A=+HET)

GEELE (RZ2-BF-A= +B%§E&
RZZ-_ZFNA+RAEERET)

BUFHTEE

HAEBL (RZE_BFEN\A=+—HEERET)

THERT (RZZE-ZF-A=+HET)

BELt (RZZ2-BF-A=+=8Ak
“ZoRFENA-+-REZERET)

EETL (RZB=TF-A=THEZARAZ

E_TENATRAAESREL)

2020 3 PEEEBERARERAR 73



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHE

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Chuang and Ms. Huo Chunyu shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
the date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and GEM Listing
Rules.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/ she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties
of his/ her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters
in respect of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those set out in note 38 to the financial statements and
under heading “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in this report,
none of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.
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The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 14 WRZ-ZZT——F AL A+WEH » &N &) £ 4% E A E
September 2011 is for the primary purpose of providing incentives 5t&| - TEEHARNAEEE=ENEERES
to directors and eligible employees of the Group. 2SR o
The movement of share options under the share option scheme RHE-_Z-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HIEFEE ' K
adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011 during the year R TR =T ——E N 5+ 00 B H 4 2 Rt
ended 31 December 2020 was as below: EIET 2 HERESEESNT
Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2020
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BECECRETCACr-ALEEZERERD(RRASHANEERRRRSE)
Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2019 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2020
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
e RZB-nE H-B-%%
ke BREL t2A=t-8 BRE/ tZR=+-8
fkE (i) SENERR HATE 1 ] Bfif  BENE BAN  HAME
S2EBAL  BEAH (#1) (A1) WHESE BRLBREZUORTH (M3t) (h3t) ik (i) (h3t) (h3t)
Directors~~ 16/9/2015 0.46 9.00 16 September 201610 Upto 20%[ t Options”) 57,900 NIL NIL NIL (67,900) NIL
5% E-Rf 15 Septomoer 2017 $%20% ([ $—(3RE)) 4 4 £ 8
AATHA (both days inclusive)
(the “1st Period’)
ZE-NENATARE
ZE-tENATRA
(REEEMA)
(£-EHmR))
16 September 201710 Up o 20% (2nd Options’) (together with
15 September 2018 any 1st Options which have not been
(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the 1st Period)
(the “2nd Period) 5520%\'% {hEfkE) /\ (ERRE-@
ZELFARTARE  BEEAGECERE-HERE)
“2-)\ENRTHA
(BfEEERA)
(E-fE%E)
16 September 201810 Up t0 20% (“3rd Options’ (together with any
15 September 2019 1stand 2nd Option's which have not been
(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the 1st Period and 2nd
(the “3rd Period”) Period)
ZE-EARTABE  BH%(E-RERE]) (ERRE-R
ZE-AEAATRR BERECEEEERGEZEAE-H
(BREERA) REZ(EHE)
([E=fa%m)
16 September 201910 Up to 20% (*4th Options”) (together with any
15 September 2020 1st, 2nd and 3rd Options which have not
(ooth days inclusive) been exercised during the 1st Period,
( the “4th Period’) 2nd Period and 3rd Period)
% mﬂ+/\ai S520% [ ZBHERE]) (ERRNE-E
TERATER  HF F-RERRE-REEAAE
(@Tﬁ%a) JEAEY  BZRRE=hHERE)
([#mESE)
16 September 2020to  Up to 20% (*5th Options”) (together with any
15 September 2025 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Options which have
(both days inclusive) not been exercised during the 1st Period,
(the “5th Period") 2nd Period, 3rd Period and 4th Period)
SECRRARTARE  BSNN(RLARRE) (EERE-E
ZEZREAATRA Eﬁ Ei R W JiEuH
(BREERA) himﬁz ?% 524
([EnfE%mE) %Eﬁ&%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%)
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Ble(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2020

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRCREToA=t-ALERZBRRAD(NRASHANSRLERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding

exercise asat asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December

Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2019 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2020

persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS) ~ Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)

L HoB-1F H-8-%%

e BREL t2A=t-8  ERE/ tZA=t-8

fkE (i) SENERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  ZENAE BAN  HAME

A8KAL  BEAH (B7)  (Bn) WfEHE BRLBREZIORBH (M) (hit) (hist) (h3t) (M) i)

Others 16/9/2015 045 9.00  For Grantees other than new employees who have joined the Company for -~ 3492,500 1,320,800 NIL NL (1,511,300 3,302,000
#ALT  ZE-3F less than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on & &

NATHA the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

/i

FREBRE A2 AR (BALLTIK —BAZTARRK

AT FERN R (EERRE)
1st Period 1st Options
£-E5R E-hERE
2nd Period 2nd Options (together with any 1st Options
E-fE5R which have not been exercised during the
1st Period)

F_NERE(ERNF-EEREATE
2ERE-HERE)

3rd Period 3rd Options (together with any 1st and 2nd
£= (1 Options which have not been exercised
during the 1t Period and 2nd Period)
E-hBRE(ERRE-ESERE_A
IRERTR ENE-HREZR

i)
4th Period 4th Options (together with any 1st, 2nd and
EAEET 3rd Options which have not been exercised
during the 1st Period, 2nd Period and 3rd
Period)

EMRERE(SRNE-REH 5-F
IMRE=REREAGEZENE
F_MREzhERE)

5th Period 5th Options (together with any 1st, 2nd,

ERRE 3rd and 4th Options which have not been
exercised during the 1st Period, 2nd
Period, 3rd Period and 4th Period)

SRhBREERNE-ESE 2-M

28 E-EEERERESEEATE
JEAE-H- £ F=HRERG

BiE)
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BlreE(E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2020
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRIRETof=t-ALERZBRRAD(NRASHANSRLERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note) exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2019 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2020
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS) ~ Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
kL HoB-1F H-8-%%
e BREL t2A=t-8 ERE/ tZA=t-8
fkE (i) SENERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  ZENAE BAN  HAME
A8KAL  BEAH (B7)  (Bn) WfEHE BRLBREZIORBH (M) (hit) (hist) (h3t) (M3t) k)
For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company for
ess than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on
the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):
FREBRGBEARA(BNARLAIR T Z BRANFERR
ZRAFEZHER)H5 (ERRME):
16 March 2017 to Up t0 20% (‘Options 1')
15 March 2018 5520%([ B )
(both days inclusive)
(the “Period 1)
“E-tEZRtARE
Z?‘/“ﬁiﬂﬂiﬁ
(BHEERA)
(T51)
16 March 2018 to Up to 20% (‘Options 2') (together with any
15 March 2019 Options 1 which have not been exercised
(both days inclusive) during the Period 1)
(the “Period 2) RH20% ([ B2 (BRRBR B AR
ZE-\EZRATARE  ZfEMERE)
ZE-NEZATHA
(AfEEERA)
(T8))
16 March 2019 to Up 0 20% (‘Options &) (together with any
15 March 2020 Options 1 and 2 which have not been
(ooth days inclusive) exercised during the Periods 1and 2)
(ihe “Perod 3) S520%([ERIE))(ERRBRE1R2
ZE-NEZRTABE  HARRZEAEREIR?)
ZE-REZATRA
(BHEERA)
(T3))
16 March 2020 to Up to 20% (‘Options 4') (together with any
15 March 2021 Options 1, 2 and 3 which have not been
(both days inclusive) exercised during the Periods 1, 2 and 3)
(the “Period 4) R520%([BRE4)) (ZRREH 2R3
EIRFCATARE  HAARCEMERE 2R
“5--EZA+EA
(AfEEERA)
(T8))
16 March 2021 to Up to 20% (together with any Options 1, 2,
15 September 2025 3.and 4 which have not been exercised
(both days inclusive) during the Periods 1,2, 3 and 4)
TRC-ESATREE RP00N(ERREE 23R4
ECIEARTRE mAGRZEMERE 2 SRy
(AfEEERA)
2020 i FEBLBERABERAT l
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2020
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRCREToA=T-ALERZBRRAB(NRARHANSALERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note) exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2019 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2020
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS)  Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
L RZB-nE H-8-%%
i€ BREZ t2A=t-A  ERE/ tZB=t-R
ke (03 SENERR HATE 58 B BENAE BAN  HAME
AEKAL  BEAH (B7) (1) WfEHE BRUBREZIORBH (M) (hs) (hst) (h3t) k) (hst)
Directors ~ 9/9/2016 0.291 5820 9 September 2017 to UptoZO%[FlrstOplons) 46,000 NIL NIL NIL (46,000) NIL
8% e S 8 September 2018 HH20%([F-HERE] 2 8 E &
AARA (both days inclusive)
(the “First Period)
ZE-tEAANEE
“2-\EAAA
\@}ﬁ%ﬁ‘
()
9 September 201810 Up to 20% (*Second Options”) (together with
8 September 2019 any First Options which have not been
(both days inclusive) exercised during the First Period)
(the “Second Period’)  &%20% ([ £=HERE]) (ERHNE-E
Z2-\EAANRE IEEATE AR -HERE)
ZE-NENRNE
(BIEEERA)
)
9 September 201910 Up o 20% (‘Third Options”) (together with
8 September 2020 any First and Second Options which have
(ooth days inclusive) not been exercised during the First Period
(the “Third Period’) and Second Period)
ZE-NVEARNBE  BH0%(E(ERE)) (ERREE
** ZZERAN IERE_REERATR ERE-H
Jﬂ%éé%ﬁ ) RE-(ERE)
(E=EHmH)
9 September 2020t0  Up to 20% (‘Fourth Options”) (together with
8 September 2021 any First, Second and Third Options which
(both days inclusive) have not been exercised during the First
( the “Fourth Period") Period, Second Period and Third Period)
CECTFARMBE RSN RDARRE)) (EERE-E
SEEAANE BR-2CBEE &%’W SHATR
(RIEEERA) m% f E-ARE=HERE)
([EmEsRE])
9 September 2021t0  Up to 20% (Fifth Options’) (together with any
8 September 2025 First, Second, Third and Fourth Options
(ooth days inclusive) which have not been exercised during the
(the “Fifth Period) First Period, Second Period, Third Period
Z2Z-EAANRE and Fourth Period)
“SCREAANE BBk 2ahERE]) (AN
(RHEERA) Hﬁ S-[8H  £-RHPRERE
(it %%mﬁz I3 £
E-RREMGERE)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2020
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRIRETof=t-ALERZBRRAD(NRASHANSRLERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December
Eligible price (Note) exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2019 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2020
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS) ~ Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
kL HoB-1F H-8-%%
e BREL t2A=t-8 ERE/ tZR=t-A
fkE (i) SENERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  ZENAE BAN  HAME
A8KAL  BEAH (B7)  (Bn) WfEHE BRLBREZIORBH (M) (hit) (hist) (i) (M3t) k)
Others 9/9/2016 0.291 582 For Grantees other than new employees who have joined the Company for -~ 5,278,200 1,810,600 NIL NL (3,183,600 3,905,200
EAL B0k Jess than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on & &
AARA the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):
FREERGBE AR BNAZLTIR T Z BRANFERR
TRAFEZHERN nE (EERME) -
the First Period the First Options
E-(5H E-hERE
the Second Period the Second Options (together with any
i First Options which have not heen
exercised during the First Period)
SChBRE(ERNE-AHR
BRI T E -
the Third Period the Third Options (together with any
£= (1 First and Second Options which have not
been exercised during the First Period and
Second Period)
E-hBRE(ERAE-EHERE—MA
REATRENE-HREZR
BiE)
the Fourth Period the Fourth Options (together with any
ERU First, Second and Third Options which have
not been exercised during the First Period,
Second Period and Third Period)
EMhEREERAE-EHE 5=
IRREZEERRANRENEH
E-(RE=hERE)
the Fifth Period the Fifth Options (together with any
ERAL First, Second, Third and Fourth Options
which have not been exercised during the
First Period, Second Period, Third Period
and Fourth Period)
SRhBREERNE-ESE 2-M
96 2-RERRERESREAAR
JEAE-H- £ F=HRERG
BiE)
2020 3% PEBEBEHARERAT 79
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2020
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BE-3-BEtoAst-RLEEBREZD(NRASHANEIZERENR)

Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding

exercise asat asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December  Granted/ 31 December

Eligible price (Note)  exercise period of the  Exercisable portion of the 2019 vested  Exercised Reclassified Lapsed 2020
persons  Date of grant (HKS) (HKS) ~ Share Options Share Options granted (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
HEL ] HoB-1F H-8-%%

e BREL t2A=t-8  ERE/ tZA=t-8

fkE (i) SENERR HATE 1 ] BfiE  ZENAE BAN  HAME

A8KAL  BEAH (B7)  (Bn) WfEHE BRLBREZIORBH (M) (hit) (hist) (h3t) (M) i

For Grantees who are new employees who have joined the Company for
ess than 12 months or are yet to commence work with the Company on
the relevant date of grant (as the case may be):

FREBRGBEARA(BNARLAIR T Z BRANFERR
ZRAFEZHER)H5 (ERRME):

9 March 2018 to Up t020% (‘Options I')
8 March 2019 §%20% ([ BfiE))
(both days inclusive)

(the 1 Period’)

“T-\FZRARE
“F-NEZRNR

(BHERMA)
(T&m1)

9 March 201910 Up 10 20% (‘Options I) (together with
8 March 2020 any Options | which have not been
(both days inclusive) exercised during the | Period)

(the Il Perod') B520% (BN (ERREE

“5-NEZRARE
“Z-EF=AN\R

AR ErERE)

(aE=RE)
(TR
9 March 2020 to Up 0 20% (‘Options II") (together with
8 March 2021 any Options | and II which have not been

(both days inclusive)
(the “IIl Period!’)
ZECFECANAE

exercised during the | and Il Periods)
55 20%([ BN ) (BRRHFIRI
RARTTR EERERI)

. —-£=A/\A
(a%ERRR)
(T80
9 March 2021 o Up 10 20% (‘Options V") together with
8 March 2022 any Options |, l and Il which have not been

(both days inclusive)
(the “IV Period”)

exercised during the |, 1| and Il Periods)
SH20%(EREN ) CERAHH - 15

TRC-ESRABE RAARZEMERE IRI)
“ECEZAN
(REEERME)
(T/Ev])
9 March 2022 to Up 0 20% (together with any
8 September 2025 Options I, 1, Il and IV which have not been
(both days inclusive) exercised during the l, 11, Il and IV Periods)
CECCECAREE  RH0%(ERDSE 1 RV
ZECRENRNR RARTTRC EERE 1 NRN)
(REEERRE)
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Note: By virtue of a share consolidation of the Company whereby every 20
of then existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidated
share of HK$0.20 each. The share consolidation took effect on 16
May 2019. The number of shares and exercise price under the share
option scheme were adjusted accordingly.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange:

Long Positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

BlreE(E)

MisE AR ARBEITRNDEN  AABRRARHE
H20RBRO.01BTHEBITRAREITRNDE
HAIBRTR0 208 THE KRN - BRDEHF
RZT—AERA+BER - BRESSIE
THRMDE B RITEENMMERERE -

EERRETRASRRDRIEHE
Bz ERRRE

R-ZE-_ZTHFE+-_F=+—H  THEEEAK
RAEEITHRABRARR REMRE EZE (T E
RBEBEFESTEBZFRBAER([FH R
BI&HI ) EXVED) 2 fn - BERMODKESRF -
BB I RIEES ()VREBFESH KB EAIEXVED
FT7TR8DIBEME NN T REE AP 2 HE 2 FOHK
B(RRESHREELARBERABRBIEGEEE
ESRIEHE R cERKE)  HVBEESF R
B EE I B 35218 780 ARZIE AT il Z 20 it 2 i 2k
kR ¢ (i) IRIEGEM EM AR AIES.4625.67
BKEHESHETRELARHZATEANERRT
NERRZ A2 SRR -

R
REAARGREBR P 2 25

Aggregate long
position in the

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Directors/ shares and the issued

chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital

REBRAR HERT

HERA 2 RAL

EE/BETRABEE 514 TR At

Wang Chuang Beneficial Owner 272,640,000 9.55%
TH ERBEEA
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long Positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
(i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

#E (&)

REARARGREHEK G 2 #a ()

BREXHBEEEN R _ZFTF+ - A
=t+—H #MEEELAL WrmﬁﬁAaw
AR REBHEE(TERLES P EEME

XVER) Z B fn - ABRIRRD sk EH P A AR e
BE)REBEES RBEIRAIEXVIBETRSD I
AMEARNR Rz EEIAR(BEFSE
BEFEH M BERDE BIESONE B8 1B
BREZIKRE) ﬁwﬁ%f%&%EMW”
3E2{EBRAZIGHMI M ERIORE & 3K
UMEFGEthﬁWH%4BI56NWﬁ@§$
ETEFRGZREANES AN % 22 BT Y
HRIORE °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

RERARGREBER G 2

Aggregate long
position in the

TEREREAMA LRI R

Approximate
percentage

shares and of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
RRHRAEE HERTRE
BEgE/£8 e R 172 R B R
All Favour Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 582,547,765 20.41%
PBERERDA (1) BREAA
Dai Yumin (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation 582,547,765 20.41%
e (M) BXEEERA
Beneficial owner 875,000 0.03%
ERRAA
Li Ren (Note 2) Held by controlled corporation 582,547,765 20.41%
FF(Mzr2) BXEEERA
Beneficial owner 21,380,000 0.75%
BREBA
Deng Shufen (Note 1) Interest of spouse 583,422,765 20.44%
RS (PE1) i BHER
China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 157,744,659 5.57%
FERFEEEERHER AR (HE3) BXEEERA
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 157,744,659 5.57%
(F3E3) BXEERA
Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Held by controlled corporation 262,400,000 9.19%
Consulting Limited Liability Partnership* (Note 4) B 1EAEEA
ENMRACRERRACRER(EREH)
GELY
Lei Changjuan (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 262,400,000 9.19%
EELEGETY BXEEERA
Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Held by controlled corporation 160,600,000 5.63%
Consulting Services Limited Liability BRI LERR
Partnership* (Note 5)
ENTHREZCEEBFARBAB LR
(ARAR)(K:ts5)
Kong Yu Dong (Note 5) Held by controlled corporation 160,600,000 5.63%
HER(K:E5) BREEERA
Wang Xiaogang Beneficial owner 149,450,000 5.24%
TRl BREAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes:

84

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to
(i) 40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”)
and 20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited, of which Nat-Ace Wood
Industry is ultimately and wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ren (“Mr. Li”) and
Honour Top Holdings Limited is ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Dai
Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), and (ii) 40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover, All Favour has
been the beneficial owner of 582,547,765 Shares. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Dai, Mr. Li and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed to be
interested in 582,547,765 Shares in which All Favour is interested in.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 share
options by the Company under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 14 September 2011 entitling him to subscribe
for 17,500,000 Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per Share,
subject to the terms and conditions of the share option scheme of
the Company. The number of Shares to be issued upon full exercise
of the said share options and the exercise price per Share were
adjusted to 875,000 Shares and HK$9.00 per Share with effect from
16 May 2019 as a result of the share consolidation of the Company,
details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 15 May 2019. Assuming the share options granted
to Mr. Dai has been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an aggregate
of 875,000 Shares as beneficial owner. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Dai, together with his deemed interests in All Favour, was deemed to
be interested in an aggregate of 583,422,765 Shares, representing
approximately 20.44% of the issued share capital of the Company.
All Favour has pledged its interests in 157,744,659 Shares in favour
of Optimus.

Ms. Deng Shufen is the spouse of Mr. Dai Yumin. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Deng Shufen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Dai Yumin is interested or is deemed
to be interested.

Mr. Li personally owns 21,380,000 Shares. Mr. Li is therefore
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 603,927,765 Shares,
representing, approximately 21.16% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

3. Based on the disclosure of interests form both filed on 14 December
2020 by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”) and
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime
Management Ltd. (“Optimus”) has a security interest in 157,744,659
Shares. Optimus is wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is wholly
owned by China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding
Limited (“COAMI”). COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader
Assets Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin
Development (Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (ii) 50% by Dong
Yin which is wholly owned by COAMC.

By virtue of the SFO, COAIF, COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and
COAMC are deemed to be interested in 157,744,659 Shares held by
Optimus as security interest.

4. Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Consulting Limited
Partnership* (“Yaoguang”) is a limited liability partnership established
in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Lei Changjuan as the general
partner and the shares were held by Yao Guang (Hong Kong)
Enterprise Limited as nominee for Yaoguang. Accordingly, each of
Yaoguang and Ms. Lei Changjuan is deemed to be interested in
262,400,000 Shares.

58 Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Consulting Services
Limited Liability Partnership* (“Minxing”) is a limited liability
partnership established in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Kong
Yudong as the general partner and the shares were held by
Zhong Min Starry (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee for Minxing.
Accordingly, each of Minxing and Ms. Kong Yudong is deemed to be
interested in 160,600,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors
are not aware that there is any other party (other than the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company (i) which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (i) which
were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or chief executive of the Company or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as set out in note 44 to the financial statements and
elsewhere in this report, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction during
the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed under the
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. For those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has disclosed such connected transactions
in accordance with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in this section, other
related party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements are not considered as connected
transactions, or are exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

EEWBRONERER ZER

BARE [EERERTHRAENEN KIEH
Petn 2 i FORR | — BRI EE SN - REEH
BEMER  TANEFHAARARSTHRAR
SREXBZEBIRMISE F X EERA
FEBWE AR BB Sk ERERE M & s 2 (T
Ao WEFIREITEEM LAERN  ARFHE
MB AR NER AL - FEFAEBIK
BARA SR EAMEE 2 iy REREE AR
HOGZFHEM A aE o

BEERXS

BB HmRM T4 RAREE MDY HIE
S RRBR RS AR ERT ZEMRIZEGEM
FHRAFE0EATHRENBRER SN ISER
B o

BEALXRS

EANBEALRZERGEMBHRERMESS -
HRBKRGEM EMRAIF 208 B THREER S
IRBEREXFINEEALRS  ARFAER
BGEMLEMRAE20ENRERTE - HEZXF
ERS - BRARMBEEEIN  FREMBRE
MIFESSFI I E C HMBAEA LR L TRAH
BER G REHRRETGEMLETMRA Z B -
NERBYBRAEZRTE

EENESTHRABURANES
FALZME

EERERTHRAEBAMAEERUZSH A
TZMEFBEHNMBERERMEI -

86 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2020



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HRE S

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company, or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 16% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 6% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 31% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 9% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

On 15 May 2020, the Company, through a placing agent
completed the placing (the “Placing”) of 500,000,000 new shares,
which rank pari passu in all respects among themselves and with
the existing shares in issue on the date of allotment and issue of
these placing shares under a specific mandate to no less than
6 placees, all being independent third parties to the Company,
at issue price of HK$0.2 per share. The net proceeds from the
Placing received by the Company, after deducting all related
costs, fees, expenses and commission, were approximately
HK$98 million, representing a net issue price of approximately
HK$0.196 per share. The placing price of HK$0.20 represents a
discount of approximately 5.66% to the closing price of HK$0.212
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
determination of the placing price. All of the funds raised from the
Placing were utilized as proposed as of 31 December 2020 and
were summarized below.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18
February 2020 in relation to the termination of the proposed
open offer and the insufficient financial resources to meet the
outstanding liabilities and the general working capital of the Group,
the Board decided to raise further funding by way of Placing.
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(a) Settlement of accrued charges and other payables 30.00 30.00 -
(a) XfTREST & A K& E h fE T R 1R
(b) Staff costs 30.00 30.00 -
(b) B TAA
(c) Rent and rates 5.00 5.00 -
(c) HE R Z
(d) Utility and other expenses 5.00 5.00 -
(d) KERH AT
(e) Professional fees and corporate expenses 9.00 9.00 -
(e) EXEBERBERX
(f) Advertising, marketing and promotion expenses 19.00 19.00 -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 21 to 47. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group’s business is subject to the relevant environmental laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not subject to any major environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties, administrative or disciplinary actions.
For more information in the environmental policies of the Group,
please refer to the ESG Report included in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong in all material respects.

The Company has adopted the CG Code. During the Reporting
Period, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code except for paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code in relation to
separation of the role of chairman and chief executive officer. For
further information in respect of the corporate governance of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with them. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material dispute between the Group and its
customers, suppliers and employees, respectively.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’
engagement, and would make effort to share the Group’s results
with shareholders by dividend payment. The Directors will
determine the portion and actual amount of distribution out of
profits based on various factors, including but not limited to the
Group’s financial condition, funding for R&D, cash availability and
future plans.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has three members, comprising of our
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Yang Ying (the
chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. Huo Chunyu and Dr. Fang
Jun. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Octal Capital Limited as its compliance
adviser, which provides advices and guidance to the Company
in respect of compliance with the GEM Listing Rules including
various requirements relating to the Directors’ duties. Except
for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and the compliance adviser dated 12 August 2019,
neither the compliance adviser nor its directors, employees or
close associates had any interests in relation to the Company
which is required to be notified to the Group pursuant to Rule
B6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

AUDITOR

The Company changed its auditor to perform audit works for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Reference is made to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 November 2020, the
ordinary resolution in respect of the proposed re-appointment of
BDO Limited as auditor of the Company was not passed at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 August 2020 and the
office of the Company’s auditor has become vacant with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM. After careful consideration,
the Board has resolved to recommend to the Shareholders the
appointment of McM (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
to fill the vacancy arising from the retirement of BDO Limited. The
ordinary resolution to appoint McM (HK) CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company was duly passed on 7 December 2020 at
an extraordinary general meeting.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint McM (HK) CPA Limited as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
95 to 234, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$404,226,000 attributable to the owners of the
Company and as at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$57,481,000
and HK$55,150,000 respectively. Based on the current liquidity
position of the Group, the Group might have financial uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the Group will be able to successfully achieve the
outcomes as set forth in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements to meet its overdue financial obligations from time
to time. The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that would result from the failure to meet in full
its financial obligations in the foreseeable future. We consider
that the material uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. However, in view of the
extent of the uncertainty relating to the plan and measures to be
implemented by the Group, we disclaim our opinion in respect of
the material uncertainty relating to the going concern basis.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a disclaimer of opinion on those statements on 30 June
2020.

FRRSAMNERE
EBRESENEATBHEE

BMEFETEREES U BHREN E3(0)
FraiEsE@Ez - TF+_A=+—HIt
FEELEIBH404,226,0008 7T MR-
—EFE+-_RA=+—HBH: EEENLADHEAR
FRERABEFED L R57,481,000% T &
55,150,000/ 7T - IREEEE B ATNEBE S RIB
o BEBEAEEBRMBS T ETCEE - M
HEHEBRRBELEZENELAERAE - &0
MR EFBELCEREERE - HAERETUR
REEBRES KN EBERE P REME3(b)AT
BHOER UTHETHEMBEE - BRMRAE
ATHBAXEREHMBHRERFTDEE - A
M EREEEFELCEEENERNETRR
EEBRTKNNETHBENEIREENREE -
RATHFESLEENEATHABPERER
=

Hitt=18

EREEBE_T-NAF+_A=1T—"HBLFE
HMARE M SRR A S — B RBERG; - AR
IR —_FE_ZTFANA=THHZFTRERERD
BRER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matter described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

McM (HK) CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560
3/F, Parklane Building

233 Queen’s Road

Central

Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AN =l

raBaMAMEEKRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FERT FHET
(Restated)
(#&E=7))
Continuing operations BFREREER
Revenue U5 6 185,339 19,365
Cost of sales $H & P AR (140,328) (14,767)
Gross profit ER 45,011 4,598
Other income, gain and loss HMA - s Rk ESE 6 16,032 15,871
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HFAX (26,640) (38,443)
Administrative and other expenses TR R HAR (158,740) (60,337)
Fair value loss on contingent EWSAREZ AT EERE
consideration receivables 19 - (4,587)
Impairment loss on allowance for & 5 W R B R E B 18
trade receivables (663) (1,149
Recognition of expected credit loss on  #ERE B FIBTEHEE
other receivables &5 (36,762) (19,636)
Fair value gain on financial assets BRAFERERIER
at fair value through profit or loss (MEAFEREZRVIE]D)
(“FVTPL?) ZEeRMEBEE S A FEKE 2,340 1,224
Write off of deposits for acquisition MU BB AR 2 E S
of subsidiaries (100,000) -
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB KR ERE
equipment - (94,118)
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE - (70,697)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE - (52,049)
Finance costs M%ER 9 (17,906) (2,206)
Loss before tax from continuing BEREER KRB AEE
operations (277,328) (321,529)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiisfi (X)) e 13 (12,380) 4,954
Loss for the year from continuing FHERKEEB I REEEIE
operations 10 (289,708) (316,575)
Discontinued operations BRI E
Loss for the year AEEEIE 8 (149,120) (131,168)
Loss for the year REEEIE (438,828) (447,743)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

raBaMAMERAKRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

2020 2019
—EIEF — I
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHExT FHTT
(Restated)
(&E5))
Loss for the year attributable to: LN ALTEEREERIS :
Owners of the Company KABHEA A (404,226) (895,006)
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR AR R M 2 (34,602) (52,737)
(438,828) (447,743)
Other comprehensive loss after tax: (R ZHEMEHEEIR :
Items that may be reclassified HEAEE D HE B m &
subsequently to profit or loss: IHH :
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation BREGINEBI B HREK 2
of financial statements of foreign &5 (E518) W
operations (16,224) 18,573
Release of translation reserves upon  EHE — /B AT MRS 2
disposal of subsidiaries e FE - (4,245)
Item that may not be reclassified BT EF D EEER L
subsequently to profit or loss: IHH :
Financial assets at fair value through  #ZAFEREME2EILA
other comprehensive income HIER (M2 A FEREA
(“FVTOCI”) 2EKATIERED 2 2mEE (21,482) (129,923)
Other comprehensive income for the year JRA#5 B & & ¥ 15 7 NFE
arising from continued operations Hih2mEUA (37,706) (120,595)
Total comprehensive income for FEZEMAKRA
the year (476,534) (568,338)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

srafBm MEM R EIAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FET T
(Restated)
(&E7))
Total comprehensive income for UMTATEEEEZE
the year attributable to: A
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZZEDN (438,449) (515,683)
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR AR R M 2 (38,085) (52,655)
(476,534) (568,338)
Total comprehensive income for BRRLULT&E2ARRA T
the year attributable to BEEAEBLEEEZE
the owners of the Company A
arise from:
- Continuing operations —RHEKSEER (327,414) (437,170)
- Discontinued operations — BRI E T (149,120) (131,168)
(476,534) (568,338)
Loss per share from continuing FEREATERBEAZ
operations attributable to equity FERKEEBORIERE
holders of the Company: B o2F5REE :
Basic (HK$) EAR(ETT) 15 (0.180) (0.360)
Diluted (HK$) g (8TT) 15 (0.180) (0.360)
Loss per share from discontinued SEBRAQATERFTEAZ
operations attributable to equity ERIEKEEL
holders of the company: SERERE
Basic (HK$) HEA(ET) 15 (0.090) (0.149)
Diluted (HK$) ¥ (Br) 15 (0.090) (0.149)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARERIIEARER

As at 31 December 2020 RZZE_EF+_-_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R=2=2F% R-ZT-NF
+=ZA=+-8B +=-A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FERT FAT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB N ERE 16 1,304 1,516
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 - -
Goodwill B 18 - -
Other intangible assets HihEp & 20 - 16,345
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WENE AT Zix% 36 - 146,512
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAFEREMEERAIR
TRIEE 21 - 31,522
Non-current rental deposits JEREBAEZ S 23 7,571 14,044
8,875 209,939
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 1,378 6,738
Trade receivables 25 eI 23 80 4,012
Deposits, prepayments and other & - BAREREM
receivables FEM R IE 23 137,391 1145 514
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEREBERYIEZ
S RIEE 24 - 299,520
Cash and bank balances/pledged e NIR1THES T EA
bank deposits RITIER 25 4,767 19,210
143,616 343,994
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables H 5 N FIE 26 7,996 19,638
Accrued charges and other payables  fEztE B [ H (i fE {1t BR 18 27 139,314 181,153
Contract liabilities BHER 28 3,900 21,169
Lease liabilities HEBR 17 17,028 24,094
Shareholder’s loans EERE R 29 20,295 =
Other borrowing HMER 30 - 55,172
Current tax liabilities EHTIEERE 12,564 -
201,097 301,226
Net current (liabilities)/assets ERE(AE)EE (57,481) 42,768
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARERIIEARER

As at 31 December 2020 R—ZE -F&F+-HA=+—0

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R=2=2F% R-ZT-NF
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
{iEs FTHET THET
Total assets less current liabilities #EERTHEE (48,606) 252,707
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Shareholder’s loans R E R 29 - 207,298
Lease liabilities ﬁﬂ y=Lr 17 5,870 25,425
Deferred tax liabilities IRIEFHIEE E 31 674 2,351
6,544 235,074
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS B(BE) EE (55,150) 17,633
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital R 32 570,858 175,858
Reserves ] (512,730) (83,032)
Equity attributable to owners of KARIEER AE(EER
the Company 58,128 92,826
Non-controlling interests i e (113,278) (75,193)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/TOTAL (BAREH) AR
EQUITY (55,150) 17,633
The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 234 were F104E2 F 234 B MGV BREER - —
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson 31 £ =H=+—HEs® $ 2 = ﬁg 2% & B
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: LTFATRAZE
Wang Chuang Huo Chunyu
ES| EE5E
Director Director
BEFE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/T\

e 7
T Z \Il\l:lll\%bi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

—7—7

—PE A=t RLEE

Non-
controling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company nterests equity
E2
ARTAREAEE RE#ER  Baa
Share
Share Share  Translation Special QOther option FVOCI  Accumuated
capital ~ premium resere reserve reserve reserve reserve loss  Sub-total
BATE
REBZE
WA
RE  BEE  #EEE  NEEE  AbBR BRERR  0RE  RiER At
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000
Tér  Thn  Thn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr TR TEx
(note ) (note
(k) (i)
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-nE-A-A 175868 3,196,996 (32,99 (00) (410,468 42,156 48517 (2414090 605779  (38516) 567,263
Loss for the year EREE = = = = - - - (5008 (305000 (2737 (447,743
Other comprehensive income E2ERA
Exchange gain on tranlation of financial ~ EEEINERER XL
statements of foreign operations il - - 13,491 - - - - - 13,491 82 13,573
Releass of translation reserve upon RtE-HELRMERZ
disposal of a subsidiary ERE - - (4,045) - - - - - (4,045) - (4,245)
Fair value change of FVOCI BATEREMZERAGIR
JhEEEY - - - - - - (129929 - (129,93 - (12999
Total comprehensive income for ER2ENAEE
the year - - 9,246 - - - (129923 (395006) (516,68 (52,655  (568,338)
Deemed capital contibution from shareholder {ER BRRATE - - - - 1334 - - - 1334 - 134
Equity- settled share-based WREEENIRG a25
payments (Note 37) B (ST - - - - - 5,367 - - 5,367 - 5,367
Lapse of share option (Note 37) BREXR() - - - - - (7,224) - 724 - - -
Acaistion of non-controling WEFRRRRER
nterest - - - - (15978 - - - (15,078) 15,978 -
At 31 December 2019 R=-hEt=B=1-A 175868 319699  (23,749) (000 (4131000 40299  (81406) (2801879 92826 (75193 17,633
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

“m

dEN 7
T Z \Il\l:lll\%bi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —

—7—7

—E A=+ ALEE

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests  equity
#28
BLAREARL RREs  gEaH
Convertible ~ Retained
Share bonds  profits/
Share  Share Translation ~ Special ~ Other  option  FVOCI equity (Accumulated
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve loss) ~ Sub-total
BOTE
REfRE
BASE TERES REEN/
Rt BOEE HERE GRRE ARBE BRESE  NBR  BERE (2HER) it
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR  TEn  TEn  THEr  TEr  TEn TR TEr  TEn  THEn TEn  TEn
fnotel) — (note])
() (M)
At1 January 2020 W-E2%5-F-R 175,858 3,196,096  (28,749) (200 (413,100 40,209  (81,406) - 2801872 92826  (15,193) 17,633
Loss for the year R - - - - - - - - (255,106) (265,106)  (34,602) (289,708)
Loss of the ciscontinued operation BAIHERRE 2 ER - - - - - - - - (149,120 (149,120) - (149,120)
Other comprehensive income E’MWA
Fair vaue change of FVOC! EREBZERAGIRZ
7 - - - - - - ) - - ) - 1)
Exchange loss on translation of ChE S e
financial statements of foreign operations EEE - - (114) - - - - - - (174) (3483 (16,224)
Total comprehensive income for ERARBYA
ihe year - - () - - - ) - (40426 (43849 (38085  (4765%)
Fquit-setlled share-based IREGENNRAAER
payments LIRES - - - - - 2,234 - - - 2,034 - 2034
Lapse of share options bR - - - - - (408 - T - - -
Share placement RiriE 100,000 - - - - - - - - 100,000 - 100,000
Share ssue expenses R 'F?i -8 - - - - - - - -6
Subscription and Settlement Agreements F Hit 80,000 - - - - - - - - 80,000 - 80,000
Recognition of equity component
of convertible bonds (note 44) - - - - - - - T4350 - 74350 - T43%0
Disposal of investments in equity instruments
at Fvtocl i - - - - - - 102,888 - (102,888) - - -
Conversion of convertiole bonds (note 44) T}‘*Ma Wa4) 215,000 1,334 - - - - - (74350) - 147,984 - 147,984
At31 December 2020 H-B-BEtzp=1-8 SI0858 3203513 (36490  (200) (3,100 38449 - - (3304900 58128 (113278 (55,150)
Notes: B &E
(i) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal (i) BREEEASER_ZT—FEHEK - #HIK
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal MR QARG EEREARNR AR EZENE
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time RAIM TREITZARRIROEBEZEZ5E -
of the Group’s reorganisation in 2001.
(i) The other reserve represents (1) the difference between the fair value (ii) H AR 35 (1) 312 IR M B A B 2 BRAE AR A A2
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in subsidiaries B> AT (E B I Hiﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁé B 4oEE > Edm
and the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interest; and % (2 )%Ef’ﬁﬁx?&é?aHxﬁg%“\ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ/v\ N
(2) deemed capital contribution from shareholders, represented BRI ERE o AT (E iR (E7E 5 (S B e
the difference between the principal amount of the shareholder’s IE1E§+;K§KIE$MLFZE 5
loan and its fair value. The fair value is determined by discounting
the estimate future cash flows throughout the expected life of the
repayment.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

el TnER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z-FEF+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BZE =
—EEF —ThF
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
IHEE FFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 FHERT T
Cash flows from operating activities R EEZHERE
Loss before income tax KRS ATE 1R (425,303) (456,644)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ H i 2 & 2= £ 4 20 - 22,845
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 17 - 20,154
Depreciation of owned property, BEYE BER
plant and equipment SETE 16 1,731 8,692
Interest income FMEWA 6 (23) (4195)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz Yz 43 (3,548) (8,676)
Gain on disposals of property, HEYE WMERREZ
plant and equipment, net Wz CF58) 6 (259) (587)
Fair value change on financial assets BRATERNERTIIR 2
at FVTPL ERMEEZ AN FEEE 24 (2,340) (1,224)
Fair value loss on contingent JEU S ARAE 2
consideration receivables NEEBE 19 - 4,587
Equity-settled share-based AR i E 2 R
payment expenses SANE-4E 10 2,234 5,367
Interest expenses FMEER 9 16,828 5,343
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,696 2,285
Deposits, prepayments and other TaftiRe & E A fE M R IE M SE
receivables written off 100,000 -
Impairment loss on property, ME - BEMREZ
plant and equipment BEEE 16 - 94,118
Impairment loss on intangible assets B A E M EEE 20 - 70,697
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {4 & & i (E 518 17 - 52,049
Recognition of expected credit loss on  #RE 5 EWFIETE L
trade receivables EEEE 23 663 1,149
Recognition of expected TR E At FE U R IR
credit loss on other receivables BHEEER 23 36,762 19,636
Inventory written off FERE 10 - 22,598
Gain on concession lease HEEFT 2 Wax (4,424) -
Operating loss before EEESREA KL R
working capital changes (275,724) (138,026)
Decrease in inventories FERD 545 1,859
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 2 3 EUEIB(#200),H (932) 1,730
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, Be - BRI RIE R E A EYRIE
prepayments and other receivables (40),/ /b (152,126) 88,117
Decrease in trade payables g S RENFER S (11,642) (3,965)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHBERD (17,269) (7,507)
Decrease in accrued charges and T2 73 N EL Ath & < BR IE R,
other payables 61,103 36,745
Cash used in operations REXBEAZRE (396,045) (21,047)
Income taxes paid BEPEH - -
Interest on lease liabilities paid ENEEEENE (1,696) (2,285)
Net cash used in RETBHEARSFHE
operating activities (397,741) (23,332)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\/\EE stz ;ﬁ:%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Bz =
—EEF —T-NF
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
ILFE FFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 FERT FAT
Cash flows from investing activities RETZHZRERE
Interest received =R RS 23 415
Decrease in pledged and restricted BRI % R ST 20R A
deposits deposits 9,921 407,647
Payment of deposits for acquisition W EEHTE A AR &
of subsidiaries - (2,195)
Purchase of property, BEWE BEA&RE
plant and equipment - (2,190)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMERLEE 20 - (3,549)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEWBARZ
of subsidiary REMAFRE 43 15,160 4,998
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E% - KE M
and equipment RS FR - 1,666
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets & # A FER Bz R 2
of fair value through profit or loss CREEZFTEHIE 301,860 =
Net cash generated from investing RETHFE
activities Re&FE 326,964 406,792
Cash flows from financing activities REZH2HERE 35
Proceeds from share placing Hx1 IR A3 5078 99,183 -
Proceeds from shareholder’s loan R ERTERIE 20,295 -
Repayment of shareholder’s loan BEREER - (37,6995)
Refund of deposits for acquisition of U BEKT B A R 2 &R
subsidiary 46,512 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries &K BA T FT15 %A - -
Repayment of bank borrowings & i@fﬁfﬂﬁ?ﬁ’\ - (389,300)
Repayment of principal elements BEREAERESHS
of lease liabilities (26,621) (18,235)
Proceeds from other borrowings HAEFRATE R - 55,172
Repayment of other borrowings B8 KA g X (55,172) -
Interest paid on other borrowings BN EMERZHE (14,494) -
Interest paid on bank borrowings EASRITERZHE - (1,405)
Interest paid on convertible bonds AR EHE N E (2,334) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETHMRE (R HLTHE
financing activities 67,639 (893,748)
Net decrease in cash and cash BERBEELEEEEZ
equivalents WD RE (3,408) (10,288)
Cash and cash equivalents at FENzBHER
beginning of the year RE&ZEER 25 9,289 20,062
Effect of exchange rate changes on EZ#HUHELER
cash and cash equivalents ReEEERZTE (1,114) (485)
Cash and cash equivalents ERZBEERAELEEEE
at end of the year 25 4,767 9,289
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

104

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20
April 2001. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2861, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is Suite 2310-18th, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2021.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2020

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 for the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Definition of Material

— R

REBEEBRE2EREERAR(IARAE R
—EE-—FUA-THERERSHS QA
FE(ZEZE-FEBFIR)ERS ST MK
VREREBRAR c M ERKE
S 2 B 2 s AiE 5 Bl A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &
BEABNERPEHBABEIRREEEANE
2310-18%E - ARAIRHNEBEBHER S
FrBER AR ([BEZZFT])GEM LTI °

ARR I —RREZEBRR - HE BB
RAZEBFBHANGEE B mRM T
39 ARRIREMBAR TXGHEA K
£®] -
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BRIAESD -

BE_T-_THE+_A=1T—HLFEN
HEMBHRRENR T _—F=A=1+—
BERESSHAETE -

RMBRBYBHRE
B REZER )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ¥4 %.55 Bt 7% 3R %&E A ([ &7

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B3RS 2R |) (&)

(CONT’D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 2.1 f?lv NHTE] - AEANEET & BRI R
on 1 January 2020 (Cont’d) ER-H—F_—FF—F—

E;tg::ﬁ:_)&(nﬁ)

In addition, the Group has early applied the AN REBEBIREEANET B HR
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent HEBIFE165REF] ACOVID-194H 7
Concession. HEBER -

The adoption of these new and amended HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies and had no material impact on how
the results and financial positions for the current and
prior periods have been prepared and presented.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information,
in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments in the current
year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BN EBTBHREEDN(FH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B &R E AR |) (&)

(CONT’D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 2.1 BRANFTET - AENEET & BB

on 1 January 2020 (Cont’d)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments clarify that
while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets
to qualify as a business. To be considered a business,
an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs. The amendments also introduce additional
guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive
process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. Under the optional concentration
test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election
on whether to apply the optional concentration test is
available on transaction-by-transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group but may impact
future periods should the Group make any acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RN \5 BRmEER([E)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B3RS 2R |) (&)
(CONT’D)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 2.2 B MEME R LAY FTET A
issued but are not yet effective 155T & BB #R & 2E A
Other than the Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19- BEBM GRS ERF165E(E 5] A
Related Rent Concessions, the Group has not applied COVID-19/8EH & B =4I » XEE
any new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued, 3 AR B A {a] 2 58 5 18 18 7R A8 RUAD T
but are not yet effective and have not been early ST RRIESTE B ERE AR - B
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention AAREFREERMN - NEBR R
is to apply these changes on the date they become RZEEHERERARAEEES -
effective. These new and revised HKFRSs include the ZE R RIS R BB M 5 S 22 R
following which may be relevant to the Group. BIEAT A ge RS =R -
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related ERRBREERNSE7E RRAARBBE
Amendments'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent BRI BREENSE16% COVID-19iEEES
Concessions* CHES S
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual Framework? EEMBREENFES  HAELMNIET?
EHE
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - BEANBREENEON « FIRLEYE - F_[HES
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2° BB EITERIE305% -
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 BABREERET
W BARERSEN
FARRBBUBRE

ERIZ163 AT A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

FRMBREEAE10% RAZBBEBENAR
RERGEAFNE AELCRIBNEE

Associate or Joint Venture® B A HEHTEAS
Amendments to HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification RESHENSIRETA BEABARYHAER
of Liabilities as Current or Non- PURBBRE
current and related amendments to E59 2R
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)' (Z2-Z%)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and Equipment: BAEEERFE 16T nE - BEREZE-#T
Proceeds before Intended Use? CHp RIS 3R
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling BBEFERETH BREAN-BTAY
a Contract? CHEN PR
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ERRBREEREITA FANKGSEN-Z
2018-2020 cycle? —NFEZT_Z iz
EE Y
1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1. N_ZE_=F—A—Bskz®&FEK
January 2023. 2 FE AR AR -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2, R-_ZTE-_—_F—H—Bsz®&RAK
January 2022. FEBRMAER -

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

B
S REEANSLL EE2 FRBE
/)( o

% Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 4. N—T_FENXA-BHZEHAR
2020. ZFEEEBER -
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5. N—ZE—_—F—A—HBskz®%&FEK

January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

108

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 17 - Insurance contracts and the related
Amendments

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle
based standard for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
in the financial statements of the issuers of those
contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ¥4 %.55 R EZER ([ &)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B FE SR A |) E)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that
meets all of the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on
the Group’s financial position and performance as the
Group does not intend to apply the practical expedient.

2.2 EMEM1E [l AR £ XL BY#TE] B AR

1EE] BB B EER (4F)

EEBUBHREERF16 51557 K
COVID-19#BH £ EX

ZEFTAR T _TFRA—HHZ
fs%F’aﬂil‘*ZiE/HﬂF'Elixﬁl

PSR AR BEMBASIEFHNIITER
FAEEE A EENF{ECOVID-1948
AL ERREAA—HEEBE] - %
AITHEE R AEERBRMENATNE
&R COVID-19EEEANH L E
=
e MHENZKEHEHWHEEMNK
BERERZZEHINEE
REEXRHBSIERZNE

e MENRMBIEXERER
—E - —FXRA=THZZH
FHIMAR K

. BEEOHHEERREEDEE
BB -

FER R THREE AN AR AAEER
FEMBRELERF1FHEKREE
NREHAR(HESHWIFHEERT)
MRE—-TASEEERESHWEEN
REFHIR HENTNRRLHR
RWARINERIBEENK - HEA
fﬁ%%ﬂﬂuﬁ% T RRRRNE

C WRHEFBEENMAERESD
Ewﬂ*ﬁﬁm%& ©

AEEEHERZFEITETER
MBRRREKR - AR/AKETHE
RAIfTRETX

2020 3 PEBEBERARERAR 109



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

110

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business

Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued
in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)
instead of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010);

add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it
has assumed in a business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2 relate to the modification of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, specific
hedge accounting requirements and disclosure
requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures to accompany the amendments regarding
modifications and hedge accounting.

° Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities. A practical expedient is
introduced for modifications required by the
reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and made on an economically equivalent
basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updating the effective interest rate. All
other modifications are accounted for using the
current HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical
expedient is proposed for lessee accounting
applying HKFRS 16;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

112

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2 (Cont’d)

Hedge accounting requirements. Under
the amendments, hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the interest
rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships
(and related documentation) are required to be
amended to reflect modifications to the hedged
item, hedging instrument and hedged risk.
Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting,
including effectiveness requirements; and

Disclosures. The amendments require
disclosures in order to allow users to understand
the nature and extent of risks arising from the
interest rate benchmark reform to which the
Group is exposed to and how the entity manages
those risks as well as the entity’s progress in
transitioning from interbank offered rates to
alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing this transition.

The Group expects no significant gains or losses
should the interest rate benchmark for these loans
change resulting from the reform on application of the
amendments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does not
test compliance until a later date; and (Note)

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ¥4 %.55 B 7% ¥R %&E ) ([ &
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ISR EER ) (&)
(CONT’D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item
that were produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples
produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised
and measured in the profit or loss in accordance
with applicable standards. The cost of the items are
measured in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses
whether a contract is onerous in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, the unavoidable costs under the
contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling
it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it. Costs of fulfilling the contract include
incremental costs and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example,
an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which
the Group has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the
date of initial application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONT’D)

% 3 & ZE B

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the
following standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only
fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the example
the illustration of reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to remove any
potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the
requirements in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
by removing the requirement in paragraph 22 of HKAS
41 to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

116

@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are stated at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Cont’d)
Material uncertainty related to going concern

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
incurred a loss of approximately HK$404,226,000
attributable to owners of the Company and as at 31
December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$57,481,000 and
HK$55,150,000 respectively. Based on the current
liquidity position of the Group, the Group might have
financial uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the impact of the current
and anticipated future liquidity of the Group. The
validity of the Group to operate as a going concern
is dependent upon the successful outcomes of the
Group to (i) attain profitable and positive cash flows
from operations; (ii) extend the repayment terms of the
Group’s indebtedness; and (i) complete debt or capital
financing, at a level sufficient to finance the working
capital requirements and financial obligations of the
Group.

Having considered the above measures, the directors
considered that it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. In order to strengthen the Group’s capital
base and liquidity in the foreseeable future, the Group
has taken the following measures:

° the directors of the Company have been taking
various cost control measures to tighten the
costs of operations and implementing various
strategies to enhance the Group’s revenue;

o negotiated and agreed with certain creditors
with payables amounted to approximately
HK$57,494,000 to extend the repayment terms
for not demanding immediate repayment until the
Group is financially capable to do so; and

° identifying opportunities for debt or capital
financing.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

118

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Cont’d)

Material uncertainty related to going concern
(Cont’d)

Based on the cash flow projections of the Group
and having taken into account the available financial
resources of the Group with the above measures, the
directors have concluded that the Group is able to
continue as a going concern and to meet their financial
liabilities as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months. Should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to the financial statements to adjust the value of
the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

Restatements due to discontinued
operations

The presentation of comparative information in respect
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2019 has been restated in order to disclose
the discontinued operations separately from continuing
operations.

As the restatements do not affect the consolidated
statement of financial position, it is not necessary to
disclose comparative information as at 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

120

@

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a2 maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

4. FESTEHE(E)

(b)

(c)

2020 i FEBLEBE2ERERAT

118 2 5]

B I8 2 B) 2 AN SR [ BE S Y EL AT (B 4% 6
BoEIRETT - MRTE T2
—ERE - AMAKREZEFHRIKRE
7T AIHBRIRETITERES - A
KEERZBRET ZARIBEERR
BEREXRENZAZHEE - REH
EREBNRTZEERAEE DR -
BEFERBRABREAZSTEH R
RERGEHBRZHE - MSENNE
ELEBEGE -

RARBZHBERRERA - KK B A
Al BRI ERMERE(INE)
IRk o "R RRH B R B RAEARK
DA W W st B A R B o

IEBRE

AP mRIIABT(TET]) 25
BILINRARRA 2SS -

REEEBZERIMBHRERTD - INE
RHGRBRXHERABITZERBER
ERERNEES - RBERH -
MONESHEZ EREERABRRS
ERATCERRE REFZER
HERHEAPEHNRETEEEN
BEMELZEL K RERANE
P RERR o I R AN LASNEE FHE EY
FEWHEB AL |EFME o

121



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

122

(c)

(@)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rate over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings over 50 years or the
terms of the leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5%-25%
Computer equipment 33%

Motor vehicles 20%-25%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

()

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (note 4(n)).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

124

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use. The following
useful lives are applied:

Trademark 15 years
Patents 7-15 years
Capitalised development costs 10 years
Licensing agreement 7 years

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product for
it to be sold;

° Adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

9)

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises
it judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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9)

Leasing (Cont’d)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(h) Financial Instruments

0]

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments as following measurement
category:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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128

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

(i)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(h) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

0]

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies,
the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at FVOCI are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
aged more than 90 days.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired or default when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is aged more than 90
days.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

4. FESTEHE(E)

(h) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(h) Z=@TLHE)
(iii) @A E

(iij)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings and liability
element of convertible bonds issued by the Group
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue
of the convertible and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the
convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).
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(CONT’D)
(h) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iij)  Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Cont’d)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
upon conversion or expiration of the option.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.

Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(h) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL provision
measured in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in note 4(i)(ii); and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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134

(h) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(1)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress
and finished goods, cost also comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, time deposits with banks within original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time when
the goods are transferred and the customer has
received the goods, since only by the time the Group
has a present right to payment for the goods delivered.
For the provision of service, revenue is recognised
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. There is no right of return, volume rebate
and warranty arrangement for the sales of goods and
provision for services.

There is no significant financing components for the
contracts and the consideration is not variable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

()

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the delivery under such sales contracts
but yet certified by customers. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the
Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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(m) Government grants

(n)

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions. Government grants relating to
costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries,
other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
right of use assets, land use rights and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash generating unit, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
has been recognised.
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(o) Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in the Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(o)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. The value
is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any nonmarket vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit
to share-based payment reserve, net of deferred tax
where applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number of
share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised in
prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately
are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over
the remaining vesting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)
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(p)

(Q)

Share-based payments (Cont’d)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

4. FESTEHE(E)

Fris¥z &at 5%

(r) Accounting for income taxes (r)

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary difference arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

2020 i FEBLEBE2ERERAT

ISR EeREMRRAMEERE -

BHREHEER /HEBEBRERR
TR AEREH(ERHRE BB H

AXM)  ABRBERAABREZR
THREBRBERZRE - ETRE
FRARRB G - REBYBHRE
BABRE KPR H - SPIRAE

HEEz—BEHHRIER
MIER S < —3H °

§ R

EEFADEREERABERRE
HEEAEMQ#&%%ZEE@TEAA 5 EZ?FR
HEZERERNAELNE - BER
Iﬁﬁfs*ﬂﬁﬁvtﬁﬁﬁﬁn%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁv%ﬁﬁﬁ
R WAl IR ERTR A (BRI
BEERAMEREZR) AR HRET
HEE  KRPABABELRS AR
BiE%  AISLAABARIHIRERESR -
Az MIBEEAREMAREAH
BELEDECHRAEE -

1t R 7 B sk 1) P RERR (SR TS 8 BERR O
ARGRZEENAEELEZERER
HERBMLEAEZVETLE - AT

EREERAEENRARE -

RBARZREEL ZERTE K

ZRERBELERARE @ ERAK
Bt ERER 2B NERER
A& 1A A] 5L 2R 5 Bl R B o

BREMEBNIZRBPRABEEERE
F“tﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁszﬁit(ﬂ’ﬁﬂﬁ
B WEBHENAERNRE HE
Egﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁi)ﬁz*ﬂ% o

143



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

4.

144

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

() Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@)  The Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

4. FESTEHE(E)

(r)

Fris¥ &t 5% ()

EEFAEEXABEH N EET
R MiHREtMEERASER
B ERT AR AR AR
AP0 H b 2 T MR 3 B 3R X HE R B

=7
o °©

ENPEEERENTEEERGN
ARIERAFEREZS

(a) AEEFEBRHIANITEANA
RERRSELHE &

(b) HEILUBEIEREHE AR
RAERBERM -

$EIAEEMTIRTMEEEN
BRIERBEENMELEHIARE ¢

(a) ZEBEEBABIANTEAN
HEMHBEEERERRER
EEIE I

(o) EEHBEERELERHAAE
ERRRF —HBEEERLIA T E
o] —IEP R B PR 1S TR

() R—ERRER: L

(i) FEINSERARREE (M
BHRERBUEAKES
U EREEAELENIHEA
BREE)NFBEES
HERARRABEREEEN
RSZEREENRGERE
MARERAERE -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

4. FESTEHE(E)

(s) Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors, being the chief operating decision makers
of the Group, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial
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information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and

service lines.
The Group has identified the following continuing REBED R YE &L 275 K& Al
operations and reportable segments: E/RHEL :

ARE®ERE — ARE®DM
RGN EEMIHE

(i) Cell and products and services — production and (i)
sales of cell products and services;

fezmm B AR — (LA B fm M AR
BOEEMHEE : &

(i)  Cosmetic products and services — production (ii)
and sales of cosmetic products and services; and

REEFEmMRSG - KEEE
A ARFGHY EEMIHE o

(i)  Healthcare products and services — production (iii)
and sales of healthcare products and services.
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(s)

146

Segment reporting (Cont’d)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that:

fair value changes on contingent consideration
receivables

- finance costs
- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except FVOCI,
FVTPL and corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment and are not allocated to
a segment. These include deferred tax liabilities and
liabilities incurred for financing rather than operating
purposes.

(s)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

(t) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

148

t

(u)

Related parties (Cont’d)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(1)

(i)

Going concern basis

These financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent
upon the successful outcomes of the Group as
set forth in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements to (i) attain profitable and positive cash
flows from operations; (ii) extend the repayment terms
of the Group’s indebtedness; and (iii) complete debt
or capital financing, at a level sufficient to finance the
working capital requirements and financial obligations
of the Group. Details are explained in note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on ageing analysis for groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECLs to be incurred, which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing
of trade receivables, customers’ repayment history
and customers’ financial position and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

150

(1)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables (Cont’d)

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. The information about the ECLs and
the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note
42. If the financial condition of the customers or the
forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
The Group’s management determines the impairment
of trade and other receivables on a regular basis.
This estimate is based on the credit history of its
customers or debtors and current market conditions.
Management reassesses the impairment of trade and
other receivables at the reporting date.

For other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, they are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. The
Group recognised the provision for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
debtors, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery
and considering the prevailing economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s trade and other receivables were HK$80,000
and HK$137,391,000 (2019: HK$4,012,000
and HK$14,514,000) net of allowance for ECLs
of HK$74,106,000 and HK$56,791,000 (2019:
HK$138,062,000 and HK$20,029,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EA%
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

SEHEET R A E (&)

(iii) Estimated impairment of other intangible

(i) BEREELEVAMBELEE

assets, right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment related to cash-
generating units

The carrying values of other intangible assets, right-
of-use assets and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment when there are any indications
that the carrying value of other intangible assets, right-
of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use/fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates about future cash flows and discount rates.

In the process of estimating expected future cash
flows, management makes assumptions about future
revenues and profits. The assumptions about future
revenues are mainly based on the actual financial
performance of the Group’s revenue from respective
cash generating unit for the year, the current market
demand of the products in the PRC, the current supply
of the similar products in the market, the estimated
utilisation of the Group’s production capacity and the
management’s current assessment of the economic
outlook. The unit selling price is assumed to remain
constant throughout the forecasted period. The
assumptions about future profits are mainly based on
the available market data of the profit margin ratio of
companies engaged in respective cash generating unit
in the PRC and global market. As these assumptions
relate to future events and circumstances, the actual
results may vary and may cause a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of goodwill, other intangible
assets, right- of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment within the next financial year.

2020 i FEBLEBE2ERERAT

B RAREEURYE B
B R& 1 BE

Hith B\ EE - EREEENLD
% BEEREBZETEDREFED
REPEMBELEE - ERABEEEN
EWE - BERREZREEREE
R B AT TR E R iﬁ%?i%
gy K g R REE R

BERHEKRAETE ux(ﬁu-l_rr/iﬁlﬁi
ARERE ML R REH R -

REFARMARRSRNBES &
IR JE iR 2K s B0 A L RER o

FAARKRBENBRRDEIBENRAEER
FARBHEBREEELEEUNKE
MERMBRER  EmRTENEF
MHEFR - RTHEUERDN B A

fE - BERAANEENEERE LT
EEL BRI SEN ST o BEE
UEEREEBINPEEFTE - F
BRI Hm AN REZ T EZEEREFE
NERMGP R AAERESEEELME
MABENAATISEE - HRZER
HNATARREGRER  BERLE

BEEFTRZE WA LB BN T —BF
BEEHHE  HtwEREE  FH
BEENRYE BERXEBEREDE
EEBERFE -

151



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

152

(iii)

(iv)

Estimated impairment of other intangible
assets, right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment related to cash-
generating units (Cont’d)

Determining the appropriate discount rate involves
estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk
and for asset specific risk factors. The management
has taken consideration of risk-free rate (reference to
the yield of the long term bond issued in the PRC),
the cost of equity and debt of the companies in
respective industry and other possible risk factors
such as the market capitalisation of the Group in
estimating the discount rate. Details of the estimates of
the recoverable amounts of cash generating units are
disclosed in note 18.

Fair value measurement

A number of financial assets included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2. Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(iv) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

(v)

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures the financial instruments (note 21
and 24) at fair value. For more detailed information in
relation to the fair value of measurement of the items
above, please refer to the applicable notes.

Principal versus agent consideration
(principal)

The Group engages in healthcare products and
services during the year. The Group concluded that
the Group acts as the principal for such transactions
as it controls the specified products and services
before it is transferred to the customer after taking into
consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the
products and services. When the Group satisfies the
performance obligation, the Group recognises such
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled as specified in the
contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised revenue relating to healthcare products
and services amounted to HK$182,136,000, which
was substantially generated through the platform
of Changzhou XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd,
which Mr. Wang Chuang acted as the previous chief
executive officer of that company.

5.

28 i

(iv)

(v)

2020 i FEBLEBE2ERERAT

SEHEET R A E (&)

N FEE (E)

DRRLEMERHNIRE THERFER
HZBEATEFEELEATEZ
REZRBABERTE - FRHEEAR
%ﬁémﬁ%i%@%ﬁﬁgwb °©

AEBZAFEFESMIT A (M
21%24) - B EalIE B QA FE:T
ENEZHIBHLHERNE -

ZHALBAREFAE(ZHEA)

AEERF RN ENEEE®RNR
%o ARERER R AEEEEZ
FEXFNEREAN BREEAEFHE
BRIIR S T 15 E M E am M RT - B
EERAKEIERRERITREER
KRG HAHFER - EAKERETT

BB IR NEBERERAERKA
CRAARERNERESA M
ERMRERR -

RBE-_ZT-_ZFTF+_-_A=+—H1t
FE - ANEBRERA AR R E SR
% HEEE U A 5182,136,000/8 7T © K
HomENmEELEEZRMZAER
NEMFEBELE ﬁﬁIF%ﬁfEITﬁ;E
ZARNEELEE -

153



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINAND 6. W& KEkEMKA » Kz KkEE
LOSS

The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal REF 7 EXBENERFEEAREEE
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold 2R REEERUCREREEEF
or service provided during the years presented. Bt & 2 W o
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
(Restated)
(&&&E3))
Contracts with customers within the BREBY G LR FE155
scope of HKFRS 15: BEANHNEEEL
Continuing operations BREREEK
Sales of goods (point in time) HESm (R 1,528 6,852
Services income (over time) BRA UL A (B ER) 183,811 12,513
185,339 19,365
Discontinued operations CRIEEEXK
Sales of goods (point in time) HEE MRS - =
Services income (over time) BRASUTA (B FEIER ) 23,720 28,606
23,720 28,606
209,059 47,971
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 —_E-_TF + _A=1+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINAND 6. &R EMUA - S REE
LOSS (CONT'D) (&)
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AREBCDEREAM RS ERE1558
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts such that the above FI2IBEFNAITEEFEANEHEESYD
information does not include information about revenue that AR BT TR EARNEERTX
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining RETEHFHAE —FHUT 2REE LIE
performance obligations under the contracts for services that T HHEBHSEEBEESZWZNE
had an original expected duration of one year or less. e
Other income, gain and loss recognised from continuing AREBABERLEEHR 7O EREM
operations during the year is as follows: A W RSB
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Bank interest income ER1T ) EWA 23 2
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA Rz W - 8,676
Government grant income (note) BT B A (B 5E) 4,373 7,193
COVID-19-related rent concessions A AR AIARCOVID-19
from lessors HEESESR 4,424 -
Others Hih 7,212 -
16,032 15,871
Note: These government grant income refers to the government Wik : ZERSMERAETR BB QR AR
subsidy received by the PRC subsidiaries for the research BEIE B 7 2 — E R T U B
and development project or upon satisfaction of specific AL - ZEBNMHEE T WL & BT
conditions. They were received and complied with all attached EffEiGgHE B RERNERBE+TE
conditions and therefore recognised in profit or loss during the R e
year.
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156

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors, being the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”) of the Company have identified the
Group’s three business lines as operating segments as
further described in note 4(s). The operating segments
are monitored and strategic decisions are made on the
basis of adjusted segment operating results. Revenue is
disaggregated by major products (recognised at a point in
time) and services (recognised over time).

During the year, the Group disposed of its Dermatology and
others, Ophthalmology products, and Stomatology products
and others business (the “Discontinued operations”) in which
was included in Dermatology, cosmetic products and others,
Cell, healthcare products and services, and Stomatology
products segments for the year ended 31 December
2019. Since the Discontinued operations represented a
major line of Dermatology, cosmetic products and others,
Cell, healthcare products and services, and Stomatology
products segment of the Group, and regarded as a
discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
Accordingly, the related financial information of the
Discontinued operations was not included in the operating
segment information from the continuing operations and the
comparative information was also reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation. Further details of the
discontinued operation are set out in note 8.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. There was no inter-segment sale or
transfer during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil). Central revenue and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as they are not included in the measure
of the segments’ results that is used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance. Segment assets do
not include financial assets at FVPTL, deposit for acquisition
for subsidiaries, financial assets at FVTOCI, cash and bank
and other unallocation head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities do not include shareholder’s loan,
deferred taxation, other borrowings, lease liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
Continuing operations
BESEEE
Cell products Cosmetic products Healthcare products
and services and services and services Subtotal
ARERREE {tHERER AREERRRH
202 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Zg8%F  CTNF ZBIBE TR ZRCEE TR CEC%E 0 CRE
HK$'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK§000
Thn T -7 T -7 Titn T Thn
(Restatea) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(i E5) (iE5) (iE5) (E5)
Revenue from contracts with customers— BRVE AR A6 £ 28] 5155 85

within the scope of HKFRS 15; ROREANNE :

- From exteral customers -RENREE 1,675 6,225 1,528 8508 182,136 6,308 185,339 21,041
Reportable segment revenug e el e 1,675 6,225 1,521 8,508 182,136 6,308 185,338 21,041
Reportable segment loss BTERI0EE (69,310) (85,646) (65,919) (128,562) 31,609 (40,115) (103,620) (264,328
Amortisation of other intangble assets  ZfEMEEEH - 2,381 - - - - - 2381
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% RERRERE

equipment 255 4,650 - - - - 255 4,650
Depreciation of ight-of-uss assets [FRERE - 11,529 - - - - - 11,529
Impaiment of goodwil EEHE - - - - - - - -
Impaiment of other intangbleassets ~ EREFEERE - 21630 - - - - - 21630
Impaiiment of property, plant and ERE T

equipment - 26,385 - - - - - 26,385
Witten off inventories WEFE - - - - - 19,434 - 19,434
Impairment of right-of-use asses [FRIEAERE - 36,03 - - - 2290 - 38,325
Interest income FISWA 3 3 - - - - 3 3
Reportable segment assets ETZHOIEE 13,068 9402 4,387 1501 48,748 15979 66,203 26,882
Adattons to non-curent seqment assets  ERFEREINTEE 2 FE

during the year - 1790 - = - = - 1790
Reportable segment liabilties ETZHRITEE 76,708 36,744 41,765 67,523 32,131 2,013 151,210 145,080
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B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z-FEF+-A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEBER (&)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments INEE B & & 5 205 TR HY 48 %R B 7N 2 B A B

158

reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

the financial statements as follows:

BH|KRIN RS BRI RO T ¢

2020 2019
—EEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(&=&E5))
Continuing operations FREREEL
Reportable segment revenue AT E2Wy B 185,339 19,365
Group revenue B W= 185,339 19,365
Reportable segment interest income AR 9 BB S M A 23 415
Group’s interest income AEEBHFBWA 23 415
Total reportable segments’ loss AT E2WD EPEIEARTE (103,620) (254,323)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHBA Rz M - 8,676
Gain on disposal of finance assets TESMEE 2 Wa 2,340 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEER (5) -
Unallocated corporate income ROBREZEUWA 21,062 2,961
Unallocated corporate expenses RO EREZ (179,199) (73,274)
Fair value gain on FVPTL BAFERERSERENAFE
gl - 1,224
Fair value loss on contingent consideration FEUEARE 2 A FEERE
receivables - (4,587)
Finance costs B7%E R (17,906) (2,206)
Loss before income tax MRETEHATE R (277,328) (321,529)
Income tax (expense)/credit iR (X)) 1% (12,380) 4,954
Loss for the year from continuing BEKSEER e
operations REERIE (289,708) (316,575)
Discontinued operations CRIEEEER
Loss before income tax MRETEHATE R (112,689) (134,264)
Income tax credit FTiSHiik e 135 3,096
Loss on disposal of equity interest & AR 2 B 1R (36,566) -
Loss for the year REEEIE (149,120) (131,168)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

7. DEBER (&)

2020 2019
—E-EF =—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
(Restated)
(&=&E75))
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets HATERDEEE 66,203 26,882
Financial assets at fair value through profit ZAFERERIIEZ S REE
or loss - 299,520
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR 2SS - 146,512
Financial assets at FVOCI RATEEREMEEEATIEREZ
CRIEE - 31,522
Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4 4,767 1,948
Other corporate assets EmixEE 81,521 47,549
Group assets SEEE 152,491 553,933
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities BATEHHEEE 151,210 145,280
Shareholder’s loans RERE 20,295 207,298
Deferred taxation IEIEF I8 674 2,351
Other borrowing HEMER - 55,172
Lease liabilities HEBE 22,898 7,023
Other corporate liabilities HibEEE 12,564 119,176
Group liabilities EBEEE 207,641 536,300

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs,

AOEEERAXEZBHEIFEEHETMAL

exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental S ER S HIRSEBEAN S TR « & H
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business BE - UESEE RESNER  He

activities of any operating segments. REMEY o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets other than FVOCI, non-current rental
deposits and pledged deposits (“Specified non-current
assets”) are divided into the following geographical areas:

DEER ()

REBEKRBINATEPHW R REIEREE
E(RATFEREMEER AR ZIERE
THMEE  EnBEEEREEREFR
BROIN([FEFRBEE]) RHE ST
T

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREF s BHEIRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B=-%F T NF ZB=FF T NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET FHERT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(J&=5) (& E5))
Continuing operations HEREER
Hong Kong &5 4,068 6,308 320 102,651
The PRC (domicile) AR B (BB TR ) 181,271 14,733 - =
185,339 21,041 320 102,651
Discontinued operations B &I &K& K
Hong Kong BB - - - _
The PRC (domicile) o (EREFTAEM) 23,720 26,930 - 61,722
23,720 26,930 - 61,722
209,059 47,971 320 164,373

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
revenue derived from various customers, 5.9% of the
Group’s revenue depended on a customer in Healthcare
products and services segment. None of which contributed
more than 5% of the Group’s revenue during the year ended
31 December 2019.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on (1) the physical location of the
assets (for property, plant and equipment and land use
rights) and (2) location of operations (for goodwill and other
intangible assets).

BE_T-_THEA_A=+—HLEFE"
AEBEREREZEEP  AREWREN
5.9% KB ABEEmMMRE DB —R
BEP -ERHMEBEEAKEEE_T-NF
TZA=T—HLEFERRE5% °

=5 P s R TS AR IR PT AR 44 2 AR s s 32 A
%’iu%ziﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ ° "# 3F//\L§b§?2iﬂ3¥5
DRBNEEERMAEMCGERR Y -
TR 5 I 5% fa AN - b 5 FR A ) R (2) 4% & P 1R
MGERAREELAMETLEE)ED -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 11 August 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Osibao International Limited
(“Osiban”) to dispose its entire equity interests in China
Regenerative Medicine Tissue Engineering Limited (“CRMT”)
and China Regenerative Hospital Investment Management
Limited (“CRHI”) to Osibao for a total consideration of
HK$35,000,000 in cash (of which HK$23,492,000 and
HK$11,508,000 were attributed to sale of CRMT and CRHI
respectively) (altogether known as “Disposal Group”). On
30 September 2020, the Group completed the disposal of
100% equity interest in CRMT and CRHI and the control of
CRMT and CRHI passed to the Osibao.

The results for the year from the Disposal Group is set
out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
have been restated to re-present such arrangement as a
discontinued operation.

CRIEEEER

RZZEZZTEFNA+—H  AEEHEE
EtmBEABEBERAR(IRBEFE])FTL
EEW% NRRFELSERFRBA
BEABTREASRARA(IFHAEMAZ])
FHEBEEREEEERARAR([#
BABR ] NEHRE  BREREAS
35,000,000/ 7T + HH123,492,000/8 7T &
11,508,000 7t 7 Jaﬁﬁﬁ%qﬂ%i%ﬂ
BETBHEBR(GABATHEERE]) - X
—E-TFAA=+H" Nﬁlnﬁmﬂﬁ
FEAB NP EAEERZ100%MKE & F B
RS RPBEBR 2T E TR

=
=

o

HERENAFREREINEHMT - 555818
m&ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂlkﬁﬁ’]tt?%(%a%é
5 NEFZINZLER/ERELERT -

Period ended Year ended
30 September 31 December

2020 2019

EJZ:: HE

—E-EF —E-NF

hA=+H +t=—A=+—H

1IEHARS IEFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Revenue g 23,720 28,606
Expenses Fs (136,409) (163,721)
Loss before income tax BRET1SH AT & 18 (112,689) (135,115)
Income tax credit Frisfi e 135 3,947
Loss after income tax BRETISHi 8 &R (112,554) (131,168)

Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment under
discontinued operations for the year was HK$1,174,000.

ERIEEEEBHNEENE  BERERE
REARNBITE 1,174,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D) 8. BDRIEKEXEK(E)
The net cash flows incurred by the Disposal Group are as HEEREANFHRESRWET -
follows:
Period ended Year ended
30 September 31 December
2020 2019
Bz HE
—E-%F —FT-NF
hA=+H +t=ZHA=+—H
1 HA R IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Operating activities REED (243,300) 129,600
Investing activities wEEE - 6,100
Financing activities BEED 245,900 (524,900)
Net cash flows FIEE T 2,600 (389,200)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the REEBEH HESENEERAEREA
Disposal Group including the operating loss for the year BRMFA3EE - NEEERIEEEER
from the discontinued operation of HK$112,554,000 E"]i@@ﬂ?ﬁ@%112,554,0005’§ﬁ(;%
(2019: HK$131,168,000) and loss on disposal of the — L : 131,168,0008 L) R HEHEE
Disposal Group of HK$36,566,000 (2019: nil) (note 43), M 1) /&5 15 36,566,000 T (ZF — L5 ¢
the total loss for the year from discontinued operation was /) (M5F43) REEERIELEEBTD
HK$149,120,000 (2019: HK$131,168,000) at the date of B 1B 48 %8 5149,120,0008 T ( —F — A,
disposal are disclosed in note 43. #F :131,168,000/87C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE —E—FEF+ - A=+—HIFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MIBEH
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
(Restated)
(g&=31)
Interest on: B
— Other borrowings and shareholder’s — B E R R ARR S
loans 14,494 3,058
— Liability component of convertible — IR 2 /Y
bonds measured at amortised cost AR ESFBESD 2,334 -
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 1,696 2,285
18,524 5,343
Finance costs is attributable to: AT EER :
— Continuing operations — BB 17,906 2,206
— Discontinued operations —ERIERE T 618 3,137
18,524 5,343
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z-FEF+-A=+—HILFE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BREFS BRI B 1B
Loss before income tax expense from continuing operations S R RIS A AIEEEH
is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B (GTA)N3I&E :
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
(Restated)
(& &E5))
Amortisation of other intangible assets, HitnER EEE
included in administrative expenses (BEBEETBAXYF) - 22,845
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN & 950 1,665
Depreciation of owned property, plant and BE9¥ - BELXREITE
equipment 1,731 8,692
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE - 20,154
Advertising and marketing, included EEkmiGHERY
in selling and distribution expenses (BEBEREEHEERDHERZYH) 22,697 37,896
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREE  RESZNER 2,234 5,367
Exchange difference, net [N =R (OF5) 275 (404)
Inventories written off WEFE - 22,598
Short term lease expense REHEERY 552 4,465
Low value lease expenses KEEEHERX 106 177
Research and development costs T 3% B AX 368 16,331
Employee benefit expenses EERNAZ (BEEEHE)
(including directors’ emoluments (FF&E11) (HIRE12)
(note 11) (note 12)) 49,377 70,264
Less: Employee benefit expenses included & @ BIEEMEK AN Z B S
in research and development costs R (368) (2,937)
49,009 67,327
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BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —E - &

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of the emoluments paid or payable

to the directors are as follows:

F+-A=t—BILFE

1. EEWE

ENENESHOMSARET :

Defined
Salaries and  contribution
Fees  allowances scheme Total
He FeREd TEANTE &5t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THERL TER TERL
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-E-SF+-A=t-HLEEE
Executive directors HTEZE
Mr. Wang Chuang FRE%E 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Wang Xuejun (resigned on 9 July 2020) F E%E( ISR ANAET) 600 - - 600
Mr. Qin Bin (appointed on 20 May 2020  BEE(R-E-_TERA -+ BEZRF
and resigned on 29 December 2020) RRZEZEE+ZAZ+NBEA) - 739 12 751
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Wu Wei Liang RERTAE
(resigned on 29 December 2020) (R=E-ZFE+-_A-THhBET) 360 - - 360
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin b gt
(appointed on 30 January 2020) (RZZ-T5-R=1HEZMA) - 316 17 333
Dr. Ray Yip EEEL
(resigned on 30 January 2020) (R=E-ZF-F=1HET) 29 - - 29
Independent non-executive directors  BIEHTES
Dr. Fang Jun FiEEL 120 - - 120
Ms. Wang Danjuan TRt
(resigned on 30 January 2020) (R=E-ZF-F=1HEHT) 10 - - 10
Ms. Yang Ying HETL 120 - - 120
Ms. Huo Chunyu EEENT
(appointed on 30 January 2020) (R=B-ZE-B=+HEZM) 110 - - 110
2,549 1,055 29 3,633
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z-FEF+-A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

1. EEWE (8)

Defined
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances scheme Total
e  HeREH  EEMHNGE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL BT BT TAL
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZE-S-NE+-R=t-HLEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wang Chuang FREE
(appointed on 18 October 2019) (RZE-NETATNBEZMA) = 245 = 245
Mr. Wang Xuejun T8R4 = 2,300 = 2,300
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Wu Wei Liang REREE
(appointed on 15 November 2019) (RZZ-NET-ATRAEZH) 32 - - 32
Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated from EEBL(R=E-NE+AT/NH
executive director to non-executive BHTESATERTES)
director on 18 October 2019) 600 570 - 1,170
Dr. Zhang Bin (appointed on FEBET(RZE-NELAZREZRE
2 July 2019 and resigned on RRZE-NE+—A+TRARE)
15 November 2019) 397 - - 397
Independent non-executive directors Bk TES
Dr. Fang Jun T 210 = - 210
Ms. Wang Danjuan FRERT
(appointed on 10 October 2019) (RZZ-NETATHEZA) 21 = - 21
Ms. Yang Ying BELT
(appointed on 14 October 2019) (RZE-NETATRAEZMA) 25 = = 25
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RIS
(resigned on 15 August 2019) (R=B-NENRTRARE) 149 = = 149
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest ERGRE
(resigned on 21 August 2019) (RZE-NENAZT—BEHT) 153 - - 153
1,593 3,115 - 4,708
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There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments in respect
of those persons’ other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

HE_Z2_ZFEK_FT—LE+=A
=t BIFEBES S NENRRENE
ERNE 2 ZHE °

AEBEYEAEEMNEMME - FERN
AR B R INA G H 5 2 22 5 B B
e -

XN TFRITEFZHRE  HFERLEUHBER
RIZFALTEREEARARENER
AIEBNEMRE N 2ME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) 1. EEM < (8)
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts RAF Rk AF NERERE - AQ R #E
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company SIVHEAEBEKAERAMEENEPEE
was a party and in which a director of the Company and the SHEREERAERNEARARS - ©Hk
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether S 4 o

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Employees’ emoluments 125 <

The five individuals whose emoluments including share- AEBFRNAEA g ALT(EMeBE
based payment expenses were the highest in the Group D AER Z2NRA)BRE=2(=%
for the year included three (2019: two) directors whose —NE MB)ES  HEeRER Lits
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. AR B TITME(ZE—HLE: =%)A T
The emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2019: HMEmT :

three individuals) were as follows:

2020 2019
—EEF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMET 3,012 4,484
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R RIEF|ET 2|4t 2% 36 33
3,048 4,517
The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals FEENESFHATHHEN FATEHE
fell within the following band: AR -
Number of individual
AE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L% 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L% 2,000,000/ 7T 1
2 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to these two AREBEWEMEZM B AT EMBEE
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the BIMAZMAREBNFER @ H{ERXE
Group, or as compensation for loss of office BB ffE o

2020 3 PEBEBERARERAR 167



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

12.

168

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

12 BERAFAX(BRESHE)

2020 2019

—E-EHF —ZE-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHIT

Wages and salaries ITENHS 105,142 58,406
Equity-settled share-based payments RS 2 BiES B R 2,234 5,367
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3Rk 4 A 2N — fE 28 {2 st £ 7,456 4,749
Other staff benefits Hib B T &5 995 1,742
115,827 70,264

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
participated in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant local governments. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, these subsidiaries were required
to make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates ranging from 10% to 31% of their total salaries subject
to certain ceilings.

AEMPRFREAOMBARNESZXEHA
B8 Hb 75 XA 48 4 19 & B8 4 SRR IR 4R B T
g o BEZTZTF+_A=+—HL
FE ZEWBRARARFESHSREN
10%E31% TNEMLL R AZETEIES A
TEREMEE  WABSTET LR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 13. FiEHiA% (E&)

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity established in
Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits
of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit
Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.
The PRC enterprise income tax of 25% is applicable to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

REMRBMEHFE  REEKILAN
AEREEERTE2,000,000% 7T A
# #58.25% 1M B 38 5% B AR i M A% LA
16.5% BB R B - N1 & K15 T ™ AR 5l
ZEEERMNGENSEEZ165%MH X
BB o NEE T BB R RER25% 2 F
BEEMAEN o BINIBRIRERFE
ARG N E AR EE LA 2R

TRIEEE -

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Profit tax IS HR
— current tax — B HITIA 12,380 -
— over provision in respect of prior years ~ — i@ FEEBEERE - (1,633)
12,380 (1,633)
Deferred taxation (note 31) FEIERIE (MI5E31)
- Income tax expenses/(credit) — SRS (ER) (135) (7,268)
12,245 (8,901)
Income tax expenses/(credit) is T8, (3e)ER
attributable to:
— Continuing operations —RHEREER 12,380 (4,954)
- Discontinued operations — BRI T (135) (3,947)
12,245 (8,901)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (CONT'D) 13. Fii8%iBx (E&) (&)

Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting

AR R S L2 PTG RIS R R W AR

loss at applicable tax rates: ZEERMT :
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Loss before tax BRELATE 18 (277,328) (456,644)
Notional tax calculated at the rates BAEBEIERAERE C EE
applicable to the loss in the tax EACHEGFENRR
jurisdictions concerned T8 (52,370) (98,140)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR RERE 2 A 1%
for tax purposes wE 62,185 85,996
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARGBRANH B 2E
tax purposes (779) (2,449)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AR IEEENT BT E 3,344 7,325
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFE B - (1,633)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) A SRl AR TR B 15 5 18
recognised - -
Income tax expenses/(credit) FrEsiEx(EH) 12,380 (8,901)

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company for both years, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

14. lRE

BRE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRE#B
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss EREAEBEENEFBRN AL ERZEAR
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the AZBIEBRANFEARNE BT ERRKINETY
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during HEtE o
the year.
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
(Restated)
(&E7))
Loss per share attributable to FBRAREEREA A
equity holders of the Company: ZBREE
From continuing operations REFEL ST (0.18) (0.36)
From discontinued operations RE BRI R (0.09) (0.149)
(0.27) (0.51)
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
(Restated)
(&&E5))
Loss attributable to equity holders of the  stESRENEEETE 2
Company used in calculating basic loss (B RARTIEREE A
per share: ZEE
From continuing operations RERHES ST (289,708) (316,575)
From discontinued operations REBR IS ER (149,120) (131,168)
(438,828) (447,743)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE BRI (TR)
shares in issue (thousands) 1,606,772 879,290
Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December HE2—_ZET_EFK_ZE—NLF+=HA
2020 and 2019 is the same as basic loss per share because —t+t—BIFEMNSREBEESEEFRE
the impact of the exercise of share options and convertible ANEBRER - RE AT AR & A # A%
bonds was anti-dilutive. BEHFMFEARBEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —Z-FEF+-A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

172

16. W% - MERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Computer Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
O BRgE \
BF HEMERE Rt Rk RE GE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H
Cost B 108,341 108,368 138,146 9,323 5,710 359,888
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (52678)  (107,627) (81,704) (7,059) (G575 (254,649)
Net book amount REFE 50,663 4 51,442 2,064 136 106,245
Year ended 31 December 2019  HZE=-E-AFE+=f=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount BN EE 50,663 T 51,442 2,264 135 105,245
Exchange difference EXES (1,032) v (349) (405) = (1,788)
Disposals e = = (1,076) ) - (1,079)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAA - - (242) - - (242)
Additions NE 503 576 521 590 = 2,190
Depreciation Vi (1,079) (973) (6,152) (477) (11) (8,692)
Impairment losses HEEE (47,686) (342) (44,019) (1,954) (117) (94,118)
Closing net book amount AREETE 1,369 - 125 15 7 1,516
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+-A=1-R
Cost KR 101,095 107,257 129,500 7,820 5,197 350,869
Accumulated depreciation and LA BERREER
impairment losses (99,726) (107,257) (129,375) (7,805) (6,190) (349,358)
Net book amount REFE 1,369 - 125 15 7 1516
Year ended 31 December 2020 EHZ-Z-FF+-A=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount HOEEFE 1,369 - 125 15 7 1,516
Exchange difference ERER 88 - 13 1 1 103
Disposals e (88,648) - (38,067) (883) (1,544) (129,142)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR (18,958) (6,007) (45,066) (5,723) (3,518) (79,272)
Depreciation ik (1,369) (131) (213) (18) - (1,731)
Depreciation eliminated on disposals & B A RFHHITE
of subsidiary 12,901 5,803 38,974 2,962 2,217 62,917
Imparment losses eliminated on ~~ HER L HHERE
disposals 94,617 335 45,538 3,646 2,117 146,913
Closing net book amount BREEFE - - 1,304 - - 1,304
At 31 December 2020 R-2-85+-A=1-H
Cost A - 101,817 51,840 1,659 394 155,710
Accumulated depreciation and ZiER N ERR
impairment losses - (101,817) (50,536) (1,659) (394) (154,406)
Net book amount REFE - - 1,304 - - 1,304
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\ZT %i&%B,TTFUI_

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. % - BMERZRE(E)
(CONT’D)
The impairment of property, plant and equipment is ME  BMELRENREERZE « Hi
assessed together with goodwill,other intangible assets and ﬁﬁ, BEREAEEE—RIE -  B@
right-of-use assets. Details of which are set out in note 18 to SEPNERE IS HRKRKIFE18 o
the consolidated financial statements.
17. LEASES 17. HE
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEZE
Land use rights Offices Total
T HfE AR WA= st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NnF—H—H 4,091 102,767 106,858
Additions NE = 34,106 34,106
Modification B% - (67,500) (67,500)
Depreciation e (99) (20,055) (20,154)
Impairment loss RIEEBE (3,888) (48,161) (52,049)
Disposal of a subsidiary Hj’% Bl IENE] - (1,065) (1,065)
Foreign exchange movement & & & &) (104) (92) (196)
At 31 December 2019, RZZE—NF
1 January 2020 and + ==
31 December 2020 —ZET-TF—H—H
RZZ_TF
+Z—HA=+—H - - -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THET
Short term lease expenses HHHEERY 552 4,465
Low value lease expenses REEHEMS 106 177
Total cash outflow for leases HEBR R LA 25,913 20,520
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B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

17. LEASES (CONT’D)

@

(b)

174

Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

In 2020 and 2019, the Group leases a number of
properties and offices for its operations. The leases
run for an initial period ranged from one to five years
(2019: one to five years). Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In 2019, the Group entered into new leases and
recognised addition of right-of-use assets of
HK$34,106,000 and lease liabilities of HK$34,106,000.
The Group also early terminate certain leases with the
deduction of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$67,500,000 and HK$67,500,000 respectively.

The Group did not entered into new leases during the
year.

The impairment of property, plant and equipment
is assessed together with goodwill, other intangible
assets and right-of-use assets. Details of which are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Lease liabilities

17. A&
(a)

(n\a)
RZZE_ZEFR-_ZF-NF ~5H

REXBHEETHRERRLE -
HENTZHRNF —ZERF(=F

—NF —ERF) o EFRIIE@ER
AR ERER - BRESBENREGR&IE

o PR EEE FH A R AT A S ] S B B
REF - NREBERBAEMNNTERLEE
BRI R FIITRERE -

RZZT—NF - AEEFTZHBELHL
T 3R % 1% {5 F #E & 2= 34,106,000%
TN E & E34,106,000/8 T ° &
SEIMRAEIEETAELY - 551D
FREEEKMEES&E67,500,000
77T 267,500,000/8 7T °

AEBERFRALETLFHEE o

ME - BEEREBOREERFDE
Hitv B\ EEREREEE —RF
i - BRAFIEHNERA M BERKRME
18 °

(b) HEERE

2020 2019
—ECEF —NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Lease liabilities HERE
— Current portion — BB D 17,028 24,094
— Non-current portion — FETREEB 5,870 25,425
22,898 49,519
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

17. LEASES (CONT’D) 17. & (8&)
(b) Lease liabilities (Cont’d) (b) HEEE(#E)
Future lease payments are due as follows: REREERNREEHBRAT :

Minimum lease

payments Interest  Present value
REEEMNR FIE RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FATT FHTT FHTT
As at 31 December 2020 N—B_FHF
+=BA=+—H
Not later than one year —FRA 18,827 (1,799) 17,028
Later than one year and —F LA ERRFER
not later than two years 6,985 (1,115) 5,870
25,812 (2,914) 22,898
As at 31 December 2019 R-EBE—hF
t=ZA=+—H
Not later than one year —FR 25,913 (1,819) 24,094
Later than one year and —F LA ERRFERA
not later than two years 19,124 (708) 18,416
Later than two years and MENRERAFA
not later than five years 7,094 (85) 7,009
52,131 (2,612) 49,519
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂ%zﬁ’ﬁ 2 BN
applied to lease liabilities range is 4.75% to 5.00% FMENTF475%Z=5.00%(=F—
(2019: 4.75% to 5.00%). F 4.75%%5.00%) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

18.

176

GOODWILL

The goodwill arose from (1) the acquisition of FD(H)
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries, which are engaged
in the production and sales of tissue engineering products,
in 2008 and the acquisition of Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai
Technology Co., Ltd (“Kechuang”), which is engaged in
development and sales of information technology software
related to lamellar keratoplasty recording in 2017 (“Aierfu
Business”); (2) the acquisition of Maylion Management
Limited and its subsidiary (“Reshine Business”), which
is engaged in bio-medical engineering, research and
development of regenerative medical products in relation
to tissue engineering technology in December 2013; (3) the
acquisition of Passion Stream Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Weikai Business”), which is engaged in the design and
manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related
equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors and
their related consumables, as well as provision of CRO
services in April 2015; and (4) the acquisition of Frame
Sharp Limited and its subsidiaries (“AK Business”), which
is principally engaged in providing service and equipment
for human cell and stem cell related clinical applications in
August 2015.

18. &

FEDELEBN) ST N\FWEFDH)
Investments Limited & £ Kf & A 7 » H
REAENHEEHEBIREER  ER-Z
—tFWEFINE A ERHMTABR QA
(I&tal]) ERNEFAEREEERRE AR
B E R ExAERE 2 2 BT 8 ([ 35 % %
B i@ =Ft+t-_AlEZREE
ERARAMEMBAGT([HEES]) H

REEMESTE  AREAR T RN
BABERERWNE Q=T —AFNA

g 8 Passion Stream Limited & £ [ & 2
AI([EEl %% ]) - HIEERRF A
AR 2 AT AR (R R E =4
M EREYRESMESHEENFEM)
RREESBAEMAERS  RE)=F
—RFE N AWEEFrame Sharp Limited & &
MEBA AR (R FEH])  EEXZREAA
BRI AR R R E B IR AR &
= e
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BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL (CONT’D)

18. & (&)

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as HMEBZEREEFEZOMAT :
follows:
Aierfu Reshine Weikai AK
Business  Business  Business  Business Total
NAEER LR EER R ¥ a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THL THIL THL THT
At 1 January 2019 and R-ZB-h1E-A-BK
31 December 2019 “EZ-hFE+=A=+-H
Gross carrying amount REAE 142,943 148,790 93,801 8,679 394,213
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (142,943) (148,790 (93,801) (8,679)  (394,213)
Net carrying amount EEFE = = = - -
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ-F=-F&
TZA=+-HLEE
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAT (142,943) (148,790) - - (291,733)
Impairment loss eliminated on I &HTB A AR 45 2
disposal of a subsidiary REEE 142,943 148,790 - - 291,733
Closing net carrying amount HARERFE - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZE&E+-A=1+-H
Gross carrying amount RH&E - - 96,213 8,902 105,115
Accumulated impairment R RE - - (96,213) (8,902)  (105,115)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (CONT’D) 18. & (&)
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, property, AETRERE B2 ME - BEMLE
plant and equipment, other intangible assets and right-of- B EmELEENFREEES SRR
use assets are allocated to two cash generating units, Weikai MERSESSEMN B EBLBRIES
Business and AK Business. (2019: four cash generating (ZE—haF: WERESELEN  XBE
units, Aierfu Business, Reshine Business, Weikai Business RS IR RS FEER R BRI ER) o

and AK Business).

The recoverable amounts for these cash-generating units ZEReELEBEMNNAKE£EERIEE
have been determined based on value-in-use (“VIU”) AR e Re (R AFEEEE)
calculation using discounted cash flow technique, covering HE FERHEBEE(EREBE]ETE - 1S
detailed five-year budget plans. Cash flows beyond the five- HALAT% 2 IR &M= THIZ A T Er oI fh 5T 1E &
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth RiEE c ANEHEBEEXR AR A -
rates as stated below. The discount rates used for VIU are WRRIEREIE €@ EA BN 2T ERR -

pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
cash-generating unit.

The key assumptions used for recoverable amounts are as A ESREMEANEZ/RBFLAT :
follows:
Basis Growth rate Discount rate
HE BR% HR%
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ZECEE TN ZBIEf —I-NF CZEBIZEE —T-NF

Aierfu Business VBEEK - WHERER - 3% - 3%
Reshine Business TS - WEREE - 3% - 3%
Weikai Business EEES VIU EAEE VIUFEREE 3% 3% 3% 3%
AK Business B £ VIU EREE VIUFERER 3% 3% 3% 3%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL (CONT’D) 18. B2 ()

The key assumptions are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin, which had
been determined based on the market comparables and
budgeted revenue, which had been determined based on the
management’s expectation for the market development and
the production capacity of relevant cash generating units.

Apart from the considerations described above in
determining the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit, the Group’s management is not currently aware of any
other probable changes that would necessitate changes in
their key assumptions. However, the estimate of recoverable
amount of the Group’s cash generating units is particularly
sensitive to the discount rate applied.

The recoverable amount has been determined by
management with the discounted cash flow approach. The
total recoverable amounts of these cash generating units
was nil as at 31 December 2020 as no improvement on
operation.

As at 31 December 2019, based on the results of the reviews
of the recoverable amount of the cash generating units
containing goodwill, the carrying amounts exceeded the
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets less liabilities of
the cash generating units, the management considered that
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, other
intangible assets and right-of-use assets of HK$94,118,000,
HK$70,697,000 and HK$52,049,000 respectively were
recognised in profit or loss for the year. The impairment loss
is mainly due to the poor financial performance of these
cash generating units during the year and the change of
the Group’s operating strategies. During the year ended
31 December 2020, no impairment loss was recognised
or reversed for these non-financial assets after impairment
assessment.

TERRXAERARE BREINEEE
ME - RERED S A LBEREE W
(ERRBEEBEMSNERMEBBEASE
ABEUNLEERNICBRRET)ETE -

RrtiEETReELBEUABENEEZE
BRRI  AEEZEEEREIL AL
EMEMAIRE &L SHFEEREE
Bk - A > AEBERSELEBUNMEE
AW [El & BB PR 2 T IR R SR

AEEEIHEEEEAMBRRASRE
EEE R FREELBUNATTKE S
BR_FT-_TE+_A=t—HBART A
REET AL ENE -

R-ZBE-AE+-_A=+—8 " REHRSE
EXBNTEHKRSE(EEHE) IR
R ARAEERMERB DS FERIE
CELBUMNAE  EEEBEENRFEEIR
HERAVE BEREE HUOEREE
MfEREE EREBERED R A94,118,000
7 7T+ 70,697,000 JT K 52,049,000 %
T REEBBEEZEARTFAREREELE
BAWMBERBERAEEE L R
ft- BE_ZT-_FTF+_A=+—HIEHF
B ZEHFeMEELRBETHRILER
Rk B EREERE -
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1€,

180

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

19. B ARKME

RECEIVABLES
2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
T T
At 1 January A—H—H 4,587
Fair value loss NE{EEE (4,587)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H -

There are profit guarantees for the acquisitions of Weikai
Business and AK Business.

For Weikai Business, the vendor guaranteed to the
Group that cumulative total net profits for the years
ended 31 December 2015 to 2018 will not be less than
RMB25,000,000, or he will transfer part of the shares of
Passion Stream Limited (a 70% indirectly owned subsidiary
of the Company before transfer) held by him and classified
as non-controlling interests in the consolidated financial
statements, based on the percentage of the shortfall in total
net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The adjustment
will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

For AK Business, the vendor guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB8,000,000, or he will
transfer part of the shares of Frame Sharp Limited (a 70%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company before transfer)
held by him and classified as non-controlling interests in the
consolidated financial statement, based on the percentage
of the shortfall in total net profit over the guaranteed total
net profit. The adjustment will be settled after the end of the
four-year period.

As both profit guarantees of AK Business and Weikai
Business were not met, pursuant to the Group’s rights
under the Profit Guarantees, the vendor transferred to the
Group respective equity interest of Frame Sharp Limited
and Passion Stream Limited, which represents the Group’s
effective interest in 20% of the entire of equity interest of
AK Business and Weikai Business respectively. Since then,
the Group’s effective interest in each AK Business and
Weikai Business has increased from 70% to 90%. Upon
the enforcement of the rights under the Profit Guarantees,
in the opinion of the directors, the fair value of contingent
consideration receivables on the date of the enforcement is
zero in view of the significant loss incurred by AK Business
and Weikai Business and fair value loss on contingent
consideration receivables of HK$4,587,000 was recognised
in profit or loss in 2019.

WiE B o X5 R R EHHBEIRE

*ﬁﬁﬁf ¥R EARAEERE  #HE
—HEE-_E—NE+_A=+—
EJJ:EFZE%.# DERFBEB TR A
E%ZS,OOO,OOOE C BRIE B E R
Passion Stream Limited (R #2:E 5 A A &)
MEHE B 70%M B A 7)) 23005 (1R
,f%iﬁT&f‘J%%ﬁiﬁi%?ﬁ!mf‘J%‘%ﬁ'ﬁZ?%ﬁﬁ
RIFE G HRER AN D 8 A IEFE AR

%%ﬁn) BERARARESNOFRERRE
%O
*ﬁf*ﬁ%iJL%?r“ BETRAAKERE  BHE

—hFEE=_T-NF+=ZA=+—H
Jtifo% FrEFFREE T LORARK
8,000,0007T - & A K & & H A5 &0 »
Frame Sharp Limited (7 & % g A A 7 [
BHBT0%M B AR 2k (BRIE &% T
/?%Eiﬁi'f%uﬁz@/ﬁﬁ%'J/%%EFEJ/Z%%EE oL -

REZEETBRERADERIEERRE#
fm) BREAAEBRUFHHERELEESE -

BB REINEEHN RFIREBS R iE
B o BIBEAEBENEMRFE AR
% 7 # Frame Sharp Limited X Passion
Stream Limited & B A & AN 88 ;& ¥ KN &
CZERAEERANEE D BN B
1% R B o E T 2 20 R% A 20% B B BR 4
Hmeo Atk AEBRBYEBS KA ER
RﬁmiW$E‘Em7mw-mi9m6°E
MITmMREBETREF % ZERBIY XK
LPEEBEANEAER  ERAH
112 BEWSARERTE LS MmEK
%RFM ?@%E4%7m®%ﬁam
—NFERIBEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. Hth B EE
Development  Licensing
Trademark Patents costs agreement Total
[GLE Vil BREA  BITEDS CH

HK§'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TAR TRR TATL TAR TAR

At 1 January 2019 R-ZZ-NE-F-H
Cost A 79,984 493,470 125,222 23,393 722,069
Accumulated amortisation and ZEtEERREEE

impairment losses (76,054) (428,837) (90,496) (14,838) (610,225)
Net book amount EEFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-E-NE+=-A=+—H

ILEE

Opening net book amount BOEEDFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844
Addition NE - - 3,549 - 3,549
Exchange difference ERESR - (4,307) (696) (503) (5,506)
Amortisation B (3,874) (14,675) (1,619) (2,677) (22,845)
Impairment loss AEBE (56) (39,355) (25,911) (5,375) (70,697)
Closing net book amount HBAREEDFE - 6,296 10,049 = 16,345
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZB-AE+=A=+-H
Cost [#N 77,979 481,101 125,632 22,018 706,730
Accumulated amortisation and 2B RRESE

impairment losses (77,979) (474,805) (115,583) (22,018) (690,385)
Net book amount REFE - 6,296 10,049 - 16,345

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-ZF-FF+=-A=+—-H

LFE

Opening net book amount HARE 3 A - 6,296 10,049 - 16,345
Derecognised on disposals HEBFUEER - (467,520) (33,898) (22,018) (523,436)
Impairment loss eliminated HERHIHREEE

on disposals - 461,224 23,849 22,018 507,091
Closing net book amount HRREFE - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+ZA=+-H
Cost A 79,992 13,581 91,734 - 185,307
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEELAERR

impairment losses (79,992) (13,581) (91,734) - (185,307)
Net book amount ERFE - - - - -
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20.

21.

182

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)

As at 31 December 2020, all other intangible assets are
related to two cash generating units, Weikai Business
and AK Business (2019: four cash generating units, Aierfu
Business, Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK
Business). These other intangible assets were mainly arising
from the business combinations as stated in note 18. During
the year, the directors reviewed the carrying amounts of
the other intangible assets. The details of the impairment
assessment are stated in note 18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

I

Hib B EE (&)

RZZ_ZF+_A=+—H0 FIBHM
B EEEMERCELEMN - EHIE
BRRIEH(—FT-NF: QERSEL
B IXEERY WEXD  #FIX
BRBIYER)ARE -  ZFEMELEEE
RELEMEISHARTEH - FA - E
ST HEMBELEEMNKREE - BENG
EREE AN AL

|

FEREMEZEWAS R
MEE

S

.

H¥

2020 2019
—ECEF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Non-current ETE
Unlisted equity securities — PRC, FEEMBRAFES - R BIEATE
measured at FVOCI REMZEW ARG E - 31,5622

This equity investment was irrevocably designated at FVOCI
as the Group considered this investment to be strategic in
nature. This represented 2% equity investment in a private
company inoorporated in the PRC namely R T (RRAE)T) BB
BNEEFRBRAT ("RH/NEE).

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group did not receive dividend from this investment. A %7
/NEEE with its registered capital of RMB5,000 million was
one of the top 10 in terms of registered capital base of
online lenders in the PRC according to 2018 publication of
The People’s Bank of China. On the other hand, the online
lending industry in the PRC was adversely affected by more
stringent regulatory restrictions and exits of smaller players,
aggravated by the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 and
lead to significant deterioration of quality of outstanding
lending by F¥7/N88E and hence valuation of the Group’s
investment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
derecognised the investment through disposal of a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Allied Huge Limited. Gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income reserve are
reclassified to accumulated loss upon derecognition.

AR AEERBZIEEBRKREEY -
7% Ax % & B A Al B M 38 TE B A
BEREMEEW AT o kT35 M %K+
A FLARRI R (BEEL) B B4
NEERERAR(THIF/NEEIEHL
2% HERE o

BHE_Z2_ZFEK_FT— L&+ =A
=+—HIEFE ASBEUEFZEEK
BEE - REFRARBRT=_ZFE—/N\F2
B R NEENFEMELRR AREKS0
B BRBEMKEHEMEAERA+
BZ— B —FHH: G PEBEEETE
=B F EAE A BB R I LA RARE N2
HEREMTFAEZE ME-SE_ZFFY)]
COVID-194% 2 N &Y gy it 52 2 - éﬁﬁ#ﬁ
NNEEAREEERNEEHEE TR #
SAREEERENFHBERE -

RBEE_T_TF+_A=+—HIEHF
B AEBEZEBLEEZENER A Alied
Huge LimitedBUBERIEE - REMEHE
WARBBEHN R R REBENDEER
HERER RETEE -
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22.

23.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE
INVENTORIES 22. 78
2020 2019
—EEHF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT THEIT
Raw materials B 399 3,853
Work-in-progress B - 881
Finished goods BIRK T 979 2,004
1,378 6,738
TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 23. B EWFIE - szé SECEREN
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 & H b 8 WX
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
(a) Trade receivables (a) EZEWFIE
Current assets: MBNEEE -
Trade receivables H 5 W IE 74,186 142,074
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (74,106) (138,062)
80 4,012
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other (b) %% - i‘ﬁﬁ RIE R HAth
receivables i EN
Rental deposit %ﬂ%ﬁﬁ@ 11,979 14,044
Other deposits HEize 7,491 3,946
Prepayments TET IR 8,601 7,274
Bank interest receivables FEUERTTH B - 73
Other receivables H b e U 18 173,682 23,250
201,753 48,587
Less: Impairment losses of other W B WK IE R E AR
receivables (56,791) (20,029)
144,962 28,558
Represented by: LA B 57 :
Non-current assets EMBNEE 7,571 14,044
Current assets MBNEE 137,391 14,514
144,962 28,558
2020 4 hEBEBEERERAH 183
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 23. E 5 EWFIE iﬁzﬁ TR K
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES BHREHEMEWRIE(E)
(CONT’D)

Movements in the impairment losses in respect of trade FNE 5 EWFRIE & E b FE U 2k IE /)R E
receivables and other receivables during the year are as EEZHMT
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Trade receivables (lifetime expected B S EWEE(XEFEH
credit losses collectively assessed) 2HFEHEEES)
At 1 January w—A—H 138,062 139,677
Impairment losses recognised during FAERRREEE
the year 663 1,149
Written-off of impairment loss during F NI H AR E B R
the year (67,597) -
Exchange alignment bE 5 AR 2,978 (2,764)
At 31 December Wt+—-_HA=+—H 74,106 138,062
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THT
Other receivables (lifetime expected  H b fEUR X E (B B FE &9 2 HITE
credit losses individually assessed) HEEER)
At 1 January K—A—H 20,029 393
Impairment losses recognised FRERIREEE
during the year 36,762 19,636
At 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—H 56,791 20,029
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 23. EZE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT’D)

The changes in the gross carrying amount of trade and
other receivables are mainly due to new financial assets
originated or purchased during the year. The impairment
losses of trade receivables recognised during the year were
mainly due to the long aged outstanding receivables without
any settlement from debtors and no sales transactions with
these debtors during the year. The impairment losses of
other receivables recognised during the year were mainly
due to the long aged outstanding receivables without any
settlement from debtors without any repayment plan agreed.
Management identified that these debtors are in financial
difficulty and the recoverability of these receivables was
remote.

As at year end date, ageing analysis of trade receivables
based on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

RIE ~ B > R

Uy 5K
B ,J’@FEUQTAIE(,@)

B MEMBUFENRHREZESH TR
HREFRNELSABENHCREEM
FABRBNE HREFTIBREBRET AR
FREHARBRGEE B AREEN R
HAYERZFEBALETHER S M
B o FAREREMEWRFAENRERRE

%mﬁiﬁﬁﬁAfwﬂiﬁmEﬂﬁ
ET B R EIRE B0 BRI FTEL
ﬁ@ﬁﬁuuﬁtﬁ{ﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁuuﬁﬁﬂz.% ﬁﬁ;g
5 B WOk TR Y AT I [ MG

REER  BEHREFAZEEXRRAN
RINGRBER 2 BREDITAT ¢

2020 2019

—EBEIEF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

0-90 days 0E 90K 80 2,353
Over 90 days but less than 1 year FBEIOKRIE L1 F - 1,659
80 4,012

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(2019: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4(i). Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 42.

AREBHRTEEFPZEFHEEHA60E
180K (=ZT—NF : 602180K) °

NEBRIBH T40) Tl & 5t R R ERRE
BiE - - BEASEFERRUARES RE
thEKRRBEEEERRNE —TFHBSH
REFEE42 -
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24.

186

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24 MAFERERIKRZERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2020 2019
—E-EHF —N&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Unlisted private investment funds FELETALEREERES
- Overseas — 84N - 299,520
As at 31 December 2019, the Group invested HK$273.3 RZZBE—NLF+_A=+—8 ' ~5£H
million into an overseas private equity fund, namely % & 273,300,00078 TR /B INLE IR iEE
ZhongHua Finance Acquisition Fund I, L.P. (the “Fund”). % - BJ ZhongHua Finance Acquisition
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did Fund I, LP.([E%]) - HEZFT—NF

not receive any dividend from the Fund. The Fund principally
invested in companies in the skin care and medical products
industries which continues to exhibit growth in turnover and
profitability. In response to the changes in general economic
conditions and competition within the industry, the Group
disposed all of its interest in the Fund during the year ended
31 December 2020 to Mr. Xiong so that the Group can use
the proceeds to focus on other investments, acquisitions and
organic growth opportunities in the market.

The fair value of unlisted private investment funds as at
31 December 2019 was determined by an independent
professional valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited with the market
approach, based on the investee’s financial performance
and the multiples of comparable companies. The key
unobservable assumptions used in the valuation included
price to earnings ratio (“PE ratio”) of 14.55 and marketability
discount of 20.6%.

As at 31 December 2019, if the PE ratio and marketability
discount shifted upward by 1 and 1% respectively, the fair
value of the unlisted private investment funds would be
increased by 9% and decreased by 1.3% respectively. The
higher the PE ratio, the higher the fair value. The higher the
marketability discount, the lower the fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the investment
was disposed to Mr. Xiong Qiangen by consideration of
US$38.7 million, as further detailed in the Company’s
circular dated 20 April 2020.

T_A=+—HALFE AKEXEAE
SRBEFARE - ZEETERERNNE
E BFREMITENRAR - ZFRAE
EXERBMENSELER - REH K
Z%@‘Hﬁ(ﬂ“ﬂb&ﬂ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ" REEE
EFEFT_A=+—"BLEFELKHE
EESNEAERLE TREL LME$
SEANEMERBEREINEMRE - I
BEERMSARIERNOKS -

777

RZZE—NF+=A=+—H ' FkLmi
EREEASTHBYEXGEMESBHE
EBRAREAMSEBE - WAKRE
HENUBRBRAELRAAAE %U%

o EREANEETATHRZMBR
EMARER((MAX]|)14.55Kk ™ %//lb@]ﬁ
3 #20.6% °

E/\_ —NE+ZRA=+—8  HmaE=X
MiZmE IR E DB EFA1 K1% + 3EE
me%&égiE’J EFEH‘”\}DJ'JJ:%Q%
TPE1.3% c MAXMS @ AFERS °

ﬁ//lb@?ﬁfﬁtir—] ’ Z\\EFTE@{& °

HEZZT-_ZHF+-_A=+—H ' KED
m%mfﬂﬁ%ézftﬁﬁssmomm@
T BEEE %kBAZIK’ATEIHHF% T-F
FMA -+ HKE
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BATS R I =t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED

25ﬁ§&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ/aﬁ#ﬂﬁ

BANK DEPOSITS R
2020 2019
=E=%F —FNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx FHET
Restricted bank balances (note (a)) SR HIERTT 455 (M sk (a)) - 9,921
Cash and cash equivalents (note (b)) RekBEeEEEB (Hikb)) 4,767 9,289
Cash and bank balance e RIBITES 4,767 19,210

Notes:

(a)

Bank balances of HK$9,912,000 were frozen by Shanghai
Municipal Public Security Bureau in relation to the source
of fund from an independent third party who involved
in a criminal case. The Bureau also restricted the sales
of all buildings of Airefu, a subsidiary of the Group. The
management obtained legal advices and in the opinion of
the directors, the transactions and source of funds received
by Aierfu were under commercial substance and the Group
did not involve in the case. The management actively applied
to the Bureau to unfreeze these assets. For the remaining
balance of restricted bank balances, these were due to
several minor litigations from staff, suppliers and creditors to
claim for the outstanding payables. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the operation of Airefu was disposed and
there were no restricted bank balances as at 31 December
2020.

Included in cash and bank balances, short-term deposits of
the Group are HK$2,285,000 (2019: HK$9,192,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks
in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under
the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
recognised to conduct foreign exchange business.

(@) RITHA#9,912,000 TELEBT AL
RR%E  BERHERGENBLIE=H
BESRIRBRE o Z B IR 6 48 5 E H B
ARRANBENFEEFHE STHEEE
BERZERBEESRAE  YBBESH
RERESRRBEHENEE AEEW
KRR - ERERERA KD P D R
REBEE - ERXRIRITE RIS
BREANREBI  HEMREREAESD
HOE/NRAE R FA LA B 5T R B B /) FE T 3R
B RBEE-_Z-_TF+=-_A=+—H
LtFEE  XNBAEEBDLHE  R=Z=
TFE+ A=+ —HBHMEIRHETE
ﬁ%o

(b) AEEZRERETES  SHERE
BFERRPBEZBRITEAARE(TAR
) FHE 2 R1T4$42,285,000/8 T (=
T— N :9,192,000/87L) - ARKEL
JAEMAEBRZEY - BEFREAM 2
INEEBEPIREE  SERMNESE
BE AEEEESBERBETINE
¥BZBITRHRARE X BRBINE -
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206.

27.

188

TRADE PAYABLES 26. B 5 B RIE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHTT
0-30 days 0Z=30K 87 111
31-60 days 31E60X 25 166
Over 60 days but less than 1 year FEA60RE D1 - 322
1 year or over 1 year 1FH1FLA E 7,884 19,039
7,996 19,638

General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60
days.

HEBRL 2 - REEHNTFI0KRE60
3&0

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 27. BEstER R EMEAERIE
PAYABLES

2020 2019
—ECEF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Accrued charges JEETE 13,739 59,124
Interest payables on other borrowing H A& EN RS - 1,653
Other payables Hfih fETBRIE 120,311 90,255
Government assistances BT fE 5,264 30,121
139,314 181,153

Government assistances represent payments granted by the
local governments in the PRC in relation to the research and
development of tissue engineering and stem cell projects
carried out in the PRC. These payments will be recognised
as income upon the approval from the local government on
the output of the relevant projects.

BB E R EE BTN BT
ABIRELHAREEMARAERLEZ
HIE - ZEFREARNE W HFLAMER
PR RIEH AL ERERRA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. BN EE
The contract liabilities mainly relate to advance EHBEETEHWRRENIEEERES
considerations received from customers and arose from WEWRKEER AEBEMNTEREER
sale of goods. The Group may take certain deposits from PIWEETES ' 8 TRERK R R
customers on acceptance of the order, with the remainder S AREEEE) -
of the consideration payable at the earlier of delivery of the
finished goods.
Movements in contract liabilities B EEEE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Balance at 1 January R—HA—B#&% 21,169 28,676
Decrease in contract liabilities FRNERWZEHE L
as a result of recognising revenue BERD
during the year (17,269) (6,788)
Exchange differences [EH =% - (719)
Balance at 31 December Nt A=1+—H&&% 3,900 21,169
During the year, there is no billing in advance of sale of RAFEMEHEE RTEWFIE -
goods.

2020 3 PEBEBERARERAR 189



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E_EF+ _A=+—HIFE

28

190

SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS

29. RRE®R

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Current portion BIHAER 5> 20,295 =
Non-current portion JEBNERER > - 207,298
20,295 207,298

As at 31 December 2020, shareholder’s loans were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
whole amount of shareholder’s loans were classified as
current liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, shareholder’s loans were
unsecured and interest-free in which an amount of HK$100
million was for the potential acquisition of Lung Hang
Investments Limited (note 36) and repayable on or before
the third anniversary date of the advancement date of the
shareholder’s loans (i.e. 19 December 2020). The whole
amount of shareholder’s loans were classified as non-current
liabilities as the shareholder undertakes that it would not
demand repayment of the shareholder’s loans within 15
months from 19 December 2019 until was in a position to

repay.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of shareholder’s
loans were calculated using cash flows discounted at market
interest rate of 5% per annum. Difference between the fair
value and the nominal value of the loans, amounting to
HK$12,238,000 was included in other reserve in equity.

R_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—H BEREXR
RERE RS RARERER REE
RERENDERARDAERE -

R-ZZE—AE+-_A=+—H BREEXR
REEERER - HAH£%100,000,000
B ot b B R Al g I B Lung Hang
Investments Limited (ffz£36) & 7B A
REFRANBBHEE M =BF 2Bk ZH
(I ZE2=—FF+_A+NLBH)EE - @R
BRREFEE T —NF+=AT+NLAEI5
BERAEBTEERKEERREREER
WERRIL WEEIHREERDEAIE
MBBE o

R-ZB—-NAE+-_A=+—8 BREEX
N ERBEEFL%MTHF RAIEHIR
CHRENE BERAFEHEZZEZHD
ZEA 812,238,000 Lt AfE e A E A
i -
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30. OTHER BORROWING HER

Initially in 2019, Mr. Xiong Qiangen granted a facility of
HK$100 million to the Group. The borrowing was bearing
8% interest per annum and repayable on or before 31 March
2020. The Group provided a guarantee and indemnity
for the account of Mr. Xiong Qiangen in favour of a third
party financial institution with financial exposure capped
at HK$8 million. On 17 March 2020, the Group signed
a supplementary agreement with Mr. Xiong Qiangen to
increase the facility amount from HK$100 million to HK$180
million and extend the repayment date from 31 March
2020 to 30 June 2021. The Group also entered into a deed
of charge with Mr. Xiong Qiangen to charge the Group’s
remaining 85% interest of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in favour of Mr. Xiong Qiangen as the
security for repayment and discharge of the other borrowing
and all interest accrued and to be accrued thereon. On 2
April 2020, another supplementary agreement was signed
to increase the facilities amount from HK$180 million to
HK$200 million.

All of the borrowing were applied to offset consideration
receivable from Mr. Xiong in respect of disposal of interest
in the financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
amount.

MR T —NF  RTREERASE
E & B 2 & & 100,000,000 7T f&
RIREFERE%:FBIW BN T -_FTF=
B=+—B=5ZAEE ANEBEET
BEERN—REZ SR EEREER
M@ E - B %R R & 8,000,000 %
m R_ZE_ZF=ZF++tH - AEH

HETREIEEEMAAGE  TRES
%Hﬂamooooooo,%mi %= 180,000,000
B Y ERBHHB_ZT_ZTF=A
=t+—HERZE-_ZT-_—4F~A=+H-
ANEBNERERTIRA AT ZIBIFRLE -
AEBBR T8RN IEATFERERYIEZ
CTHEEMNEZIARTREEST AR
TR (EAERREREMERARE
EEEERBEENERER - F_?_
TENA-RH B—HOEEHECER
Lxﬁwﬂéfi%iﬂa180,ooo,ooo,%migmi
200,000,000/ 7T, ©

MEXARBHERLERAFERER
§IJEEZ$vaﬁéﬁ?ﬁ’]*&*ﬁﬁﬂ&mﬁiﬁﬁfﬂ% °
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31.

192

DEFERRED TAXATION 31

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference
under the liability method using the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. The
movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

IRER IR

ERERBIDRBABEEANEEZLE AT
BRZBRITHEREGRZHAE - BT
HEBEZEBMT :

2020 2019

—EC-EF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

At the beginning of the year F1] 2,351 9,661

Credited to profit or loss for the year EEFARFE B (135) (7,268)
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries & i B A &k BUE 2

(Note 43) (PfF5E43) (1,456) -

Exchange difference P& =58 (86) (42)

674 2,351

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$102,589,000 (2019: HK$92,295,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will expire
after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were
incurred.

R-ZTE-_ZTFE+_-_A=+—HH A&EH
B A B) A IE B 18 102,589,000/ 7t ( =
T—NF 1 92,295,0008 L) © A R
IR F o F PR 2R % A1) 2R 89 T Al 78
A - R BB EEEREREERIBEE
EoBEEBEBREELEE FHRAASFRE
H -
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. R
Number of Nominal
shares value
BREE HE
HK$’000
FHET
Authorised: ETE

At 1 January 2019, ordinary shares of RZE-nFE—H—B"

HK$0.01 each FREE0.01EITHE®AR  100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Share consolidation (note (ii)) AR & OF (Bt 33 (i) (95,000,000,000) -
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, RZE—NF+ZA=+—HBxK

ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —TEE+A=1+—8"

BREE.2E LA EEAX 5,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At 1 January 2019, ordinary shares of R—EB—-—NF—HF—8"

HK$0.01 each FREEC.OVETH L@  17,5685,790,000 175,858
Share consolidation (note (ii)) Bt & 6 (BT (i) (16,706,500,500) -
At 31 December 2019, ordinary shares of RZE—NF+-_A=1+—8"

HK$0.2 each BREE0.2E T L @A 879,289,500 175,858
Share placing on 15 May 2020 (note (iii)) RZZE-_ZTFRATHH

Bio & AR A7 (Bt (i) 500,000,000 100,000
Conversion of the convertible bonds on A—TE-EFERA-+—H

22 May 2020 (note (iv) B ES (P (v) 200,000,000 40,000
Conversion of the convertible bonds on RZE-_EF+HA-+=H

22 July 2020 (note (v)) B ES (P (v) 280,000,000 56,000
Conversion of the convertible bonds on RZZE_EF+HA-1++tH

27 July 2020 (note (vi)) IR A AR & 2 (BT (vi)) 120,000,000 24,000
Issue of subscription shares on 30 September 2020 R-—ZE=-ZFH A =+H

(note (vii)) BATRE R (M 3 (vii)) 170,000,000 34,000
Issue of subscription shares on 19 October 2020 R=-T-Z&+HA+HhH

(note (viii)) BATRE R (FF 3F (viii)) 230,000,000 46,000
Conversion of the convertible bonds on A\—E-ZTF+—F+MAH

14 December 2020 (note (ix)) BRI RE S (X)) 453,620,000 90,724
Conversion of the convertible bonds on A—E-ZFE+—A+HH

15 December 2020 (note (x)) ERIBRRES (MTEX) 21,380,000 4,276
At 31 December 2020, ordinary shares of RZE_EF+_A=1+—8H"

HK$0.2 each SREE0.2B TR LB 2,854,289,500 570,858
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)

194

Notes:

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(vili)

(ix)

All these ordinary shares issued by the Company during the
years rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares in
all respects.

On 16 May 2019, the Company completed the share
consolidation by having every twenty then existing shares of
HK$0.01 each consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.2 each.

On 15 May 2020, upon the completion of share placing,
500,000,000 new shares of the Company were issued at
HK$0.2 per share.

The Company allotted and issued 200,000,000 ordinary
shares to the holder of convertible bonds on 22 May 2020 as
the Company received conversion notices in respect of the
conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

The Company allotted and issued 280,000,000 ordinary
shares to the holder of convertible bonds on 22 July 2020 as
the Company received conversion notices in respect of the
conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$56,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

The Company allotted and issued 120,000,000 ordinary
shares to the holder of convertible bonds on 27 July 2020 as
the Company received conversion notices in respect of the
conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$24,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

On 30 September 2020, an aggregate of 170,000,000
subscription shares have been allotted and issued to the
nominees with principal amount of HK$34,000,000 at the
issue price of HK$0.20 per subscription share.

On 19 October 2020, an aggregate of 230,000,000
subscription shares have been allotted and issued to the
nominees with principal amount of HK$46,000,000 at the
issue price of HK$0.20 per subscription share.

The Company allotted and issued 453,620,000 ordinary
shares to the holder of convertible bonds on 14 December
2020 as the Company received conversion notices in respect
of the conversion of the convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$90,724,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2
per share.

The Company allotted and issued 21,380,000 ordinary shares
to the holder of convertible bonds on 15 December 2020 as
the Company received conversion notices in respect of the
conversion of the convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$4,276,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(&)
ARAREFEBRTCABEBRRE
FEEEERZBEEBREERSE
é_o
ﬁ/i\ ﬂiﬁﬂ‘f’/\a Vi NN Y €=

BERAEEC.IBITHEAER
{ﬁe@w‘% A E R EEO.27 T A HF A
BEHRTERRDE G o

RZZE_ZTFRA+HABE BHEE
TKE AR AESR0.2E T BT
500,000,0000& # A% 15 °

HRAARARR-_ZE-_ZTFERA_+_-H
B UL R L LA A% 0. 278 T A R IR (B 8 R K
% ¥ 440,000,000 TR AT R E 5 F
BOERBEN  WAQRERABREKE
F158 ABLE & E17200,000,0000% i@

B o

HRARARR=_Z=_ZEF+A=+=H
B Uk IJEﬁithon 2B TR AR (B K
4 % /556,000,000 T Al AR E A B
BHERBN  WAQRERABKE
#4585 ABl % K& #17280,000,0004% I 8

A% o

HRARRR=ZZ_TFLA=-++tAH
Euﬁzﬂuﬁiutﬂxo 278 T IR AR (B B iR K
£ %8 A24,000,0008 TR AT MR EHE
BOERBEN  WARQRBCERABKE
F458 ANBLE & E17120,000,0000% i@

R o

R=ZZFE=ZZFFNA=+AH £
170,000,000% R D B BL & R BT T
RE A A& % 534,000,000 T @ %

TEARERRBBEP0.20/8TT °

op

/|

0w == ¢ + H +Ah A8 é #*
ft%)\ ZJSé%Ez%%,ooo,ooo,%m é’*
TEAERAERKRMKB0.20% T -

HRARAAR_ZE-_FTF+_-_A+HMH
EH&Z@JEﬁmtﬂxo.zﬁémm?@ﬁx{,ﬁq%$
£ % /590,724,000 T A R E A B
ERERBN  RMARQREE B RKE
F+5 8 ABl % K& #17453,620,0000% I 8

A% o

HRARRR=ZZ_TF+=-_A+HA
Euﬁzﬂuﬁiutﬂxo 2B T IR AR (B B iR K
£ %8 54,276,00078 TTH A AR (B 5
FERAA - WARQEE R BRRES
BB AR N 31721,380,0008 i@ AL -
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. ARD T\ Z B AR R &
THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'OO_O
FET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BB REE 7 -
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WHENB AR 2&ES - 100,000
Investments in subsidiaries B R B A A 200 42,278
207 142,278
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments e - TAM AR A EWFIE
and other receivables 2,617 6,105
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG R 80,641 316,041
Cash and bank balance IRe MER1TH R 1,883 76
85,141 322,222
Current liabilities nEEE
Accrued charges and other payables JEstERAME {mﬂ’iﬁﬁélﬁ 137,469 21,665
Amounts due to subsidiaries &SI B /B8 2 B3R 8,045 237,641
Shareholder’s loans &N -E:N 14,565 =
Lease liabilities HEEE 2,135 3,619
Other borrowing HAvfE R - 22,218
162,214 285,043
Net current (liabilities)/assets FE(AE) EBEFE (77,073) 37,179
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER (76,866) 179,457
Non-current liabilities FkREBEAE
Shareholder’s loans EE R - 191,561
Lease liabilities HEAE - 2,135
- 193,696
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (76,866) (14,239)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B AR M
Share capital RE 2R 570,858 175,858
Reserves 15 (647,724) (190,097)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY EARE M (76,866) (14,239)
On behalf of the directors RERES
Wang Chuang Huo Chunyu
£ EE5E
Director Director
EBF EFE
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34.

196

RESERVES 34. 1B
Share Share option Other Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE BRERE HtRE EifE  RHEE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti5n Ti5n TAL FEL TEL TEr
At 1 January 2019 R-E-hE—A—H 3,196,996 42,156 - 13 (3,068,348) 170,817
Deemed capital contribution from RIERREE
shareholders = = 12,238 - - 12,238
Issue of share options BRRE - 5,367 - - - 5,367
Lapse of share options BRERN = (7,224) = = 7,224 =
Loss for the year AEEER s = = - (378,619)  (378,519)
At 31 December 2019 and R=B-AF+=A=1-H
1 January 2020 BoE-E-F-F 3196006 40209 12,238 13 (3430643  (190,007)
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ AREEEEIARG A
-l - 2,234 - - - 2,234
Lapse of share options BREXN - (4,084) - - 4,084 -
Share issue expenses RABIRE (817) - - - - (817)
Irrecoverable deposit for Wil B AR A
an acquisition of a subsidiaries WEks - - - - (100,000)  (100,000)
Conversion of convertible bonds ERTARES 7,334 - - - - 7,334
Loss for the year TEERE - - - 60  (366,438)  (366,378)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF
+-A=+-F 3203513 38449 12,238 73 (3,901,097)  (647,724)

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business immediately following the date
on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

Deemed capital contribution from shareholders, represented
the difference between the principal amount of the
shareholder’s loan and its fair value. As at 31 December
2019, the fair value of shareholder’s loans were calculated
using cash flows discounted at market interest rate of
5% per annum. Difference between the fair value and the
nominal value of the loans, amounting to HK$12,328,000 is
included in other reserve in equity.

RERAERSREE  ARAZRMDEE
BRAMA DK TR - EARRZANREERZ
ZKMEMEBYIRBHE  EHEAR
EBBRETEEDNHES -

RIEREBRENTEERBRRERERNAEE
HEATERMNESE R-_ZT—NLF+=
A=+—8 BREEZFNATERBEE
FE5%MMIHFEIFNIBESRTE - EX
N EEZFREZEMNERE12,328,000%8
TORT AR B EL M 4 o
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35. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF

35. RMEMBRIFHE

CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities: REETHELANBEZHE -
Interest
payables
Convertible Bank Shareholder's Other for other Lease
bonds  borrowings loans  borrowings  borrowings liabilities
) i RfbfEFN
THkES BT RRER RbER ERFE HERR
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tt T T ThT T Thr
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NET-A=T-H - 389,300 258,334 - - -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RhBEIBREEE167 - - = = = 102,767
- 389,300 258,334 - - 102,767
Changes from cash flows: RemeR(:
Drawdown - - - - 55,172 - -
Repayments & = (389,300) (37,695) - - -
Interest paid EAFE - (1,405) - - - -
Repayment of principal portion of | [EEMEaEA2TD
ease liabilties - - - - - (18,235)
Interest on lease liabities paid ERNRERGEHS - - - - - (2,285)
Total changes from financing cash flows: HERS e - (390,705) (37,695) 55,172 - 20,520)
Other changes: Hhe
Additions RE - - - - - 34,106
Interest expenses ilha - 1,405 - - 1,653 2,285
Exchange difference EXES = = = = - (343)
Deemed capital contrioution from shareholder & /EX B k&) & - - (13,341) - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary LENEBA] - - - - - (1.276)
Lease modification REEH - - - - - (67,500)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020  WZE-AFT-A=T-0R
“5-%%-f-H - - 207,298 55,172 1,653 49,519
Changes from cash flows: RemER(
Drawdown by - - 20,295 - - -
Repayments & - - - (55,172) - -
Interest paid Bfilg (2,334) - - (14,494) (1,653) -
Repayment of principal portion of [ERAEaREA2TD
lease liabilties - - - - - (26,621)
Interest on lease liabilties paid ERRERERNE - - - - - (1,696)
Total changes from financing cash flows: RERSRERTEE (2,334) - 20,295 (69,666) (1,653) (19,028)
Other changes: EthEs)
Interest expenses il 2,334 - 13,332 14,494 - 1,696
Settlement by issue of convertible bonds BT ARERRER 220,630 - (220,630) - - -
Conversion of convertible bonds EnTHRES (220,630) - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE+-f=1-H - - 20,295 - - 22,898
2020 3% FEBLBEHABRERAT 197
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36.
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CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital and other
commitments as follows:

CEBEARR H AR

R-ZB-_TE+_A=+—H Fr&5EZ
BARREMAELT

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Capital commitments for property, Y RE NS B AN EYE
plant and equipment:
Contracted but not provided for: EEENEESZ T
Purchased of property, BEYHE  BER&E
plant and equipment 1,509 654
Total BET 1,509 654

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with
the University of Oxford for the research of stem cell
therapy and tissue engineering. The Company agreed to
provide GBP9 million (equivalent to HK$93 million) to the
University of Oxford by instalments over the period covered
by agreements. Up to 31 December 2020, the Company
has paid GBP5.05 million (equivalent to HK$55.90 million
(2019: GBP5.05 million (equivalent to HK$55.90 million)) to
the University of Oxford. As the agreements are executory,
no liability should be recognised at the date of signing of the
agreements.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group through
a subsidiary company of the Ophthalmology products and
services business segment entered into the framework
agreements with independent third parties to establish
an ophthalmic clinic and a specialist hospital located
in Shenzhen, PRC. According to the terms of the two
framework agreements, the Group may use each of the two
sites for the first eight years following the date the relevant
site becomes available for use and the Group was required
to share 49% of the audited net profit (after tax) of the
specialist hospital with the independent third party during
the term of that lease. Thereafter, the Group may elect to
continue to rent the sites at a rental to be determined by
reference to the then prevailing market rate for the seven
years that follow. The Group has not yet used these sites and
there is no rental payment paid by the Company for these
sites during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
and such framework agreements were divested following
the disposal of the Ophthalmology products and services
segment.

$ﬁﬂ§i¢i$k%?ﬁ$%ﬁﬁ@iﬁi§&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
TREMNAFRT LMD ENHZE - AA
@%ﬁﬁéﬁ%%i&%,ﬁﬁﬁaﬁrﬂtFi%jiﬁ/\Hﬁh
#£ 9,000,000 £ #5 (48 & 7 93,000,000 /#
L) cBME_TE-_TFE+-_A=+—H -
ARaEE M4 EKNEST 5,050,000 % &
wﬁ*ﬁﬁ5gmumm%ﬁ)tzg HF
5,050,000 % & ( /8 E R 55,900,000 5
JL)) > BRZE S rﬁfﬁnﬁ’méﬂﬁ
HZHHYERZARE -

REEZ2-_ZT—tFONA=ZFTHIFE &
Elﬁﬁﬂéuu&ﬁﬁﬁ%?‘“*ﬂﬂ’] il b 8
ANRIEB T E = F AT ERE G R - ARE

lmﬂwii—fﬁwﬁtf%&—fiﬁﬂ

B o IRIEMDIELR ek 285K » AEE ]
REBSAIEFER 2 B s E/\FRE
HazmES - EXASEEENEEFHR
BB TE =R D ZERBR40%EEZF

B (BR) - Wik - NEBE R EBEER
ERE5M HeB2ELFRMBITM
BHNEETE Zliilrﬁifiibﬁﬁ%i%ﬁﬁ

BEMEARARBE_ZT_TFR_
—hWEF+ZA=1+— Eiifﬁdﬁgiﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ENHe MZFEEBZENLERE
BE fh N AR TS 5 BB 15 KBk o
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36. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 36. EARARHMARE (&)
(CONT’D)
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries: WEEMB AR 2IZS -
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Lung Hang Investment Limited (note (a)) Lung Hang Investment Limited
(M5t (a)) - 100,000
Other target company (note (b)) Eih AR (MEEDb) - 46,512
- 146,512

On 10 December 2017, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with an independent third party
in relation to the proposed acquisition (the “Proposed
Acquisition”) of the entire issued share capital of Lung
Hang Investments Limited (“Lung Hang”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability. Lung Hang and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the manufacture, distribution, trading and
sale of proprietary Chinese medicines, chemical raw
materials, biochemical products, chemical medicine
preparation and health food and other related business
in the PRC. The amount of the consideration for the
Proposed Acquisition shall be in the region between
HK$3.6 billion to HK$3.8 billion, subject to further bona
fide negotiations. Further details were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2017.

According to the framework agreement, the
Company shall pay HK$100 million to the existing
shareholder of Lung Hang within 7 days from the
signing of the framework agreement. This payment
was non-refundable and if the Proposed Acquisition
materialises, this payment shall be applied as part
payment of the consideration.

2020 i FEBLEBE2ERERAT

RZE—-—+tFE+=ZH+H A2
BHEBYE=ZARINL —MDERD
& WA B BEZKELung Hang
Investments Limited([Lung Hang|)
(REBELEESTMRIZBERA
A2 BRTRA([RERZKES
I8 ) o Lung Hang R EN B AR EE
RABEEERRKEE (BRI - &
TER LE2EJBRRERANE
E ol BHRHEEBUREM
AR RRUBEEFHEIRESLHE
EN TF36EBILEISEAETL A
FE—SPEAEENEE - E—FFE
HRARARBHA T —tF+=A
THZA% -

BEERDRE  AQRERERILIE
285 :% 17 B A A Lung HangZR (T A%
REMN1EBT c ZEFBEATAR
B oWEBRWESEERE  ZERHE
BHFRAERENI DK -
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36. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
(CONT’D)
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(a)

(Cont’d)

For the purpose of this Proposed Acquisition, All
Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, advanced HK$100 million
to the Company to pay the deposits pursuant to the
framework agreement. This shareholder’s loan (the
“Shareholder’s Loan”) was unsecured and interest-
free. If the Company proceeded with the Proposed
Acquisition, the Company would have to repay the
Shareholder’s Loan on or before the third anniversary
date of the advancement date of the Shareholder’s
Loan.

The Company reached agreement in December 2017
with All Favour that if the Company decides not to
proceed with the Proposed Acquisition, the Company
shall nominate All Favour as nominated purchaser
for the Proposed Acquisition and that if All Favour
agreed to proceed with the Proposed Acquisition,
the obligation to repay the Shareholder’s Loan by the
Company shall be deemed discharged when All Favour
enters into the sale and purchase agreement of the
Proposed Acquisition.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the financial
position of the Company, and decided that it would
not be feasible for the Company to proceed with the
Proposed Acquisition and the Company requested (the
“Request”) All Favour to be nominated as purchaser
for the Proposed Acquisition. The Request was
rejected by All Favour and All Favour requested for the
repayment of the Shareholder’s Loan by 20 December
2020.

36. EARAR HMAIE(E)

(a)

(&)

RTRBZZWRBER  AREIZE
ERREBIERARIA(T2E]) @A
RRABBEMEATTHFRIBAREE
R HEE - ZERRER(IK
REF]REEMERE - HARR
ETEBRWBEEE  ARFAHFERK
REFBNAMER=ZBFEAXL
RIEERRER -

R-TF—tF+_-H ARFREDE
ER R WARBIRE METEZ
WHEEIR  ARAIARRE2ERES
WIESENERRET  EIIBR
T anzEREETEREESE
ARBEERRERZEERBER
ERzEREREEERITLEER
ERETT

FA - BEFHARAOT BN K
REARRRMEEETERRESERL
AArfT - BARARR(TZER])
REZESEZWBFTENET - &%
ERFEEEER MEERKR_-_F
“EFET_AZTRZAIEERRE

=
A °
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36. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
(CONT’D)

(a)

(Cont’d)

As part of the efforts by the Company to assess
the legal position, the Company has obtained an
independent legal counsel advice which indicated that
the Company would not be able to compel All Favour to
accept the nomination and the Company’s liabilities to
repay the Shareholder’s Loan could not be discharged.

After negotiation and assessment of the Company’s
position, the Company and All Favour agreed that
the Shareholder’s Loan shall be settled in full by the
Company issuing convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$95 million representing a discount
of 5% to the nominal amount of the Shareholder’s
Loan and upon the issue of such convertible bonds
the liability of the Company under the Shareholder’s
Loan in the amount of HK$100 million shall be settled
and discharged absolutely. Such discount is meant
to compensate the Company for the early settlement
of the Shareholder’s Loan. Upon the issue of such
convertible bonds, the deposits for the Proposed
Acquisition of HK$100 million was also fully impaired.
For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 20 October 2020, 7 December
2020 and 10 December 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 20 November 2020.

The deposit is unsecured, interest-free and refundable
if the proposed acquisition does not proceed. In June
2020, the proposed acquisition was cancelled and the
Group reclaimed the deposit during the year ended 31
December 2020.

36. ERR HMALE (&)

(a)

2020 i FEBLEBE2ERERAT

(&)

ERARBIFHEZR U IHH TIEM —
Mo ARAFRERFHELEEBERE
R RmER ARRELERZER
XA MARREERREFRNE
ETRERRRRS -

LEERAHEARRZMR - KA T
HE2ERE  BRRERBSHARQ A
1T N4 58 4 95,000,0005% 7T (A%
RERNEENE5%) KA 2R EH
ﬁ%/%fa BRETE@ETBRRES
A RRRREE K 1oooooooo
?éﬁ?z,%{iﬂﬂ%#ﬁx & B ERRR o
E%%%EEWEE«;&M?E oK T 7l
EARRA - BITE@ENBRRESRE -
B W E18 2% £100,000,0007%
ﬁaﬁi%zma BHEFE  B2HEA
AEIAA-—ZE-_TF+A=-F+H "
—E_TEFA+_AtHER_T_ZF
+-ATEANAE UEARQ 7E|Hﬂ
AB_E_EF+—A=-1+HNE

ZHB R IEERAREE LT - BlRS
REER  RERARE - EA_EZ
TENA BRWESFHEETEUR

MAEBEERBE_ZT_ZTF+_H4
=t+—BHIFEREEZEE -
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37.

202

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011
(the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the directors may grant
options to (i) any eligible employee (means any employee,
whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors and non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries and any invested entity;
(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity; (iii) any customer of the Group
or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or technological support or other
services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v) any
shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity. The period of
the Scheme shall not be more than ten years from the date
of adoption of the Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors of the Company, or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders.

7. B

RARREBE-—ER-_T——F LA THEA
BRBZRBRFES —ABBRAE S (5
g1 - RIFFHE - EFARTINALRE
BRENRBBARARG : ()&ARF -~ &
ERMBARREMAREERZEMNS
EREEGEEMNE2RGEBES @ BT
AATESRIFATES) : (IAAKEIT
AR B ARRERMAIREERHEEE MK
RS 2 IR ¢ (i) AR BEHERAKR

BERZEMET : (vAAKES @A
BREBRREHRIE FEIARMEIE

RIS 2 ERALTHERE  R(V)ERBR
SAKEELMKE QB REAAIREER
SAKEELMKERABREAMIKEER
BOZEMES2EAFAEA(GRE 28
EF]) - HBZBENNREH2EEHAE
BTz BRME L S B S B &Sk AR
SESURERREESES  LRAY
AEEREFNAREERMEEEZAN
BIR - st E| Rt 8 B HE 58
B -

BRIEEB/ AR RIRELE - BIEFTEIAT T
BHZBERES R ZBRHORBRETBBBER
NRIRBETEIE R BTRM Z210% °
AN - EATERIBRT S i ARITEZ
BREMY FTEROZAQRABROEE £
R IS EBEARATRHERTERGZ
30% ° REM121E A HAfE A A] [mER A L
BHZBERES R ZBRHEBE THBBBER
R EPMEREE B BEITIRMD 2 1% © fHRA
RAEERBXBIUIERNITE FNEME
EEXACHEABRN ZEREBRBARAR
f& A 20.1% K {E{E K # 5,000,000 7T -
Bl A 7B 1S A A Bl AR SR BEE ©
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 37. BIRE(E)

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per
grant. An option period to be determined by the directors
is at their absolute discretion shall not be more than ten
years after the date of the grant of the share option (“Option
Period”). Options may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during the Option Period
after the option has been granted. The exercise price should
not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares; (i) the closing price of the Company’s
share on the date of grants, which must be a trading day;
or (iii) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its
shares.

No share option was granted under the Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

PIREZBRELARKE L BHE28R
HAR MR A - T3R5 B IR Sy 7R 4
1AL - BREABSHEZE2ENE
BT ETSBEERLERER R+
FRBBEMR] - REBRER Bk
FE AT X B P v A R A R BR G B IR SR BE S T
AITE - TEEIFSERAT =2 2E&D
E()VARFEROEE : (i) AR FBRHRER
HEM(LESR SR ) ZWHIE « k(i) A
ARABROREEZRLASIAEARXZH 2
FHWRHIE -

FIAEREODXNZEBEME K AEEX
o REBBRBEITRMIN - BB EAEXE
EHEGREE S B -

BE_Z2_ZFEKE_FT—LF+=A
=t HIFERERBETEIR L BAE -
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

204

37. BRE(E)

The Company K\E]
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Share at 31 December during at 31 December
Name of category of participant option type 2019 the year 2020
“%-h§ R-2-%%
+ZA +ZA
=t-H =t-H
SREVERNER BRESD HATE FEREN HAR{TE
Directors 2
Independent non-executive directors B H#HTEE
Mr. Chan Bing Woon PRIRIRST 4 04/2016 57,900 (57,900) =
(resigned on 15 August 2019) (R=Z-NENBTRREE) 04/2017 46,000 (46,000) -
Sub-total N5t 103,900 (103,900) -
Employees =]
In aggregate = 04/2016 1,845,500 (190,500) 1,655,000
04/2017 2,878,200 (341,700) 2,536,500
Consultants B
In aggregate = 04/2016 1,647,000 - 1,647,000
04/2017 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
8,874,600 (636,100) 8,238,500

During the year, 636,100 (2019: 2,057,800 share options
(adjusted after share consolidation)) share options lapsed as
the related directors, employees and consultants resigned/
retired/ceased to provide services to the Group. As a result
of the lapse of share options during the year, an amount of
HK$4,084,000 (2019: HK$7,224,000) were debited to the
share option reserve and credited to accumulated losses.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted, as the directors consider
that the share options granted is an extra incentive to the
consultants and no specified identifiable goods or services to
be provided to the Group.

FARN - AREBHES - EERERBCE
£/ RE/TBAANEBIRERS @ WA
636,100 (—Z— "4 : 2,057,8001% ) #&
BRE(RDEHEBETHAZ)ERKX - AR
FERNBRED KRR 4,084,000 (==
— L4 : 7,224,000/8 70 ) IR BB AR #E R 5 R
MR A REHEE -

HREZRAMEH 2BIRETSREMR
TR Z BEINERD - B 30 4 S 1) AN 5% [ 12 it
ZFEEA#BNE MRS - RERETL
NG E s BREXNERARS 2 AFE
DESEMBTHBREZ AFEEE °
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) .BIRE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RN E_EER - E—hhE+_A=+—
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: H 27 B IR R R R
Contractual Number of options
exercise BREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHE SER
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2020 2019
ANTEE
(RRBAEH
RS BR s %AB) BRESNES b S 33 ZE0E
Directors and chief
executive officer
ESRTBAR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years - 11,580
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
“E-REAATNH E-RENATABE —E—R"ENATRAEE 9T 10F
3 NELATER  ZE-REAATARA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years - 11,580
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
ZZ-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE—tENATABE 9T 105
“P{ERATEE —B-REARTEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years - 11,580
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR . ZE-REAATABE ZE-\EAATARE 9T 105
- \§nA+HA ,7,£¢RH+£H
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years - 11,580
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZE-REAATAR ZE-REAATABRE ZE-NEAATARE 9T 105
“E-NENATHR _7_£ERH+£H
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years - 11,580
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
—“Z-RENA1+/H E-RFNATABE “E-TENATABEE 9B 10F
TZE-EEARTRA  —E-n4AAITA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years - 9,200
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
- ENANE “Z-"ERANBE E—+ENANAZE 5828 10E
“E—tFNANR ,jfﬁinHAH
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) .BIRE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RN E_EER - E—hhE+_A=+—
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d) B2 BBREIRR ARG ET « (8)
Contractual Number of options
exercise EREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHE SER
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2020 2019
ANTEE
(RRBAEBH
RUAH BRI s %AB) BRESNES “BCER 2%
Directors and chief
executive officer
(Cont'd)
BESRIBER(R)
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years - 9,200
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
ZEREAANE ZEAEAANBE ZE-\EAANRE 5.82%T 106
ZE-\ENANE ,jjﬁhﬂ/\ﬁ
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HK$5.82 10 years - 9,200
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
“E-ENANE —7- /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi E-NENANAZE 5828 10F
2-AERBNR  —E-TEAAR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2020 to HK$5.82 10 years - 9,200
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“Z-ENANA “ER~ENANBE ZZ-RENANBE 58287 10F
“P-TERANE —B-REAANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2021 to HK$5.82 10 years - 9,200
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“Z-"ENANA "2 EARNNBE Z—EBE-_-FHnANHZE 5828 108
—E_-$1ANR “ZCRFAANR
Employees
&g
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 369,100
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
—“Z-RFNA+/H ﬂﬁj‘bﬂ+/\5:t “ERENATABEE 9B 10F
_7' /\Ejlﬂ'l'ﬁa _—‘,_ﬁﬁjlﬂ‘l'ﬁa
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 369,100
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-REAATABE ZEHEAATARE 9T 105
“Z—+FNAtRA —E-RFAATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 369,100
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATAR ZE-REAATAAE ZBR-\EAATAREZE 9B 104
“Z-\FAATREE —E-RFAATEA
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37.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) .BIRE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at NR-E_EER - E—hhE+_A=+—
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d) B2 R IRR ARG T « (8)
Contractual Number of options
exercise BREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHE SER
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2020 2019
ANTEE
(RRBAEBH
RUAH BRI s %AB) BRESNES “BCER 2%
Employees (Cont’d)
EE(&)
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 369,100
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-NENATABE 9ET 105
“2-7EAATER  —F-REAATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years 331,000 369,100
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-REAATABE ZEEEAATARE 9B 105
“Z-ZFENA+RA ZE-RFAATRA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 575,640
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
—E-ENANE -z /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi E—+ENANAE 5828 10F
2LERANR  —E-TEAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 575,640
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
ZE-R"ENANR = /\ﬁhﬂ/\ﬁi T-\ENANRE 5828 105
T-\EnANR _7_EEHH/\EI
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2019 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 575,640
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
- ENANE “Z-"EAANBE E-NENANAZE 5828 108
“E-NFAANR ,jjﬁnﬂ/\a
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 575,640
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
—“E—"ENANA —E-R"EAANRE ZE-ZEFAANBZE 5828 10F
ZEZTEAANE ZEZREAANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2021 to HK$5.82 10 years 507,300 575,640
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“Z-~ENANA 2R ENANBE ZZ--EnANBE 5828 108
“Z--FNANR _7_EEHH/\EI
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37.

208

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) .BIRE(E)
The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at RN E_EER - E—hhE+_A=+—
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d) B2 BBREIRR ARG ET « (8)
Contractual Number of options
exercise BREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHE SER
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2020 2019
ANTEE
(RRBAEBH
RUAH BRI s %AB) BRESNES “BCER 2%
Consultants
BE
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
—“Z-RENA+/H ﬂﬁj‘bﬂ+/\5:t “E-RENATABEE 98T 10F
“F-rENAtTRRE —Z-AFAATEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015to 16 September 2017 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
“Z-AFNA+AA Z-RENATABE —E—tENATRAZE 9B 10F
‘*—tﬁnﬂﬂiﬁ ZECIENATAR
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
“E-R1FNAtAR  ZE-REAARTAAZE ZE-\EAATAEE 9B 10F
“Z-\FRA+RA ZEZ-RFAATAEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZZ-RENATAR ZE-REAATABE ZE-NENATABE 9ETL 105
“Z-NEAATRER —E-REAARTEA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 15 16 September 2020 to HK$9 10 years 329,400 329,400
September 2020 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-REAATABE ZEEEAATARE 9T 105
ZECEEAATAR ZE-RENATEA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
—E-ENANE —7- /\Eﬂﬂ/\ﬁi E—+ENANAZE 5828 10F
2LERANR  —E-TEAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2018 to HK$5.82 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
“Z-ENANA -z /\ﬁhﬂ/\ﬁi “2-\FNANAE 58287 10F
T-\EnANR _7_EEHH/\EI
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37. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Bk (E)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d)

R-F-FER-F-AEF+-A=+—
B 2 REARAE R R IR HE AT« ()

Contractual Number of options
exercise EREHE
price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAEHE SER
after share Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2020 2019
ANTEE
(RRBAEBH
RUAH BRI s #AE) BRESHED “BCER 2%
Consultants (Cont’d)
BE (&)
9 September 2016 8 September 2016t0 9 September 2019 to 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
ZE-R"ENANR ZZEAANRE  ZT-NFAANRE 5828 105
“P-NEAANE  —B-REAANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016to 9 September 2020 to 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“ENENANE “E-RENANEE ZZ-ZENANEE T 105
“ZCEEAANR “ZCRFAANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to 10 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
—E-ENANE “E- ENANBE —E--#NANAEZ T 10F
“E--EAANR —B-REARNR

8,238,500 8,874,600

The Company had 7,207,200 and 6,277,600 share options
exercisable at 31 December 2020 and 2019 after share
consolidation and the weighted average exercise prices
of share options exercisable at 31 December 2020 and
2019 after share consolidation are HK$7.28 and HK$7.28
respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 8,238,500
(2019: 8,874,600 (restated)) share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately 0.3%
(2019: 1%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the remaining share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 8,238,500 (2019: 8,874,600) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$1,647,700 (2019: HK$1,774,920) and share premium
of HK$56,800,730 (2019: HK$61,165,524) (before issue
expenses).

RZBE_ZEFR_FT-—NF+_A=1+—

Bk & ff& - XRaaAF7,207, 2001%
£6,277,60017 M ER] T 176 - R=
TEFRZE-NF+ZA=+— EIE’\\HX
MeftE  AlIfTEEREN INEFEETE
Bn R B7.288 7T M7.287T °

RZE_TF+=-_A=+—8 ARAH
8,238,500 (==& — /L4 : 8,874,6001n
(F&E5))FTEIBET 2 M ARITEBRRE
HARRARNRZB ZEETRMNA0.3%(=
T—NF 1%) - RARAIEBERNERE
T BEITESRTEREBSBARQ A
778,238,500 (=& — JL 4 : 8,874,600
B ) BN T @R - W EEBINBRA
1,647,700 L (ZF — JLF : 1,774,920
77T ) Rk 7 3% 856,800,730/ L (= &
—LF 61,165,524 ) (REFTHX
A °
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37.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 37. BRE(E)
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share IS E MINEFHITEZMT :
options are as follows:
2020 2019
“BIEF —BNF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MELHTEE BREBE MNETHIERE BRkiEHE
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
B T4 BT Tp
(restated)
(E=5))
QOutstanding at beginning of the year ~ F1i# ATT{E 7.09 8,874 7.08 10,932
Forfeited/Lapsed during the year ERRI/ KR 7.09 (636) 7.09 (2,058)
Outstanding at end of year ERMKTE 7.09 8,238 7.09 8,874

Note: The number of share options and exercise prices were
adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation as mentioned in
note 33

As at 31 December 2020, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 4.70
years (2019: 5.70 years).

During the year, share-based payments expense of
HK$2,234,000 (2019: HK$5,367,000) have been charged to
profit or loss for the year.

PieE : AR B RITEETIREM I3
2 B in & BHE L &

RZZBE_ZF+-_A=+—8 " HKITE
BN INE T H SR E D FHRL.705F
(ZZ—NF : 5.70F) °

FR - LARDZNERA2,234,000/8 T
(ZZ—NF :5,367,00006 ) ERAREE
B -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EAETRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in B ETERREMIBOFMAZS I
these financial statements, the Group had the following AREBRFRNEBE T BIUNTRS
transactions with related parties during the year.
Compensation of Key management personnel FTEEBEAEM2
The key management personnel of the Group are the AEEBZFTBEBABNARAEE §
directors, chief financial officer and legal counsel of the EMBEE RERER - TESTIEAS 2
Company. The remuneration of the key management BEFMEESREBENA LT ZRIRR
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee MGBRAET TEEBEAS(THEES
having regard to the performance of individuals and market E)ZMMEeSmEWLT -

trends. The remuneration of the key management (excluding
directors) was as follows:

2020 2019

—B-®E T AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Salaries and other benefits HFe REMIEF 3,012 2,106
Retirement benefits scheme RIRBFFT B R

contributions 36 21

3,048 2,127

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals EEFEEERAANME N FUATEE -

fell within the following band:

Number of individual

AE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T—NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ1,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/& 721,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1
2 3
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39. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

212

39. RHIB A B 2 fE &

Issued ordinary Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests  Principal activities and
Name of company registration capital held by the Company  place of operations
ERTEER ARERERE
AER MR/ R&/HRER EERLA TERHREENY
Directly  Indirectly
B 3
China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited British Virgin Islands 1S$20,000 100% - Investment holding,
(2019:100%) Hong Kong
HEANESEERHERAT AERAHS 20,000% 7 RARR Bk
China Regenerative Medicine Tissue Engineering Limited British Virgin Islands US245,968,536 - - Investment holding,
(2019: 100%)  Hong Kong
HEREBRAGTIEERAA AERAES 245,968 536% ¢ RERR &k
FD(H) Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - - Investment holding,
(2019: 100%)  Hong Kong
FD(H) Investments Limited ABRAES 10057 RE#R &%
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company Limited The PRC RMB250,000,000 - - Production and sales of tissue
(“Shaanxi Alerfu’) (2019:100%)  engineering skin related
products, the PRC
REXBEARTIRERAR(RELEE]) hE ABR#%250,000,0007 FERHERRTERERE
Em 78
Shaanxi AiBosin Bio-Engineering Company Limited The PRC RMB2,000,000 - - Research and development,
(*Shaanxi ABosin’) (2019: 100%)  the PRC
RELBELNIRERAR ([RAELEE]) hE ARH2,000,0007T iRl
Shaanxi AiNear Cornea Engineering Gompany Limited The PRC RMB3,800,000 - - Research and development,
(“Shaanxi AiNear") (2019: 100%)  the PRC
REXBEARIRERAR(RELER]) hE AR 3,800,000 W mE
Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering Company Limited The PRC RMB3,800,000 - - Production and sales of
("Shenzhen AiNear’) (2019:100%)  bio-engineered comea,
the PRC
MIBEARIRARLAA(TRYXER]) hE AR 3,800,000 REREELNIRAR 18
Zhongsheng Medical Equipment Trading Gompany Limited The PRC RMB60,000,000 - - Sales and distribution,
(2019:100%)  the PRC
EERENHEARAT le AR 60,000,007 HERDH - 1H
Shaanxi Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd. (‘Reshing) The PRC RMB117,000,000 - - Research and development,
(2019:100%)  the PRC
RERELNHRERAA (HRE)) hEl AR #117,000,0007C i
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39. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 30. ARMiB AR 2= (&)
Issued ordinary Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests  Principal activities and
Name of company registration capital held by the Company  place of operations
‘ BREER ARRRERE
ARER AL/ SRS R&/fiREs REZL IERBREXNY
Directly  Indirectly
B i
Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 51% Sales and distribution,
(“Shanghai Hesid") (2019:51%)  the PRC
g E RnERAR( HEH4%]) i A& #50,000,0007 HERAH 1E
Shenzhen Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 51% Sales and distribution,
(“Shenzhen Hesidl") (2019:51%)  the PRC
RGESRRERAR (R4 ) hE AR 5,000,000 HERAH 1E
China Bio-Med Technology Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100% Research and development,
(2019:100%)  the PRC
hEEENBARAT le AR 50,000,000 e -
HK International Regenerative Gentre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Healthcare business, Hong Kong
(2019: 100%)
BEEREERERLERAT &k 1007 BERREE R
China Regenerative Medicine Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
(2019: 100%)
HEEEREARAT &k 187 RERR &k
BioCell Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Stem cell operation, Hong Kong
(2019: 100%)
AREMHBARDA Bk 187 SNER - BB
Tianjin Welkai Bioeng Ltd The PRC RMB10,400,000 - 90%" Sales and distribution, the PRC
(2019: 90%)
REEAENIRERAA il AR #10,400,0007 HERAH M
AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd The PRC RMB1,470,600 - 90%" Sales and distribution, the PRC
(2019: 90%)
B (BN ) MBS AR R A ilei ARE1,470,6007 HERDH 1 H
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39. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

214

Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
of the Group for the period or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group at the end of the period. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the period or at any time during the period.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
acquired additional 20% equity interests in its non-wholly
owned subsidiaries, Frame Sharp Limited and Passion Stream
Limited, with the consideration of US$1 upon the enforcement
of the Group’s rights under the profit guarantees as disclosed
in note 19. Since then, the Group’s shareholding of Frame
Sharp Limited and Passion Stream Limited increased from
70% to 90%. The Group also acquired additional 20% equity
interests in its non-wholly owned subsidiary, HK International
Regenerative Centre Limited with the consideration of HK$20.
Since then, the Group’s shareholding of HK International
Regenerative Centre Limited increased from 80% to 100%.
As the increase in equity interests do not affect the Group’s
control over these subsidiaries, these transactions had been
accounted for as equity transactions with the non-controlling
interests. These transactions resulted in deemed loss on
acquisition of non-controlling interests of HK$15,978,000,
which is included in other reserve in the equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

39. RIB A B 2w (&)

p

By

CERIHEERATIENEAEEYA

EERARAEERREEFETZS
MZAREENBLR - EFRR - JIiE
HMBARZAREESRIEARIT
£ o

EMBAREREREMERA -

RERIR AN EMRE - SHEHNER
AEEERNERKES

FEY,” (FEAT) BB & R SR Th R4 AR -
RERARERER -

BE-_Z-—hAE+_-_A=+—HIt&E
B BEMF19RTHE 2 % FRFT
BEARAEENENE  AEBWEEIE
2 & [ff B A & Frame Sharp Limited
¥ Passion Stream Limited % 4 20%
HpEE  REA1I1ET - Bt - A%
A Frame Sharp Limited X Passion
Stream Limited &5 B tE 51 5 70% 38 1N
Z90% - NEE AR E 208 T R E
HIF2ENBRARBERBRHEEESH
DB R A B K EIN0% K o i
AEERBABERBEEERLAR
A A KRR L Bl B 80% AN E100% ©
HRBRENENTEEAREHZE
MEBARMIEZES - hZERHEIREIE
TREDETHIRAZSAR - ZER
SERWNEFERER 2 RIEEEAR
15,978,000 7T * B 5F ARz 89 H fth
- WHEBRAAREAA °
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39. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

*

The Group does not have any equity interest in Tianjin Weikai
Bioeng Limited (“Tianjin Weikai”) and AK (Suzhou) Biomedical
Ltd (“AK Suzhou”). However, the Group has entered into
the contractual arrangements with Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou and its equity holders, which enable the Group to
(1) exercise effective financial and operational control over
Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou; (2) exercise equity holders’
voting rights of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou; (3) receive
substantially all of the economic interest returns generated
by Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou in consideration for the
management services provided by the Group; (4) obtain an
irrevocable and exclusive right with an initial period of 10
years to purchase the entire equity interest in Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou from the respective equity holders. The right
automatically renews upon expiry for indefinite period of time
until the Group specifies a renewal term; and (5) obtain a
pledge over the entire equity interest of Tianjin Weikai and
AK Suzhou from its respective equity holders as collateral
security for all the payments due to the Group and to secure
performance of Tianjin Weikai’'s and AK Suzhou’s obligations
under the above contractual arrangements. Accordingly, the
Group has rights to variable returns from its involvement with
Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou and is considered to control Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou. Consequently, the Group regards Tianjin Weikai and
AK Suzhou as the indirect subsidiaries under HKFRSs.

39. RIB A B 2w (&)

*

AEETE|BFARZHEINENIRAR
RA([R2EIN]) BRI (M) £
AR AR (TR (EIM) 1) e E[
Pk - A - REBERZE KR
(BM) R EERFE AGTLA QR
AL BES(1)ITREEREFH K ZE
(FRM) M EBRITS & & EEFI4E (27T
e RBEI KR (FMN) s E AN
BEME - (Q)URECREF I R B (FIN)
EEBRBOKENRE IR  EASAE
EIRHENEERBOLE  (4)EBL
ERRFAEABER2ZHI KA (FH
M) 2 AR R N AR R B RAER
V6 F A+ F o AR R HE R 5 fE 7R B A
BEROELEOHEY  HAKBIETEE
RIFRERI : ROV EEEEERE
AS RN R Bl (FRM) 2 AF A 7
R FRENANKENAAKENE
YA RRREI KRR (G ) BT
EREHNRFBRTHOEE - Bt - K&
B AREEB2ERREN LR (M)
MEBKMEXTEEREFRNBEBHE
HRZRYFR (GRM) RO H T &
ZEE - WWRBEHREFI KR
LMD - Bt RIBFBP B RS E
A - REBRRZEINRES (BN A
BEHB AR
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

40. FFERERS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) included (1) Shanghai Hesidi
Cosmetics Company Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary, and
its subsidiary (“Hesidi Group”); (2) Ascara Cosmetics Group
Co., Limited (“Ascara”), a 51% owned subsidiary; (3) BioCell
Technology Limited (“BioCell”), a 90.5% owned subsidiary;
(4) Passion Stream Limited, a 90% owned subsidiary and
its subsidiaries (“Passion Stream Group”); and (5) Frame
Sharp Limited, a 90% owned subsidiary and its subsidiaries
(“Frame Sharp Group”). Summarised financial information in
relation to NCI of the above subsidiaries, before intra-group
eliminations, are presented below:

R—ZE_ZTF+-_F=+—H ' &&
EK%H fe s ([ 8 RIEE ﬁ%ﬁ?i
(1) EB AT BRAR(HS
T E’]W%’AT)&%W%’ATU 44
[® ]) : (2)Ascara Cosmetics Group Co.
Limited([ Ascara | ' #EHG51%#E 25 FFI /B
ACIDE (S)EBEE%H& AI([ERAE] -
BBH90.5%Em MM B A]) ; (4)Passion
Stream Limited ( }?& B 0% 1 = /) T /B
N al) &k EW B A& ([ Passion Stream
£ &) : K& (5)Frame Sharp L|m|ted(}§&
*ﬁgo%%ﬁésﬁf%ﬂ%aw&ﬁﬂﬁ%
([ Frame Sharp& J) EAEIW*BTEE%
A B E B AR ENIEIERESE
n]; ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁu—l—

Passion Stream  Frame Sharp
Hesidi Group Ascara Biocell Group Group
Passion Stream  Frame Sharp
f4%EE Ascara BRE £8 &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-EEt-A=t-ALEE
Percentage of equity interest held by FERERBENREL A
non-controlling interest 49.00% 49.00% 9.50% 10.00% 10.00%
Revenue Wi 11,131 - 29 137 5,558
Total expenses FelhT (59,655) - (7,244) (13,343) (35,618)
Loss for the year TEERR (48,167) - (2,368) (14,161) (29,758)
Total comprehensive income FERANES (34,628) - (33,174) (8,595) (5,882)
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI AREHARER (BR)/ 6 (16,968) - (3,152) (360) (588)
Dividends paid to NCI B RER RS - - - - -
Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating ~~ B&EEFE/(ME)Big
activities 207 470 (655) 552 677
Cash flows used in investing activities REEDMAGRLIE - - - (107) (696)
Cash flows generated from BATEMER LS
financing activities - - - - 82
207 470 (655) 445 163
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-f=1-H
Current assets REEE 23,202 2,386 7,984 4,646 4,826
Non-current assets E e - - - - -
Current liabilties RHEE (144,239) (15,274) (237,146) (31,195) (67,177)
Non-current iabilties FRBafE - - (3,058) (13,363) -
Net liabilties BEFE (121,037) (12,888) (232,220) (40,412) (62,351)
Accumulated NCIs ZitERER (59,308) (6,315) (22,061) (4,041) (6,235)
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40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONT’'D)  40. =Rz (8)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) included (1) Shanghai Hesidi
Cosmetics Company Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary, and
its subsidiary (“Hesidi Group”); (2) Ascara Cosmetics Group
Co., Limited (“Ascara”), a 51% owned subsidiary; (3) BioCell
Technology Limited, a 90.5% owned subsidiary; (4) /&3IIF
BIERFEMBRAE (FRIIEE"), a 51% owned subsidiary;
(5) Passion Stream Limited, a 90% owned subsidiary and
its subsidiaries (“Passion Stream Group”); and (6) Frame
Sharp Limited, a 90% owned subsidiary and its subsidiaries
(“Frame Sharp Group”). Summarised financial information in
relation to NCI of the above subsidiaries, before intra-group
eliminations, are presented below:

RZZBEZZEF+_A=+—0 XEEHHD
BRI AERS ([EAEERER ) B
M EEFAFTERBER AR (HEE51%
BB AR REMB AR ([ #H4SE
B |) : (2)Ascara Cosmetics Group Co.,
Limited([ Ascara | * #EHG51 %=/ B
A G EREVBEAR(TERA] -
HHEL%E=NMBERR) : (4 RINFE
BlEREMAERAG(DRINEIA] - #B
51% =AM B A 7)) : (5)Passion Stream
Limited (B 0% =M B A R)) k&
Mt/ A 7 ([ Passion Stream&®E |) : }(6)
Frame Sharp Limited (# A& 90% 1 2= #9 ff
BAA) REWE AR ([ Frame Sharp&
E]) - REBAZHEEA - B ERFHER
RIEARFEREREANVBEBER
T

Passion Stream ~ Frame Sharp
Hesidi Group ~ Ascara Biocel  FJIRIEl Group Group
Passion Stream ~ Frame Sharp
BeEeE  Acara  BEE PN £H 58
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr  Thr  TEr  TEx TEL TET
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-E-NE1-B=1-BLEE
Percentage of equity interest held by FEREREEHRELH
non-controlling interest 4900%  49.00% 9.50% 49.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Revenue e 5,231 2,436 428 2,210 2,005 3,791
Loss for the year rERER (4499  [219%) (126389 (17419 9.221) (29,365)
Total comprehensive income 2ENNEE (42,826) (219)  (126389)  (17,404) (8,985) (28,629)
Loss allocated to NCI AREFERERER (20,985) (1,076)  (12,007) (8,532) (1,648) (3.787)
Dividends paid to NCI B RESRE = - - - - _
Cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activites ~ B&EE)(HR) /fiEH2 g (558) (72) (14,064 1285 (3,592) (4.942)
Cash flows used in investing activies RAEBMARLRE - - - (106) - ()
Cash flows (used n)/generated from financing activifes ~ BEEEN B ) /FeB4ie 544 5 1466 (13%) 3049 4953
As at 31 December 2019 RE-NE+A=T-8
Current assets WIEE 31,458 80 89% 16,562 3,9% 736
Non-current assets EEHEE 1116 - - - - -
Curren liabilties fEEE (111849 (14341) (2603 (2,121 (35,118) (43380
Non-current liabiies ErRBAE - - (3,066 (4,069) - -
Net (iabilfes)/assets (BE¥E)/AERE (19215 (14261) (20,103 10372 (35,118) (43,044)
Accumulated NCIs ZirihEs (38845 (6989  (20910) 5,082 (3512) (4,304
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41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

A1 cHEERSHEEHME

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial

assets and liabilities:

TR ERMEENBBEZIREE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFENEMEEBAZIER 2
other comprehensive income SREE - 31,522
Financial assets at amortised costs: RS REE ¢
Non-current rental deposit EnBEELS 7,571 14,044
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERERIIEZ SBEE
profit or loss - 299,520
Financial assets at amortised cost: R KA EREE
Trade receivables 2 5 IE 80 4,012
Deposits and other receivables & & H b e U ZE 128,790 7,240
Cash and bank balance H& RIRTTHE R 4,768 19,210
141,209 375,548
Financial liabilities tRAE
Financial liabilities measured REERAFTNEREE
at amortised costs:
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables =Y AN 7,996 19,638
Accrued charges and other payables ezt B R R EMEMEEE 134,050 151,032
Lease liabilities HERE 17,028 24,094
Other borrowings HAvfE R - 55,172
Shareholder’s loans AR E 20,295 -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities MEAE 5,870 25,425
Shareholder’s loans REE X - 207,298
185,239 482,659
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities;

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into
the fair value hierarchy as follows:

TREERERMAEEHNE(E)

TREHRMRFEIGENEBRTAEZAF
BRBON

. —&: HRNEERBERNEED
%E’]#&f’i(ﬂi#<<ﬂ¥)

s A AHREELREBERFE AR
BLASN - B (AMERR) s & (A i
BRSLABERGAZE &

s FZH:AREELRBELIFKEA
BEEMSRENEARBECGEER
BWABE) -

TRMEEXRBERATERBRAZOES
BARBATEFEBEENBAREZ
RAKARR o

FHRRARNAFEFEZERE
5

IS Sy
B ERAZAFEREBOT :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ EH E=M a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TT TET THET THETT
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-ZTHF
+=—B=+—H
FVOCI BAFEREA
ZEWATIER - - - -
FVTPL BAFEREBERY R - - - -
At 31 December 2019 R=TB—hE
+=—B=+—H
FVOCI BN EREA
ZEW AR - - 31,522 31,522
FVTPL BAFEREBERY R - = 299,520 299,520
= = 331,042 331,042
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41.

220

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The details of the valuation of the fair values of FVTPL
are disclosed in notes 19 and 24 respectively. There
have been no significant transfers between levels in the
reporting period. As at 31 December 2019, the management
appointed professional valuers, Roma Appraisal Limited, as
management’s expert to assist in the assessment the fair
value of FVOCI and FVTPL and approved by the board of
directors.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the unlisted
equity investment, classified as FVOCI, is estimated using
asset based approach, based on the fair values of various
assets and liabilities of the investee, in which the fair value
of each asset and liability was determined by reasonable
valuation approaches based on its nature. The key inputs
included marketability discount of 15.8% and discount for
lack of control of 22.36%. As at 31 December 2019, if both
the marketability discount and discount for lack of control
shifted upward by 1%, the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment would be decreased by 1% and 1% respectively.
The higher the marketability discount and discount for lack of
control, the lower the fair value.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose
of measuring fair value are changed from the market
approach as at 31 December 2018 to asset-based approach
as at 31 December 2019 as the investee encountered
financial difficulty and in a going concern situation during
the year ended 31 December 2019. Therefore, the adoption
of the asset-based approach will be more appropriate in
arriving at the fair value of the investee.

41.

THEERTREEHNE ()

BAFERBRIIKRZEEFEDIHE
REEE19 K24 - RI|EHE - RAIML
BERER R_T-NF+-_A=1+—
B EEEXTERMGERMESEERFG
BRAR(FREENER) BEFERA
FENEMEEBAINRERZAFERE
SHIRNAFE YEREFSHE -

RZZE-—NF+_A=+—8 2¥ERE
NFEREMZERATIRNIE EHRA

BRENAFEDERNERESTETEER
BENAFE KBEEEGET  HPE

HEERBEMNATEDNREEHEEEB
EEREFEFIEAEE - FTEHABREMNS
TR BT IR K 15.8% K R D 128 i) 7 19 97 3R =K
22.36% c M—_ZE—hF+=-_A=+—H -
fis T 355 7 Bh 37 2R 2 Jo iR A 428 ) A A T 3R K
fUﬂH% W%tﬁ%$&§m R FEA
E'JT5¢1%&1% WS R ITIE R & i

I%%m%ﬁztm'% N FEBIE -
HRBERETRBE-_FT-NLF+=A

St RLEFEBIMBRERENFE
RERI - BARFTERFEN ARG
ERMEBE-—"FT—/\F+-_A=1+—HHK
MEABER—_FT—NAF+=-_A=1+—H
MEER - Filt - RABEBERHERREK
BHSHWAVENEBEREE -
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41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND M EREEREREEBEHNE(E)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT’D)
The reconciliation for financial assets measured at fair value ANFEERRE=ZFRENEZATEIZENE
under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows: REEHERNOT :
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
FVOCI RAFEREMGEEE AR
Opening balance IR S 31,522 161,445
Fair value loss recognised in REMEmEIE AR AT E
other comprehensive income gl (21,482) (129,923)
Derecognised through disposal of EREEWBARRILIER
a subsidiary (10,040) -
Closing balance BRSR A5 84 - 31,522
FVTPL RAFEREBRIIE
Opening balance HAW 45 ek 299,520 298,296
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss  RI82FER M A FEW = - 1,224
Disposals = (299,520) —
Closing balance BRSR A5 84 - 299,520

Contingent consideration receivables MU AKE

Opening balance HAF) 4 84 - 4,587
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss A8z RH A T EEE - (4,587)
Closing balance HASR 4564 - -
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42.

222

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has a written
risk management policy in place in relation to credit risk
associated with loan receivables.

The board of directors meets periodically to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s
exposure to a variety of risks associated with financial
instruments which arise from the Group’s operating
and investing activities. Generally, the Group employs
conservative strategies regarding its risk management to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how these risks are
mitigated are described as follows:

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency exchange rates is
minimal as the group companies usually hold most of
their financial assets/liabilities in their own functional
currencies. Currently the Group does not have
foreign currency hedging policy but the management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and those at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group monitors the
interest rate risk exposure on a continuous basis and
adjusts the portfolio of financial assets and liabilities
when necessary. A reasonable change in interest rate
in the next twelve months is assessed to result in
immaterial change in the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses. Changes in interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of equity.

B %5 L B i 3R

AEERRAFERGBRETREREED
REMRER T AMmMAZEM KRR - MHER
REREMESAR(EEE %J—Uﬁ © MR E R
&E‘r&f’iﬂﬂ 2)  EERREARBE SR

B o Kﬁl%lluTiﬁifuﬁlgmﬁ%%E’JFEﬂ
B EMBEREREBER °

% SEHMAREHETONLD EXR
- NEEMEREAKBAAZBEREAEK
W%&&é%%?fZ%ﬂIﬁZTH
“0*&ﬁm A& B R e B IR AR

%E B - ARERBE R ARRBVEE 5

w % E SR T AR 2 Bk N a0 )R
DUt F R 2 BORE RN

(a) SME &z

HRAEBETEAREEEFEXR
HHEMEEAFE  WAEEHER
PE R AR o A [E B AL ESMNE
BHBR - BEEE-—EEREINE
RN AT EEEEEPERIMNE
[\ o

(b) FZEE

B eMEERBBEREAE
EERRESRENXER - mMARE
i'JTZ$m$§F&ﬁfff§$‘§lﬁE?

RTEMNERERR - AEBERFEEZE
KRR YRUBERFARSBMEEN
BEZHEE RART_EAFMERZ
BEEHRIETHARERFENE
BREBABERYEBSANEE - F R
B AR B 2 AR I &

A
= °
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets
presented in the Group’s statement of financial position
are net of impairment losses, if any. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. As at 31 December 2020, 38% (2019:
38%) of the total receivables were concentrated in
the Group’s largest debtor and 63% (2019: 63%)
of the total trade receivables were concentrated in
the Group’s top five debtors (all private companies
incorporated in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan).

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because most of the Group’s bank deposits are
deposited with major banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables is estimated
using a provision matrix with reference to past default
experience of the debtor, current market condition
in relation to each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs
also incorporated forward looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions
that may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables.

F+-A=t—BILFE

B ERERE(E)
(c) =EERE

AEE M BRARANEINEREE
MEEEEMERREBR(NE) -
AEEZEERBREEXEEFP 2T
RIEREE - BEFEEMET %&
BRzEZORRITHESRRE
& EREEREK- EC_E_giJr_
A=1—8 EBWRFEHEE238%
“E-NF 3R)EFREAKHE
MERAEBEHA - BEHRUHRBEL
63% (=T —NF : 63%)EFREXN
SENAXKEBZAFIARERE - F
BN A EEMALFLARE]) °

AEERZRB|ITFEHERE - HRA
SEZRITEFRRBOFEARELER
PRz EBIRTT RS RIRITHE
ZEERBRAER -

AEEZAENE2HRACEEEERD
TRTEE S R EMRBKFRNER
B - BHREFENTRBEEER
ERBBERMG  X2EEBAN
BEENRLE ARESEHARRE
BITHMR - ?Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁ%%%—l
R EEBABERKFIARE NHE
BRBEBENLR jJD)\HuEI&\EEéﬂ
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)
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(c)

(@)

B ERERE(E)

Credit risk (Cont’d) (c) 1=ERPE (&)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group RZZEZZEFR=ZT—NF+=A
recognised lifetime ECLs for its trade receivables =+—H AEEERBEANZEER
based on individually significant customer or the ageing PelfER A TE RN SRR IR
of customers collectively that are not individually RHEEB S EIWFIEN S BHEHSHEEE
significant as follows: B BT
2020 2019
It b 33 —NE
Weighted
average Gross Gross
lifetime carrying Loss carrying Loss
ECLs amount  allowance amount allowance
AT
2R
EEBB REAE BERE REAR BiEEG
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
% TER TER T THT
1-90 days 13908 1 80 - 2,377 (24)
91-365 days 91%365H 10 - - 1,843 (184)
More than 365 days BiB365H 100 74,106 (74,106) 137,854  (137,854)
74,186 (74,106) 142,074 (138,062)
For other receivables, management makes periodic BEMEWRREmNS @ BEEESER
collective assessments as well as individual L{E%%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ“&Lﬁm%’“"JE{’@JE%Z
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables TH 2 75 7] (O] U iE HA 1 B B g AT &
based on historical settlement records and past 1I%IJEJF1$ B BF 7S sk FT i B2 & 4
experience. Save as those disclosed in the financial EERR - ANEERHE A EIGRIE R
statements, the directors believe that there is no other % %E’Jﬂi%@%éﬁ%lﬁﬁ@.ﬁﬁ’]i
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding ANeER
balance of other receivables and deposits.
Fair value (d) »¥FE

The directors of the Company consider the fair values
of the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities
are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the immediate or short-term maturity of
these financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets was not disclosed because the
carrying amount is not materially different from its fair
value.

AABEEREARASE 2 ZE S
BT EEBAE SR EAREIE - #UR
HepEERBEZATFEREARA
B2EZREWATEKN - BRFERBD SR
BEMNAVTERAREEZEZTAE
K IR EH R o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 42. MR EE (&)

(e) Liquidity risk (e) MEEZEFE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity AREB BRI EHEZEREESR
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient FE WREFTHREHE - BN
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements CHERAZERESESERK - R
in the short and longer term. The Group has net —E2F+-_A=+—H ' AEER
current liabilities of HK$57,481,000 (2019: net B EFEA57,481,0008 (==
current assets of HK$42,768,000) and net liabilities of —NF : mEEEF{E42,768,000
HK$55,150,000 (2019: net assets of HK$17,633,000) BIt)  BfEF% R55,150,000% 7T
as at 31 December 2020. In the opinion of the —T—NF : EEH1E17,633,000
directors, the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is high. BIL) c BEERRE - AEEEERR
Please refer to note 3(b) for the management’s plan on BeeEk BHEEEBRELAER
improving the Group’s liquidity. MBESHETE - F2EMES((D)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAVWAEERNTESRBERNS
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s WEBRBHRHRENE - ZRTIRE
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based FTAARMBEREESRE(BIERTLA
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including Ry EEZE  WHBREREBEZ
interest payment computed using contractual rates or, EHN XA E M BT ) RARE
if floating, based on current rates at the reporting date) AR AN R xR HERR -
and the earliest date the Group may be required to pay:
Repayable in
Total more than
contractual Repayable 1 year
Carrying undiscounted within 1 year but less than
amount cash flow or on demand 5 years
ARRER MER BB1E
REE RERELE DRETREER BINFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
THT T TR TR
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZBE
+=A=t+-H
Trade payables B ERFUA 7,996 7,996 7,996 -
Accrued charges and other payables ezt A [ H it e (T BE 18 134,050 134,050 134,050 -
Shareholder’s loans BREER 20,295 20,295 20,295 -
Lease liabilities HEAR 22,898 25,812 18,827 6,985
185,239 188,153 181,168 6,985
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z-1E&
+=A=t+-H
Trade payables B ERFUA 19,638 19,638 19,638 -
Accrued charges and other payables [ExtE B & & fh JE{FBRIE 151,032 151,032 151,032 -
Shareholder’s loans IRERE R 207,298 220,639 - 220,639
Other borrowing HAfER 55,172 56,275 56,275 -
Lease liabilities HEGE 49,519 52,131 25,913 26,218
482,659 499,715 252,858 246,857
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43. DISPOSAL OF DISPOSAL GROUP

226

3. HEHERHE

On 11 August 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Osibao to dispose its entire
equity interests in CRMT and CRHI for a total consideration
of HK$35,000,000 in cash (of which HK$23,492,000 and
HK$11,508,000 were attributed to sale of CRMT and CRHI
respectively (altogether known as “Disposal Group”)). On
30 September 2020, the Group completed the disposal of

100% equity interest in CRMT and CRHI.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Disposal

Group as of the date of disposal were as follows:

R-ZE-_ZTFENA+—H KEEEEH
EHT_LEE\T%D?E J’/(Hj:n/\ﬁ/\l:':'ﬁé‘i%ﬂ%&
LA BABENEERE  BRERRE
35,000,000/ 7T E¢23,492,0005%ﬁ&
11,508,000 TH Rl B R L EHR B LA
NN &(—H%w%rﬂj £E]) -
RZE_ZEFNA=+H xEEZKH
ERPBEEAGERPBERIR 2 2R -

RHEBNHECEE EERBERA
BF :

HK$’'000
FHEIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Intangible assets B EE 11,972
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 4,816
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH A e W IR 43,035
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 18,770
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payable B 5 R HE A FERFIR (7,265)
Lease liabilities HEEE (656)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred taxation RIER A (1,456)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 69,216
Expenses in relation to the disposal HERS 1,070
Release of translation reserves upon HEWHBEAQRE
disposal of subsidiaries FRBRIE W (F H 1,280
Loss on disposal of the subsidiaries HEWBAR 2 EE (36,566)
Total consideration by cash LIRS R(E 35,000
Satisfied by: ERNESESE N
Cash H4 35,000
Total consideration by cash BIE e RE 35,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEEZHEERAFE :
Cash consideration received BUHE S RE 35,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BERERITEBRKERS (18,770)
16,230
The impact of CRMT and CRHI on the Group's results and REAAG NP BEEREANEBE KA

cash flows in the current and prior periods is disclosed in

note 8.

MEBE RO ERRR S RENTER
SRR -
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44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(@) HK$120,000,000 three-year zero coupon

unsecured unlisted convertible bonds

On 21 April 2020, the Company issued under a specific
mandate a three-year zero coupon unsecured unlisted
convertible bonds (“First Convertible Bonds”) with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$120,000,000 to All
Favour to settle and repay loan by All Favour in the
principal amount of HK$120,000,000.

The major terms of the First Convertible Bonds are as
follows:

()  The bondholders of the convertible bonds have
the right to convert all or any portion of the
convertible bonds into shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.20 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The
conversion rights can be exercised at any time
throughout the term of the convertible bonds.

(i)  The Company may at any time from the issue
date to the maturity date, having given not less
than 10 days’ notice to the bondholders, redeem
all or part of the convertible bonds on the day
fixed for redemption at such amount equivalent to
100% of the principal amount of the outstanding
bonds (“Issuer’s Redemption Option”).

All Favour, being a substantial Shareholder of the
Company, is a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the issue of the First Convertible Bonds
by the Company to All Favour constitutes a connected
transaction on the part of the Company and is
subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

A4, AR EF

(@) 120,000,00087T=EHEZ
EFEEHIE L a2 R 1EF

NRZE-_ZTFWPA=-+—80 ' AQF
BIEERIERE  ME2BRTASER
£120,000,0008 TR =FHEEE
IR IE T A AR E S ([ EHt T8
BEHF])  UNEEREEZEBASHE
/120,000,000 8 TTHIE 7K ©

BH AT MR EFH T REFAT

() AB|BEEFNESHAEAGE
R R EF0.2078 7T (7 &
1TIRESEFE) #5 2 2R AT (A &P
DABRBESERSARRF R
0 o #a B HE A] 0 A R R (B 25 A
HIRR AT AT -

(i) ARAAREBETHBHEIEH
HEERBARES A AR
HARDRI0OKE BN EOE
HElEAEBERMHEIKID A
BMRES  SEEEREARE
BEANSEN100%([ETA
EERE]) -

RIBFGEM LM R AIZE20E - AR
TERREER/ARFINEEAL -
At RARBEITEHAIRREST
2 BRARF-HEERIZN—
By RETGEMLEMRANE20E
TR - DE - BRRBT R
HERRTE e
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44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D)
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(@) HK$120,000,000 three-year zero coupon

unsecured unlisted convertible bonds
(Cont’d)

The First Convertible Bonds contain two components,
the liability and equity components. The initial fair value
of the two components was determined based on
transaction price at issuance. The initial fair value less
allocated transaction costs of the liability component
was estimated to be HK$79,754,000 as at 21 April
2020 (date of issue) using the binomial option pricing
model method, taking into account the terms and
conditions of the First Convertible Bonds, based on the
valuation undertaken by an independent professionally
qualified valuer. The fair value of the Issuer’s
Redemption Option on the date of initial recognition
are considered insignificant based on the valuation
results. In subsequent periods, the liability component
is measured at amortised cost using effective interest
rate method. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the First Convertible Bonds was 16.82%
per annum. The residual amount less allocated
transaction costs representing the value of the equity
component of HK$40,246,000, was presented in
equity under the heading “convertible bonds equity
reserve”.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding principal
amount of the First Convertible Bonds was Nil as they
were fully converted into shares during the year.

44, TRIREZ (FF)

(@)

120,000,000/ Tt = FRIZEZE
,(_\,n)ftf#;’/fﬁ A 12 IR (& 55
nnﬁ

Emaﬁ%1% SMEZLD - B
Eﬁ&%/ nommaﬁmmw
AREBEBDNREBEETRAORZERE
E o -R-ZBE-_FTFMNA/=-+—H(F
THH)  ERABIEESERMG
ERETHEE  RAZIEXNHAEE
BELEFTETZEEEH Bk E
FMEREGENH  BESSHNSR
NEERED mmx%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ

79,754,000/ 7T ° R IE (HE A
%ﬁAE@%mmi%wE%m
BEYFREKR - REBBARM - ,F%
o T ER A B BR A 3K e 5 A AN G
E-BEHATBERESEELINE
B EF R 516.82% o Fl &k & 588 &
DEMRFIHANIEERI D HEE
40%6mm%m TiRtEmN [ A #
RESERFEEITZ25 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\ZT %i&%B,TTFUI_

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D) 44, AR E S ()
(a) HK$120,000,000 three-year zero coupon (@) 720 000,000 BT =FEHEE
unsecured unlisted convertible bonds BRI L i R (B
(Cont’d) (#&)
The movements of liability component and equity BE_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLF
component of the First Convertible Bonds for the year f%?ﬁtT%ﬁ RESBERD RERSE
ended 31 December 2020 were set out below: DHIEETEF W T :

Liability component Equity component

(At amortised cost) (Residual amount)
8E%s Emda
(RBHRE) (Fne®)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THIT
At 21 April 2020 (date of issue) R-E-ZEMA-+-A(ETAH) 79,754 40,246
Interest accrued JERTHIE 2,228 -
Conversion BERM (81,982) (40,246)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-EF+-A=1+-H - -
(b) HK$95,000,000 three-year zero coupon (b) 95,000,000/ 7C = FRIEEE
unsecured unlisted convertible bonds EMIE L AR IRE S
On 10 December 2020, the Company issued, R-ZZE-_ZTF+-F+H  A271H8
under a specific mandate a three-year zero coupon BERERE  mME2BERTASBEZE S
unsecured unlisted convertible bonds (“Second 95,000,000 TR = FHZTE B &
Convertible Bonds”) with an aggregate principal BRI EMAIRRES([F otk
amount of HK$95,000,000 to All Favour to settle and BRES])  UNEEREEEEASE
repay loan by All Favour in the principal amount of #/4100,000,0008 TR E K °

HK$100,000,000.
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44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D)

230

(b) HK$95,000,000 three-year zero coupon
unsecured unlisted convertible bonds
(Cont’d)

The major terms of the Second Convertible Bonds are
as follows:

(i)

The bondholders of the convertible bonds have
the right to convert all or any portion of the
convertible bonds into shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.20 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The
conversion rights can be exercised at any time
throughout the term of the convertible bonds.

The Company may at any time from the issue
date to the maturity date, having given not less
than 10 days’ notice to the bondholders, redeem
all or part of the convertible bonds on the day
fixed for redemption at such amount equivalent to
100% of the principal amount of the outstanding
bonds (“Issuer’'s Redemption Option”).

All Favour, being a substantial Shareholder of the
Company, is a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the issue of the Second Convertible
Bonds by the Company to All Favour constitutes a
connected transaction on the part of the Company
and is subject to the reporting, announcement, circular
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

44, AR E S ()

(b) 95,000,000/8 T =FRHEZL
EITAIE L AR IR 1 (4

FE_HABBEEFNEZGERET ¢

() AB|EEFNESHAEAGE
R RE S 0.2078 7T (7] &
1TTRESEFE) 15 2 2R AE A &P
DABRBESERSARAR
0 o #a B HE A] 0 A R R (B 25 A
HARR AL AT -

(i) ARAAAREBETHHEIEA
ﬁﬂFa?ﬁ%EH%ﬁi@Fﬂﬁ%%ﬁ/\%é
HRDRI0OKE BN EOE
HElEABERMHEIPKITD A
BMRES  @EEEREARE
BEARNESEN100%([3ETA
EERE]) -

RIBGEM LM R AIZE20E - AR A
TERREER/ARFNEEAL -
At - RAREITE A BRKES
TEE BRARR-EBEEISH

— &b - ZAESFGEM L AR RIS 20
ETWER  NE  BELBIER

?ﬁt/ﬁmfﬁi °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D) 44, AARES (B)

(b) HK$95,000,000 three-year zero coupon (b) 95,000,000 =FRIEEE

unsecured unlisted convertible bonds
(Cont’d)

The Second Convertible Bonds contain two
components, the liability and equity components.
The initial fair value of the two components was
determined based on transaction price at issuance.
The initial fair value less allocated transaction
costs of the liability component was estimated
to be HK$65,896,000 as at 10 December 2020
(date of issue) using the binomial option pricing
model method, taking into account the terms and
conditions of the Second Convertible Bonds, based
on the valuation undertaken by an independent
professionally qualified valuer. The fair value of the
Issuer’s Redemption Option on the date of initial
recognition are considered insignificant based on
the valuation results. In subsequent periods, the
liability component is measured at amortised cost
using effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the Second
Convertible Bonds was 14.72% per annum. The
residual amount less allocated transaction costs
representing the value of the equity component of
HK$34,104,000 was presented in equity under the
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve”.

A L 5 TR RES ()

F_HIBMBEESBEMELD
faEkERLD - MEHD E’WJ
EATFENBRBETRARSERE
T -R-ZBE-_FTF+=-A+RH(FET
HH)  RBAEBYEXSERMGE
BEITH G E - KA B BEEE
BAEFETEREE _# AT E
FMEREGENH  BESSHNSR
NEERED @me%ﬁkmﬁﬂ%
65,896,000/ 7T ° iR ¥ & B 4
%éf?i/\ﬁ%i@%ﬁé%ﬂﬂﬁwaﬂﬂm
fﬁﬂﬁKék c RMEZHIMR - ¢ fiiﬁ
M%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂwﬂﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬂ&ﬁ
AR ESEaESINE
r%%i%lj?z%m.?z% o F|fh & FE R E
DEMRFIHANIEERI D HEE
34104000,%75 TiRtEmN [ A #
RESERFEEITZ25 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i —E-FEF+ -_A=+—RA I FE

44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’D) 44, AR E S ()

(b) HK$95,000,000 three-year zero coupon (b) 95,000,000 =FRIEEE
unsecured unlisted convertible bonds IEITHAIE F 7 AR SR (e (4B
(Cont’d)
As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding principal R-ZEBE_TEF+_A=+—8 " E=
amount of the Second Convertible Bonds was Nil as WA BEEENEREEANASTE A
they were fully converted into shares during the year. T BEERFAZILEB ARG, -
The movements of liability component and equity FHE_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—HIE
component of the Second Convertible Bonds for the FEE_HAHEBESAEND Lk #E
year ended 31 December 2020 were set out below: mEb DR EB P T ¢

Liability component Equity component

(At amortised cost) (Residual amount)
8&H5 Ez#H
(RB#HKK) (Fpe®)
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEL THL
At 10 December 2020 (date of issue) R-E-EE+-A+R(RTAH) 65,896 34,104
Interest accrued T F & 106 -
Conversion BERH (66,002) (34,104)

At 31 December 2020 RZE-FE+-F=1-H - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HiZ2 _E_TF +_A=1+—HILFE

45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group has not
adopted any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose.

A5 BEXREBBRERRERF

AEBEREAZBER:

s REAKRERBELZEZRSN #ER
Pl BR 5 2 2 3 % 7 L 5 4 7 7 SR A

=5
e HRAEE/BERER: R

o RHESUAMBAKEEZ ARERE
e

AREBEBEETE ST REEEENRE
BRAGBREEARE EHRSKERRD
ﬁ TEBERKEERKRESTFEREARK

-BEREAANEN BAKERE
%%*ﬁﬂﬁ$ﬁi&ﬁ%%wﬁhﬁﬁ
g AEERARRABEAEXRSEE -

EREREEaREAEEZER -
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46.

234

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the PRC and Hong
Kong. There are temporary suspension on part of the
operation of subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong from
January to February 2021, which will affect the financial
performance of the Group for the year ending 31 December
2021. The Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and further evaluate its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group in
the future.

In March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for sale and purchase of the
entire issued share capital of and the sale loan due by Biocell
Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company for a total consideration of HK$101.

In March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for sale and purchase of
the entire issued share capital of and the sale loan due by
Obagi Medical Products Group Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for a total consideration of
HK$1,000,000.

In March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for sale and purchase of
the entire issued share capital of and the sale loan due by
Passion Stream Limited and Frame Sharp Limited, both
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company for a total
consideration of HK$11,000,000.

On 22 March 2021, the Group announced that the
Company entered into a non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding with Jinxin Holdings Co, Ltd* (& #T1E /% &
&) in relation to possible joint development of a healthcare
industrial park in the PRC.

46.

REHWRSE

RZZE_ZFFHIFEECOVID-19/F 1% -
— R FERIE S8 e B A A% 4 B A R =
rBEBER WBARANR-_ZT—_—F—A
E_RAHAETBREBNERITIHE
= BrErfEEEE_ZT-_—F+=-A
T —HIEFENPBERE - AEBEEE
JIF)ECOVID-19B MR - WiEE—F
ST Ay L3 7R &R B R 2R B A5 AR R AR o S AR

=775
2 o

N-B-—%=8 ARTAREEALA
ME2EHBARERENHRERAR
2B BTRARI M ERR - 5B
STE=HALHE - BREBI0UET -

WR—ZZTE-_—F=ZH ARQRaBREEN
7~ A fE#% 2 & M B 2 5 Obagi Medical
Products Group Limited#) % 2 2 317 I
AEREBHEHEEREBLE =TI
% 8B E /1,000,000 7T °

RZZE=Z—F=F ARAREBERARN
N EIEEE2 &N E R R & Passion Stream
Limited & Frame Sharp Limited®) & 32
BIIRAREBAHEEEREABLE = FF]
S #2R{E%&11,000,000% 7T °

RZE-_—F=ZA=+=H AEEE
i ARRESHIEREBI A AER
HNRINBERESE  NAE B RER T
BEEREREREEXR -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BT E

RESULTS E o
Financia
period form Financial Financial Financial
Financial year 1 May 2017 year ended year ended year ended
ended 30 April  to 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2017 2018 2019 2020
AZS—tF
nA-AiE BE HE BE
HECZ-tF EI3—tf Z-)\E E0E “BIEE
MA=tAE +ZA=t—-BA +ZA=t-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=t-A
IHER IEBT B EHHER EHBER €35
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix TAT TET TAL TiEn
(Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (a)) (Note (a))
(FzE (o) (FitzE (o)) GE) (F3ta) (Mrit(a))
(restated) (restated)
(&#E3)) (#E5))
Revenue W 356,987 503,680 72,952 19,365 185,339
Cost of services provided/Cost of sales ~ BRARB 2B A /HERA (219,462) (356,384) (45,946) (9,798) (140,328)
Gross profit E| 137,525 147,296 27,006 9,567 45,011
Other income =4O 45,144 49,909 23,857 48,690 16,032
Selling and distribution expenses BERD R (66,796) (89,270) (134,695) (41,904) (26,640)
Administrative and other expenses TREEmRER (322,464) (238,984) (324,017) (81,301) (158,740)
Fair value gain/(loss) on contingent EREAREZATEYES/(BE)
consideration receivables 20,097 (15,876) (26,271) (4,587) -
Expected credit loss on trade receivables B S ENZERHE SR - - (139,006) (1,149) (663)
Reversal (provision) of expected credit loss on E i EWZUERS(E S &
other receivables BE (&) - - 2,458 (19,636) (36,762)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets fair - HATERERIIEZ 282
value through profit or loss LY EYE/ (BR) = = (113,809) 1,204 -
Write off of deposits for acquisition of MRk ERBARRS
subsidiaries - - - - (100,000)
Impairment of goodwil HERE = = (202,292) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1% + BE kR ERE - - (168,486) (94, ) -
Impairment of other intangible assets i ENEERNR - - (275,896) (70 697) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets BRESELRE - - - (52,049) -
Finance costs HBER (24,426) (24,901) (21,654) (26,988) (17,906)
Loss before income tax RETEHAER (210,920) (171,826) (1,352,799) (332,940) (277,328)
Income tax credit/(expense) gt/ (Fx) 11,728 5,610 68,884 4,954 (12,380)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HEER (199,192) (166,216) (1,283,915) (327,986) (289,708)
Attributable to: oI :
Owners of the Company RAFAEBA (184,502) (158,492) (1,193,501) (289,355) (251,623)
Non-controlling interests FERRRER (14,690) (7.724) (90,414) (38,631) (38,085)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HEER (199,192) (166,216) (1,283,915) (327,986) (289,708)
(@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial  (a) AEFEHFEHEEESHBREK -
statements.
(b)  The financial figures were extracted from the 2019 annual report. (b) EBHUBHEFEIEHEA T —NEFEFR-

No separate disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued
operations were made on the financial figures from 2017 to 2019.

—tF=E

—z— ﬂiz%ﬁ%%lﬂiﬁ&%
o 05 4 A S T T 4R || A AR R TR R o
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YA 1~z oh
smE
RESULTS (CONT’D) XE(AE)
As at 30 April As at 31 December
REA=1H WtZA=1-H
2017 2017 2018 2019 2020
—FtF “F-+t% —E-)\E ZE-NE it 3:3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TER
Total assets BeE 2,888,229 3,527,973 1,422,923 553,933 152,491
Total liabilties Bak (980,337) (1,714,649) (855,660) (536,300) (207,641)
Shareholders’ funds e e 1,907,892 1,813,324 567,263 17,633 (55,150)
Note: The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements. Mizk : BARSIEWIEARK BRI 2 — 1) o
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